
NEW WESTMINSTER POLICE BOARD

OPEN AGENDA 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 at 0930 
Join in-Person: 

555 Columbia Street, New Westminster 
Join via Zoom: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88996909354?pwd=eWJ3ejRzUW1jTWZzR01QUTIyKzJkQT09 

Webinar ID: 889 9690 9354 
Passcode: 500172 

+1 778 907 2071

√ Indicates Attachment

We recognize and respect that New Westminster is on the unceded and unsurrendered land of the Halkomelem speaking 
peoples. We acknowledge that colonialism has made invisible their histories and connections to the land. As a City, we 
are learning and building relationships with the people whose lands we are on. 

1 ADOPTION & PRESENTATIONS 

√ 
1.1 
1.2 
1.3 
1.4 

Land Acknowledgement 
Adoption of Open Agenda: May 21, 2024 
I-Teams Presentation
Civilian Presentations: Comm Ops | Out on Patrol

Police Board 
Police Board 
Sean Edwards 
Grujo/ Wardner 

2 CONSENT AGENDA 

√ 2.1 Approval of Open Minutes: April 16, 2024 Police Board 
2.2 Police Board Member Reports 

√ 
√ 
√ 
√ 
√ 
√ 
√ 

2.3 
2.4 
2.5 
2.6 
2.7 
2.8 
2.9 

Statistics: April 2024 
Monthly Report on NWPD Overtime 
GOVERNANCE: Report on Core Operations 
GOVERNANCE: Q1 2024 Financial Report 

Facility Asset Management Plan (FAMP) – Police Building 
Policy: OA140 – Active Deadly Threat 
Police Board Correspondence 
(a) EComm Update from George Madden: May 2024
(b) E-Comm Board of Directors Nomination | 2024-2025 Term
(c) BCAPB 2024-2026 Executive Board
(d) Transition of North Van RCMP non-emergency calls to E-Comm
(e) Discussion Paper on Regionalization

Jacqueline Dairon 
Inspector Perry 

3 
√ 

ONGOING BUSINESS 
3.1     Report on Restorative Justice Inspector Gosal 

4 

√ 

NEW BUSINESS 
4.1    Police Amendment Act 2024 – Follow-up 
4.2    CAPG Partner Invitation       

Mayor Johnstone 
Chief Constable Jansen 

NEXT MEETING 

Date: June 18, 2024 @ 0930 

Location: Blue Room, 555 Columbia Street 

ADJOURNMENT OF OPEN MEETING 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88996909354?pwd=eWJ3ejRzUW1jTWZzR01QUTIyKzJkQT09


 

 

 
NEW WESTMINSTER MUNICIPAL POLICE BOARD 

April 16, 2023 at 09.30 am 
In-Person and via ZOOM 

New Westminster Police Department, 555 Columbia Street, New Westminster 
 

MINUTES of Regular Meeting 
 
PRESENT:  Mayor Patrick Johnstone   Chair 
   Ms. Heather Boersma    
   Mr. Drew Hart  

Mr. Patrick Lalonde 
Ms. Mary Trentadue 
Mr. Alejandro Diaz 

 
STAFF:   Chief Constable Dave Jansen 
   Deputy Chief Constable Paul Hyland 
   Inspector Eamonn Ward 
   Inspector Aman Gosal 
   Acting Inspector Jeff Scott 
   Acting Inspector Sanjay Kumar 
   Ms. Jacqueline Dairon   Finance Supervisor 
   Ms. Daisy Dyer    Police Board Secretary 
   Ms. Hailey Finnigan   Communications 
 
GUESTS:   Ms. Kristina Machuik   Finance Coordinator 
   Ms. Kathy DeRenzio   Administrative Assistant - Payroll 
   Ms. Maija Dvorjankina  Clerk 3 
   Mr. Ryan San    IT Supervisor 
   Mr. Kenny Fung    Network Coordinator 
   Mr. Carlo Papais   User Support Specialist 
   Mr. Tim Kim    IT Specialist 
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 09:30 a.m. 
 
1. ADOPTION 
 
1.1 Land Acknowledgement 

 
We recognize and respect that New Westminster is on the unceded and unsurrendered 
land of the Halkomelem speaking peoples. We acknowledge that colonialism has made 
invisible their histories and connections to the land. As a City, we are learning and building 
relationships with the people whose lands we are on. 

 



New Westminster Municipal Police Board 

 

Minutes of NWPB – April 16, 2024 Page 2 of 7 

1.2 Adoption of Regular Agenda: April 16, 2024 
 
MOVED AND SECONDED 
 

THAT The New Westminster Police Board approve the April 16, 2024, Regular Agenda.  
 

CARRIED 
 
1.3 Police Officer Commission  

 
Chief Constable Jansen presented Inspector Eamonn Ward with his Police Officers 
Commission in recognition of his exemplary service, high level of public service and 
dedication to the profession of policing.  
 
In early 2016, the British Columbia government passed legislation finalizing the criteria 
that established the Police Officers Commission. This recognition is a provincial honour 
that recognizes high caliber senior members of municipal police departments for their 
professionalism and dedication to policing in British Columbia. In British Columbia, 
officers who earn the rank of Inspector or above are eligible to be considered to be 
commissioned officers.  
 
This honour recognizes the outstanding leadership and dedication of Inspector Ward and 
reflects his ongoing commitment to the highest level of service to British Columbians.  

 
1.4     Alexa Awards Presentation 

 
The Alexa’s Team is named in honour of four-year-old Alexa Middelaer who was killed by 
an impaired driver in Delta in 2008. Alexa’s Team pays tribute to the dedicated RCMP and 
Municipal police officers who make an extraordinary contribution to reducing the number 
of drivers affected by alcohol or drugs on British Columbia’s roads and highways.  
 
Chief Constable Jansen stated that impaired driving is a completely preventable crime. 
The officers who are a part of Alexa’s Team help to prevent these tragic deaths and 
injuries, and are making roads and communities safer for everyone.  
 
Constable Chris Faris received the All-star Alexa Award, removing 60 impaired drivers 
from the road.  
 
Constable Kamoh Malcolm received an Alexa Award, removing 27 impaired drivers from 
the road.  
 
Detective Constable Vogt received an Alexa Award, removing 24 impaired drivers from 
the road.  

 
Constable Brad Wardner received an Alexa Award, removing 24 impaired drivers from the 
road.  



New Westminster Municipal Police Board 

 

Minutes of NWPB – April 16, 2024 Page 3 of 7 

 
The aforementioned members were awarded their certificates and thanked by the Board 
for their exceptional contribution and efforts. 
 

1.5 Civilian Presentations: Finance & Admin and IT 
 
Ms. Dairon introduced the Finance & Admin team, who each presented their roles and 
responsibilities to the Board:  
 

 Ms. Jacqueline Dairon - Finance Supervisor 

 Budget and forecast, budget preparation, monthly forecasting, resource 
allocation, transparency, accountability, operational efficiency. 

 Ms. Kristina Machuik - Finance Coordinator 

 Recoveries and billings, track salaries, overtime and expenses, reconcile 
overtime sheets, track leave balances and other pays, invoicing, accounts 
receivable.  

 Ms. Kathy DeRenzio - Administrative Assistant – Payroll 

 Payroll, admin, HR administration, staffing management, InTime 
management, transfer of data, audits and verification, administer 
scheduling system.  

 Ms. Maija Dvorjankina - Clerk 3 

 Accounts payable, invoice processing, invoice approval workflow, vendor 
relations, reconciliation and support, cost allocation.  

 
General administrative duties for the team include: Reviewing policy, storage and 
tracking of notebooks, reporting on statistics, SMT reports, board reports, provincial 
reports, and minor building work.  
 
Discussion ensued. The Board thanked the team for their presentation.  
 
Mr. San introduced the IT team, who each presented their roles and responsibilities to 
the Board:  
 

 Ryan San - IT Supervisor 

 Team Leadership, Scheduling, Approvals, Budget, Strategic Planning, 
Escalations (Major Incidents) Communications, Procurement, Vendor 
Management, Project Management, Mobile Phones 

 

 Kenny Fung - Network Coordinator 

 Network, E-Mail, Server, Storage and Backups Administration, Security (IT 
and Physical), IT Architecture & Design, Level 2 and Level 3 Support, 
Documentation, Project Implementations, Building Electrical and Wiring, 
Remote Access, Asset Management. 

  



New Westminster Municipal Police Board 

 

Minutes of NWPB – April 16, 2024 Page 4 of 7 

 

 Carlo Papais - User Support Specialist 

 Desktop, Laptop and MDT (Mobile Device Terminal) Configuration and 
Support, Desk Phones, Printers, Fax, Level  1 (Helpdesk) and Level 2 
Support, Windows Account and Access Administration, Incident 
Management, IT Application Support.  

 

 Tim Kim - IT Systems Specialist  

 Desktop, Laptop and MDT (Mobile Device Terminal) Configuration and 
Support, Desk Phones, Printers, Fax, Level  1 (Helpdesk) and Level 2 
Support, Windows Account and Access Administration, Request 
Management, IT Application Support. 

 
Discussion ensued regarding IT challenges, which included staffing and budget. Mr. San 
presented some of the IT team success, which included; strong interpersonal 
relationships, supporting existing technologies and the ability to pivot to different 
technologies as a small/ medium business size.  
 
Mr. Hart asked what the risk exposure was to the organization without a security 
specialist. Mr. San explained that the unit is able to implement layers of security to 
mitigate risks. Mr. Fung further stated that the department is required to follow the 
RCMP’s policy, which includes the disclosure of policy, systems, firewall configuration and 
security patches. Additionally, there is a guiding document that makes the department 
stronger than a typical organization.  
 
The Board thanked the team for their presentation. 
 
Received for information.  

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
2.1     Approval of Open Minutes: February 20 & March 21, 2024 

 
2.2  Police Board Member Reports  
 
2.3  Statistics: February & March 2024 
 
2.4  Monthly Report on NWPD Overtime 
 
2.5  GOVERNANCE: Annual Communications Report  
 
2.6  GOVERNANCE: Annual Report on Integrated Activities 
 
2.7  2023 Q4 Financial Update 
 
2.8 Policy: AB10 and OD35 



New Westminster Municipal Police Board 

 

Minutes of NWPB – April 16, 2024 Page 5 of 7 

 
2.9  Police Board Correspondence 
  
 2.9 (a) E-Comm Update from George Madden: March 2024 
  
 MOVED AND SECONDED 

 
THAT items 2.3, 2.5 and 2.7 be removed from the Consent Agenda; and 
 
THAT the New Westminster Police Board approve the remaining Consent Agenda items. 
 

CARRIED 
 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA 

 
2.3   Statistics 
 

Mr. Johnstone removed the statistics from the consent agenda, and inquired into the 
significant increase in mental health. Chief Constable Jansen explained that this remains 
an ongoing issue for the Lower Mainland in general, and that the department has been 
utilizing PACT (Peer Assisted Care Team) for referrals.  
 
Received for information.  

 
2.5  GOVERNANCE: Annual Communications Report 
 

Ms. Trentadue sought further clarity on the current policy for communications, and who 
develops the policy. Ms. Trentadue stated that she would like to see police board 
communications and operational communications aligned. Additionally, Ms. Trentadue 
wished to address how communications are managed with partner agencies. Chief 
Constable Jansen stated that there have rarely been occasions where there has been 
misalignment with other agencies when communications have been released. Ms. 
Finnigan further noted that we are duty bound to provide helpful and accurate 
information to the residents of New Westminster.  
 
Ms. Trentadue thanked Ms. Finnigan for the thorough report, stating that it will assist the 
Board in their ongoing governance work.  
 
Mayor Johnstone stated that the Board should have a further resources discussion to 
ensure that the Board have communications support.  
 
Received for information. 

  



New Westminster Municipal Police Board 

 

Minutes of NWPB – April 16, 2024 Page 6 of 7 

 
 
2.7 2023 Q4 Financial Update  
 

Ms. Boersma asked for clarity regarding the ‘Overtime ICBC’ and ‘Overtime Movies’ 
categories. Ms. Dairon explained that ‘Overtime ICBC’ is a grant for ICBC road checks. 
‘Overtime Movies’ entails police resourcing for movies via the City. These costs are 
entirely recoverable.  
 
Ms. Trentadue asked if the Police Board has its own business unit for expenses, and would 
like a clearer breakdown of police board costs. Mayor Johnstone agreed that in the 
interest of being a transparent organization, he would like further information on how 
police board costs can be better reported.  
 
Chief Constable Jansen stated that a report will be provided to the Board in May detailing 
the recent departmental achievements in grant funding.  
 
Received for information.  
 

3.  ONGOING BUSINESS  
 
3.1  Appointment of BCAPB Representatives 
 

Mr. Lalonde was previously appointed to represent the New Westminster Police Board 
on the BCAPB on a temporary basis until April 2024. Upon review, Mr. Lalonde reported 
that he was able to extend his appointment.  
 

MOVED AND SECONDED 
 
THAT Mr. Patrick Lalonde continue his appointment to the BCAPB as the authorized 
representative for the New Westminster Police Board. 

 
CARRIED 

 
3. NEW BUSINESS  
 

None.  
 
ADJOURNMENT of Regular Meeting 
 
Chair Johnstone adjourned the meeting at 1105 hrs. 
 
  



New Westminster Municipal Police Board 

 

Minutes of NWPB – April 16, 2024 Page 7 of 7 

Next meeting 
 
The next meeting will take place on Tuesday, 21 May, 2024, at 0930 at 555 Columbia Street, New 
Westminster.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

PATRICK JOHNSTONE 
CHAIR 

  

DAISY DYER 
RECORDING SECRETARY 



 

  
PROTECTED A 

April 2024 
(Report Created: 2024-05-08) 

 

April 2024 - Statistics 

Crime Type Category1 
2024 

March 
2024 
April 

April 
3YR Avg 

YTD 
2022 

YTD 
2023 

YTD 
2024 

YTD 3YR 
Avg 

% Change 
2023-2022 

Persons Offences 

HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N/A2 

ATTEMPTED HOMICIDE 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 N/A 

SEXUAL ASSAULTS 7 7 7 25 26 21 24 -19% 

ASSAULT-COMMON 33 47 34 108 116 144 123 24% 

ASSAULT-W/WEAPON OR CBH 14 10 11 46 58 51 52 -12% 

ASSAULT-AGGRAVATED 0 0 1 3 5 0 3 -100% 

ROBBERY 5 0 4 15 26 9 17 -65% 

Total Monitored Persons Offences 59 64 56 199 231 225 218 -3% 

Domestic Violence 

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE 39 32 45 205 221 144 190 -35% 

FAMILY VIOLENCE 22 21 18 78 93 77 83 -17% 

Property Offences 

BREAK & ENTER-BUSINESS 11 6 11 56 39 36 44 -8% 

BREAK & ENTER-RESIDENCE 4 3 4 29 28 17 25 0% 

BREAK & ENTER-OTHER 7 9 6 14 20 28 21 40% 

THEFT OF VEHICLE 7 14 11 51 43 39 44 -9% 

THEFT FROM VEHICLE 37 24 36 246 190 91 176 -52% 

THEFT-OTHER OVER $5000 2 4 2 4 9 9 7 0% 

THEFT-OTHER UNDER $5000 52 41 32 128 125 167 140 34% 

MISCHIEF OVER $5000 0 1 1 2 5 1 3 -80% 

MISCHIEF $5000 OR UNDER 34 38 37 160 148 145 151 -2% 

Total Monitored Property Offences 154 140 139 690 607 533 610 -12% 

Traffic Offences 

Collisions 

COLLISION-FATAL 0 0 0 2 2 0 1 -100% 

COLLISION-NON-FATAL INJURY 6 10 8 27 34 49 37 44% 

COLLISION-ALL OTHERS 36 53 53 212 178 183 191 3% 

Total Collision Offences 42 63 61 241 214 232 229 8% 

215 | Impaired 

215 ALCOH-24HR & DRUG 11 2 4 15 11 15 14 36% 

215 ALCOH IRP FAIL & REFUSE ASD-90 DAY 8 8 9 58 58 23 46 -60% 

215 ALCOH IRP WARN 5 2 3 19 23 14 19 -39% 

IMPAIRD OP MV (DRUGS & ALCOH) 12 10 15 71 48 34 51 -29% 

Weapons Offences 

WEAPONS 6 3 5 25 28 24 26 -14% 

Other Non-Criminal Offences 

BYLAW 19 24 24 87 118 77 94 -35% 

FALSE ALARMS 63 51 68 205 193 180 193 -7% 

MISSING PERSONS 17 28 25 90 74 78 81 5% 

MENTAL HEALTH RELATED 86 77 54 180 222 329 244 48% 

DISTURBED PERSON/ATT SUICIDE 53 32 40 178 211 180 190 -15% 

SUDDEN DEATH 11 14 10 42 47 45 45 -4% 

DOMESTIC DISPUTE-NO ASSAULT 31 29 31 106 150 103 120 -31% 

 

                                                           
1 The above statistics were extracted from LMD PRIME, General Occurrences (GOs) with CCJS Status: <>A (all files except unfounded) or B:Z (founded). Please note that 

the figures reflect police records as of the day the data was originally extracted; therefore, the figures may have changed over time. The PRIME data was last reviewed on: 
2024-05-08. Please contact the New Westminster Police Department ‐ Criminal Intelligence Unit for more information.  
2 Undefined. Percent Change = ((new value – initial value / initial value) x 100). Division by zero is division where the divisor (denominator) is zero, where the expression 

has no meaning; therefore, division by zero is undefined. 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Downtown Statistics 
 

Crime Type Category1 2023 
April 

2024 
April 

April 
3YR Avg 

YTD  
2022 

YTD  
2023 

YTD  
2024 

YTD 3YR 
Avg 

% Change  
2023-2024 

ASSAULT-COMMON 9 14 9 35 43 46 41 7% 

ASSAULT-W/WEAPON or CBH 9 4 6 24 31 24 26 -23% 

ASSAULT-AGGRAVATED 1 0 1 2 4 0 2 -100% 

ROBBERY 3 0 2 9 15 3 9 -80% 

BNE-BUSINESS 3 3 4 14 14 14 14 0% 

BNE-RESIDENCE 0 0 1 4 5 4 4 -20% 

THEFT FROM AUTO - OVER AND UNDER $5000 6 9 7 52 31 27 37 -13% 

THEFT-OTHER - OVER AND UNDER $5000 9 18 13 53 48 63 55 31% 

MISCHIEF - OVER AND UNDER $5000 8 17 13 51 41 44 45 7% 

MENTAL HEALTH RELATED 17 26 17 43 79 107 76 35% 
 

 

                                                           
1 The above statistics were extracted from LMD PRIME, General Occurrences (GOs) with CCJS Status: <>A. The data was mapped in ArcMap 10.8.2, and the Downtown statistics were extracted using the Select By Location  function – “are 

completely within the source layer feature”. Please note that the figures reflect police records as of the day the data was originally extracted; therefore, the figures may have changed over time. The PRIME data was last reviewed on: 2024-05-08. 

Please contact the New Westminster Police Department ‐ Criminal Intelligence Unit for more information.  

September 2023 
(Report Created: 2023-10-04) 

 

PROTECTED A 
April 2024 

(Report Created: 2024-05-08) 

 

 



Overtime Report to April 26, 2024 117

 2024 Annual Budget   YTD Budget 
 YTD Actual(Prior 

Report)  2024 Actual    YTD Variance 
 Budget 

Remaining  Last 2 Weeks 
2023 Prior YTD 

Actual
Management 2,000                                639                                    ‐                            2,619               (1,979)               (619)                 2,619               ‐                     

Admin Services 25,000                             7,992                                 11,146                      13,939             (5,948)               11,061             2,794               10,270               
Community & Spec Res 36,000                             11,508                               1,975                        3,484                8,025                 32,516             1,509               8,567                 

61,000                             19,500                             13,120                      17,423             2,077                43,577            4,303               18,837              

Patrol Admin 65,000                             20,779                               5,984                        6,393                14,386              58,607             409                   17,195               
Patrol A Platoon 63,000                             20,139                               10,891                      10,957             9,182                 52,043             66                     21,695               
Patrol B Platoon 63,000                             20,139                               28,349                      29,582             (9,443)               33,418             1,233               32,506               
Patrol C Platoon 63,000                             20,139                               11,789                      12,554             7,586                 50,446             765                   22,001               
Patrol D Platoon 63,000                             20,139                               13,706                      15,939             4,200                 47,061             2,233               21,312               

317,000                           101,336                           70,719                      75,425             25,911              241,575          4,706               114,710            

Major Crime 250,000                           79,918                               45,268                      49,749             30,169              200,251          4,482               94,937               
Forensic Ident 90,000                             28,770                               17,617                      19,931             8,839                 70,069             2,315               20,343               
Street Crime  65,000                             20,779                               4,060                        4,644                16,134              60,356             584                   4,007                 

405,000                           129,467                           66,945                      74,325             55,142              330,675          7,381               119,287            

Total Sworn Overtime 785,000                           250,943                           150,784                    169,792           81,151              615,208          19,008             252,834            

Civilian Overtime

 2024 Annual Budget   YTD Budget 
 YTD Actual(Prior 

Report)  2024 Actual    YTD Variance 
 Budget 

Remaining   Last 2 Weeks  
2023 Prior YTD 

Actual
Management 500                                    160                                    ‐                            ‐                    160                    500                  ‐                   ‐                     

Admin/Finance 5,000                                1,598                                 ‐                            ‐                    1,598                5,000               ‐                   1,962                 

Admin Services 21,000                             6,713                                 4,608                        4,608                2,105                 16,392             ‐                   10,387               
Records Services 67,500                             21,578                               17,828                      20,422             1,156                 47,078             2,593               30,906               
Community & SR 5,000                                 1,598                                 ‐                            ‐                    1,598                 5,000               ‐                   257                    
Victim Services 10,000                             3,197                                 4,679                        4,679                (1,482)               5,321               ‐                   3,934                 

103,500                           33,086                             27,115                      29,709             3,377                73,791            2,593               45,484              

Major Crime 1,500                                 480                                    ‐                            ‐                    480                    1,500               ‐                   1,168                 
Forensic Ident 5,500                                 1,758                                 1,874                        1,874                (116)                  3,626               ‐                   1,417                 

7,000                                2,238                                 1,874                        1,874               364                    5,126               ‐                   2,585                 

Total Civilian Overtime 116,000                           37,082                             28,989                      31,583             5,499                84,417            2,593               50,031              

Total NWPD OT ‐ Excluding Secondments
901,000                           288,025                           179,774                    201,375           86,650              699,625          21,601             302,865            



 
  
 
 

 
R E P O R T  
 
 
To: Mayor Johnstone and Members of the New 

Westminster Police Board 
Date: May 21, 2024 

    
From: Acting Inspector Sanjay Kumar Item #:  
    
Subject: 2024 Core Operations Report 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

That the New Westminster Police Board accept this report for information. 

 

 
Purpose 
 

The New Westminster Police Department (NWPD) operates with 114 sworn members and 37 
civilian staff members as per its authorized strength. Service is organized into four distinct 
divisions: Patrol, Criminal Investigations, Administration, and Community and Specialized 
Resource. The NWPD is committed to delivering an acceptable level of core operations when 
unplanned or unforeseen circumstances prevent the department from operating at full strength.  

 
The NWPD has created a matrix designed to serve as a deployment model in the event the 
department is faced with a sudden reduction in staffing resources stemming from a critical 
incident, such as a natural disaster or health pandemic.  
 
The matrix identifies the key priorities for sustaining the department’s core operations across 
three distinct deployment levels in the event of a 25%, 40%, or 50% reduction from the standard 
100% deployment. Each deployment level will have a varying level of impact on the delivery of 
service. A 50% reduction is deemed critical, as it represents the minimum threshold of staff 
resources required to maintain an acceptable level of service. 
 
The matrix is reviewed and updated as required on an annual basis. The 2024 matrices for sworn 
and civilian staff are attached for reference.   
 
 



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

1. Abstraction Plan Matrix: SWORN MEMBERS 
2. Abstraction Plan Matrix: CIVILIAN STAFF 

 
This report has been prepared by: 
 
Acting Inspector Sanjay Kumar 
Patrol Division 
 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
 

 



New Westminster Police Department Abstraction Plan Matrix: SWORN MEMBERS 
May 2024 

  

                                    

NWPD 

ACTIVITY 

                                        

NWPD 

FUNCTION 

                                  

CURRENT 

DEPLOYMENT 

 
 

100%  

 
25% ABSTRACTION 

 

 
40% ABSTRACTION 

 

 
50% ABSTRACTION   

(CRITICAL LIMIT) 
 

 
Minimum Level of Staff 
Resources Necessary to 

Deliver Acceptable 
Level of Service 

 

CRITICAL 
 

IMPACT ON 
DELIVERY 

Acceptable 
level of 

delivery still 
viable? 

IMPACT ON 
DELIVERY 

Acceptable level 
of delivery still 

viable? 

IMPACT ON 
DELIVERY 

Acceptable level of 
delivery still viable? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PATROL 

 

A WATCH 
 

1 Staff Sergeant 
1 Sergeant 
1 Corporal 
10 Constables 

13 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 
 

YES As for 40% + Only 
respond to most 
serious calls. 

YES 1 St Sgt 1 Sgt 
7 Constables 9  

CRITICAL 

B WATCH 1 Staff Sergeant 
1 Sergeant 
1 Corporal 
10 Constables 

13 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 
 

YES As for 40% + Only 
respond to most 
serious calls. 

YES 1 St Sgt 1 Sgt 
7 Constables 9 CRITICAL 

C WATCH 1 Staff Sergeant 
1 Sergeant 
1 Corporal 
10 Constables 

13 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 

YES As for 40% + Only 
respond to most 
serious calls. 

YES 1 St Sgt 1 Sgt 
7 Constables 9 CRITICAL 

D WATCH 1 Staff Sergeant 
1 Sergeant 
1 Corporal 
10 Constables 

13 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 

YES As for 40% + Only 
respond to most 
serious calls. 

YES 1 St Sgt 1 Sgt 
7 Constables 9 CRITICAL 

OPERATIONAL 
SUPPORT UNIT 

1 Staff Sergeant 1 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 
Consider 
reassignment 

YES As for 40% + 
Prioritize. 
 

NO    

TRAFFIC UNIT 
 
 

1 Sergeant 
3 Constables 
2 Special 
Constables 
(CVEU) 

6 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 
Consider 
reassignment 

YES TRAFFIC UNIT 
COLLAPSED. 
Members reassigned 
to Patrol 

NO    

CRIME 
REDUCTION 
UNIT 

1 Sergeant 
6 Constables 7 Staff required to 

work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 
Consider 
reassignment 

YES CRIME REDUCTION 
UNIT COLLAPSED 
Members reassigned 
to Patrol 

NO    

GANG 
SUPPRESSION 
UNIT 
(PROVINCIALL
Y FUNDED) 

1 Sergeant 
3 Constables 
 

4 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files 
Consider 
reassignment 

YES GANG UNIT 
COLLAPSED 
Members reassigned 
to Patrol 

NO    



New Westminster Police Department Abstraction Plan Matrix: SWORN MEMBERS 
May 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

CRIMINAL INVEST 

 

Criminal 

Investigations 

1 Staff Sergeant 

 
1 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

calls 
YES As for 40% + 

Prioritize;  
YES 1 Staff Sergeant 1 CRITICAL 

Major Crime 

Unit 

1 Sergeant 
1 Corporal 
8 Detectives 

10 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

calls 
YES As for 40% + Only 

respond to most 
serious calls. 

YES 1 Det Sgt 
5 Detectives 6 CRITICAL 

Street Crime 

Unit 

1 Sergeant 
1 Corporal 
7 Detectives 

9 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

files 
YES As for 40% + Only 

respond to most 
serious calls 

YES 1 Det Sgt 
4 Detectives 5 SPECIAL 

DEPLOYMENT 

TEAM 

Criminal 
Intelligence Unit 

1 Detective 1 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

files; Consider 

reassignment 

YES CIU UNIT 
COLLAPSED. 
Member reassigned 
as required 

NO    

Forensic 
Identification 
Unit 

1 Sergeant;  
3 Constables 4 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize  

files; Consider 

reassignment 

YES As for 40% + Only 
respond to most 
serious calls; 
Members reassigned 
as required 

YES 1 Sergeant 
1 Constable 2 CRITICAL 

Professional 
Standards 

2 Sergeants 2 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

files; Consider 

reassignment 

 YES PSU COLLAPSED. 
Members reassigned 

to Patrol 

NO    

 
 

ADMINISTRATION 

 

Admin Services/  1 Staff Sergeant;  
 

2 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

files 
YES As for 40% + 

Prioritize files 
YES 1 Staff Sergeant - 

Records NCO 1 CRITICAL 

Recruiting 1 Sergeant 1 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + 

Prioritize; Consider 

reassignment 

YES RECRUITING UNIT 

COLLAPSED 

Members reassigned 

as required 

NO    

Training 1 Sergeant;  
1 Constable 

2 Staff required to 

work rest 

days and/or longer 

shifts 

YES As for 25% + 
Prioritize; Consider 
reassignment 

YES TRAINING UNIT 

COLLAPSED 

Members reassigned 

as required 

NO    

 
 
 
 

COMMUNITY AND 
SPECIALIZED 
RESOURCE 

 

Community and 
Specialized 
Resource 

1 Staff Sergeant;  
 1 Staff required to 

work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + 
Prioritize; 
Public Information 
Officer (PIO) 

YES As for 40% + 
Prioritize. 
Public 
Information 
Officer 

YES 1 Sergeant 1 CRITICAL 
PIO 

Special 
Investigations 
Unit 

1 Sergeant 
4 Detectives 5 Staff required to 

work rest days 

and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 

files 
YES SIU COLLAPSED. 

Members reassigned 

as required 

NO    

Mental health 
Unit 

2 Constables 2 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files; Consider 
reassignment 

 YES MHU COLLAPSED. 
Members reassigned 
as required 

NO    



New Westminster Police Department Abstraction Plan Matrix: SWORN MEMBERS 
May 2024 

 

Community 
Engagement 
Unit 

1 Sergeant 
3 Constables 

4 Staff required to 
work rest days 
and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize 
files; Consider 
reassignment 

YES CEU COLLAPSED. 
Members reassigned 
as required 

NO    

SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT 

TEAM 

Management 1 Chief 
1 Deputy Chief 
4 Inspectors 

6 Staff required to 
work rest 
days and/or longer 
shifts 

YES As for 25% + 

Prioritize. 
YES As for 40% + 

Prioritize. 
YES 1 Chief Cst 

1 Deputy 
3 Inspectors 

5 CRITICAL 



  

                                       

NWPD 

ACTIVITY 

                                        

NWPD 

FUNCTION 

                                  

CURRENT 

DEPLOYMENT 

 
 

100%  

25% ABSTRACTION 40% ABSTRACTION 50% ABSTRACTION   

(CRITICAL LIMIT) 

Minimum Level of 
Staff Resources 

Necessary to Deliver 
Acceptable Level of 

Service 

 
 

CRITICAL 
 

IMPACT ON 
DELIVERY 

Acceptable 
level of 
delivery 

still viable? 

IMPACT ON 
DELIVERY 

Acceptable 
level of 
delivery 

still viable? 

IMPACT ON 
DELIVERY 

Acceptable 
level of 
delivery 

still viable? 

 
CID 

CRIME ANALYST 
 

1  Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files; 
Consider reassignment 

YES CRIME ANALYST COLLAPSED               
Staff member reassigned  

NO    

ELECTRONIC FILE 
ADMINISTRATOR 

1  Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files; 
Consider reassignment 

YES ELECTRONIC FILE ASSITANT 
Staff member reassigned  

NO 

FORENSIC VIDEO 
ANALYST 

1  Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files; 
Consider reassignment 

YES FORENSIC VIDEO ANALYS  Staff 
member reassigned  

NO 

 

 

 

 

RECORDS 

RECEPTION/ 

SWITCHBOARD 

1 Supervisor 
2  Staff Members 3 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize calls YES As for 40% + Prioritize calls YES 1 Reception Staff  1 CRITICAL 

COURTSERVICES  

UNIT 

1 Supervisor  
2 Court Liaison 3 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files YES As for 40% +  Prioritize files  YES 1 Supervisor 1 CRITICAL 

CPIC 2  Staff Members 2 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files 

Consider reassignment 
YES CPIC UNIT + Prioritize files YES 1 Staff Member 1 CRITICAL 

FILE QUALITY 
CONTROL 

4  Staff Members 4 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize  files 

Consider reassignment 
YES FILE QUALITY REVIEW + 

Prioritize files; Consider 

reassignment 

YES 1 Staff Member 1 CRITICAL 

PRIME 
COORDINATOR 

1  Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files 

Consider reassignment 
 YES PRIME UNIT PRIORITZE TASKS. YES 1 coordinator 1 CRITICAL 

QUALITY 

CONTROL UNIT 

1 Supervisor 1 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files 

Consider reassignment 
YES RECORDS CLERK COLLAPSED.  

Staff member reassigned 
NO    

TRANSCRIPTION 

CLERK 

1  Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files; 

Consider reassignment 
YES TRANSCRIPT CLERK COLLAPSED.  

Staff member reassigned 
NO    

VAU VICTIMS 
ASSISTANCE 

3 Staff Members                    3 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize calls YES As for 40% + Prioritize calls YES 1 Staff Member 1 CRITICAL 

FINANCE FINANCE / 
PAYROLL 

1 Supervisor                      
4 Staff Members 

5 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files YES As for 40% + Prioritize files YES 1 Finance 

Supervisor               
1 Staff Member 

2 CRITICAL 

PSS PROPERTY 
SERVICES 

1 Staff Member  1 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files YES As for 40% + Prioritize files YES 1 Staff Member 1 CRITICAL 

FOI FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 

2 Staff Members 2 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files; 

Consider reassignment 
YES FOI UNIT COLLAPSED.            

Staff members reassigned 
NO    

IT INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY 

1 Supervisor 
3 Staff Members 4 Staff required to work rest 

days and/or longer shifts 
YES As for 25% + Prioritize files YES As for 40% + Prioritize files YES 2 Staff Members 2 CRITICAL 

CRIME 
PREVENTION 

CRIME 
PREVENTION 

1 Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files YES As for 40% + Prioritize files YES 1 Staff Member 1 CRITICAL 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 

2 Staff Member 2 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files; 

Consider reassignment 
YES HUMAN RESOURCES 

COLLAPSED.  

Staff member reassigned 

NO    

EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT 

EXECUTIVE 
ASSISTANT 

1 Staff Member 1 Staff required to work rest 
days and/or longer shifts 

YES As for 25% + Prioritize files 

Consider reassignment 
 YES EXECUTIVE ASSIST. COLLAPSED. 

Staff member reassigned  
NO    

New Westminster Police Department Abstraction Plan Matrix: CIVILIAN STAFF  
May 2024 



 
 
  
 
 
 
R E P O R T  
Financial Services 
 
 
To: Mayor Johnstone, Chair, and Members 

New Westminster Municipal Police Board 
Date: May 21, 2024 

    
From: Jacqueline Dairon 

Financial Services 
Item #:  

 
Subject:  

 
March 31, 2024 Q1 Financial Report and Forecast  

 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the New Westminster Police Board receive the March 31 2024 Financial Report and Forecast 
for information.   
 

 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide information to the Board on the Q1 March 31st financial 
report and provide a financial forecast for the 2024 year.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
As of March 31, 2024, the police department is currently under budget by $590,000. The 
department anticipates this favorable budget variance will decrease throughout the year and result 
in the department being over budget by $70K. The following report will provide an overview of the 
factors that contribute to the budget variances, elaborate on the reasoning behind the projections, 
and identify potential risks that could influence the departments’ financial results in 2024.   
 
Salary and Benefits 
 
In Q1, expenditures in the salaries and benefits accounts have come in $650K under budget. 
However, our forecast indicates that these accounts will align closely with the budgeted figures for 
2024 or may slightly exceed them. The recent ratification of the sworn members' contract ensures 
that salaries for the remainder of the year are relativity fixed. Nevertheless, a more precise 



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 2 

 

assessment will be possible next quarter once the retroactive payments are finalized. Overtime was 
12% over budget in Q1 but a significant portion of this overtime was related to special projects and 
costs were recovered via grants.   
 
Contracted Services 
 
There is currently a $60K positive variance within the contracted services accounts and the forecast 
indicates a positive variance should hold during the 2024 fiscal year if all assumptions remain 
constant.  
 
Education and Training  
 
In our 2024 budget planning, the department aimed to secure additional recruit intake spots at the 
Justice Institute of British Columbia (JIBC). Consequently, we requested temporary one-time 
funding of $116K to accommodate an additional five recruits, beyond our annual plan of nine 
recruits per fiscal year. At present, we have hired eight recruits, but the exact number of seats 
secured for September remains uncertain. For the Q1 forecast, we are holding the expectation 
steady at 14 recruits until we receive confirmation regarding the September intake. 
 
General Office and Administration  
 
The general office and administration accounts are currently on track overall. However, the current 
forecast suggests that the department may exceed the budget by $186K. Of this projected overage, 
approximately $100K has been recovered through grants. Legal fees continue to be a challenge for 
the department and the current forecast is based on trends of the first quarter.  
 
Operational Equipment and Other Costs 
 
Operating equipment and other costs are currently $60K over budget but expected to normalize by 
year-end with grant recovery. Clothing allowance is forecasted to exceed budget in 2024 due to 
collective agreement changes, which will be factored into the next budget cycle.  
 
Sales of Service 
 
As of March 31st, the department's revenues fell short by $400K compared to expectations, 
primarily due to timing differences in 2023 receivables. While the department still forecasts an 
overall shortfall, it anticipates this variance to decrease to approximately $250K. This reduction is 
largely driven by a decrease in the number of staff members on secondments, as several members 
have retired, resigned, or returned to their regular duties since the creation of the 2024 Budget. It 
is worth highlighting that reduced salaries will offset any reduction in recoveries for seconded 
members.  



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 3 

 

Grants from other Government  
 
The Grants from Other Governments primarily consist of funding from the Traffic Fine Grant and 
the Gang Suppression Unit Grant (GSU). However, during the first quarter of 2024, the department 
received approximately $600K in funding from the Province for Special Projects. This funding is 
directly related to overages discussed throughout the report within overtime and expenses.  
 
Although the department has observed reductions in the Traffic Fine Grant in recent years, there is 
currently no indication of further reductions for this fiscal period; hence, we have assumed the 
department will receive the full $1.086M budget allocation. 
 
The budget for the GSU Grant in 2024 was set at $663K. The Province has advised that starting 
during the 2024/2025 fiscal period, funding will be withdrawn by 20% per year over the next 5 
fiscal years. Based on this directive, it is estimated that the GSU grant for the 2024-2025 period will 
be capped at a maximum of $500K. Consequently, this adjustment will result in a projected 
shortfall of $180K for the 2024 fiscal year. 
 
OPTIONS 
 
Option #1 – That the New Westminster Police Board receive this report for information 
 
Option #2 – That the New Westminster Police Board provide staff with other direction 
 
Staff recommends option 1. 
 
ATTACHMENT:   
 

A. March 31st Financial Report  
B. 2024 Financial Forecast 
C. March 31st Board Financial Report  
 

This report has been prepared by:  Jacqueline Dairon 
 
Approved for Presentation  
 
 
 
 

Dave Jansen 
Chief Constable 
 
 



                   NEW WESTMINSTER POLICE DEPARTMENT                               
                   BUDGET TO ACTUAL AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

 2024 Annual 
Budget  

 2024 YTD 
Budget  

 Actual March 31, 
2024 

  Budget to 
Actual Variance 

Salaries and Benefits 32,627,000              8,774,390           8,114,430            659,960               
Contracts Services 4,338,000                1,077,715           1,016,268            61,447                 

Education and Training 802,000                   200,500             214,140               (13,640)                

General Office 1,050,000                262,500             283,821               (21,321)                

General Administration 303,500                   75,875               49,344                 26,531                 
Operational Equipment 513,500                   128,375             188,487               (60,112)                
Other Costs 399,000                   99,750               72,533                 27,217                 

Total Operating Expenditures 40,033,000              10,619,105         9,939,023            680,082               

Sale of Services (6,554,000)               (1,638,500)         (1,222,490)           (416,010)              

Grants from Other Governments (1,752,000)               (438,000)            (763,507)              325,507               

Other Revenue (23,000)                    (5,750)                (10,715)                4,965                   

Total Revenues (8,329,000)               (2,082,250)         (1,996,711)           (85,539)                

NET EXPENDITURES 31,704,000              8,536,855           7,942,312            594,543               

P1 of 1



                         NEW WESTMINSTER POLICE DEPARTMENT
                         2024 FINANCIAL FORECAST AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

 2024 Annual 
Budget   YTD Budget 

 Actual March 
31, 2024 

 2024 
Remaining 
Estimates 

 Total 2024 
Forecast 

  Budget to 
Forecast 
Variance 

Salaries and Benefits
Salaries Police 20,325,000         5,472,117          4,666,104         15,002,010   19,668,114       656,886        
Salaries Clerical 2,994,000           806,077             739,298            2,104,954     2,844,252         149,748        
Auxiliary Salaries 364,000              97,998               77,711              293,950        371,661           (7,661)           
Overtime Police 1,719,000           462,267             517,061            1,601,183     2,118,244         (399,244)       
Overtime Clerical 110,000              30,828               21,118              83,353          104,471           5,529             
Overtime ICBC 22,000                4,921                15,000          19,921             2,079             
Overtime Movies 121,000              14,999               4,086                50,000          54,086             66,914          
Benefits Police 5,557,000           1,496,109          1,314,432         4,350,583     5,665,015         (108,015)       
Benefits Clerical 931,000              250,652             242,950            673,585        916,535           14,465          
Employer Health Tax 484,000              143,343             96,376              373,434        469,810           14,190          
Estimate for Cost Increases 430,374            430,374           (430,374)       
Total Salaries and Benefits 32,627,000         8,774,390          8,114,430         24,548,053   32,662,483       (35,483)        

Contracts Services

Services from Other Departments 37,000                   8,694                 11,092              15,000          26,092             10,908          
Transcription Costs 46,000                   9,936                 4,488                38,919          43,407             2,593             
Op Services - 3rd Party 3,909,000             978,685             955,246            2,932,340     3,889,656         21,413          
Prisoner Custodial Services 346,000              80,400               45,441              302,939        348,380           (2,380)           
Total Contracts Services 4,338,000           1,077,715          1,016,268         3,289,199     4,307,535         32,534         

Education and Training

Education and Training 168,000              42,000               56,654              113,346        170,000           (2,000)           
Recruit Training 331,000              82,750               92,860              238,140        331,000           ‐                 
Conferences and Seminars 75,000                18,750               12,190              61,810          74,000             1,000             
Dues and Membership Fees 12,000                3,000                 5,224                10,447          15,671             (3,671)           
Subscription and Reference 11,000                2,750                 6,144                12,288          18,432             (7,432)           
Employee Services 25,000                6,250                 115                   24,000          24,115             885                
Recruitment 175,000              43,750               39,328              137,985.35   177,314           (2,314)           
Service Excellence 5,000                  1,250                 1,625                3,375            5,000               ‐                 
Total Education and Training 802,000              200,500             214,140            601,392        815,532           (13,532)        

General Office
Office Supplies 53,000                13,250               7,837                23,510          31,347             21,653          
Printing and Forms 15,000                3,750                 2,715                8,144            10,858             4,142             
Business Lines 20,000                5,000                 3,493                10,478          13,971             6,029             
Cellular 120,000              30,000               24,728              74,183          98,911             21,089          
Equipment and Furniture 35,000                8,750                 4,586                140,000        144,586           (109,586)       
Computer Equipment 130,000              32,500               16,727              23,273          40,000             90,000          
Computer Operating Costs 140,000              35,000               15,083              84,917          100,000           40,000          
System Usage Fee 475,000              118,750             200,459            479,541        680,000           (205,000)       
Office Operating Costs 21,000                5,250                 2,666                7,997            10,662             10,338          
Records Management 11,000                2,750                 2,353                11,764          14,117             (3,117)           
Courier and Delivery 8,000                  2,000                 2,186                6,557            8,743               (743)              
Postage 6,000                  1,500                 991                   2,972            3,963               2,037             
Advertising and Promotion 16,000                4,000                 -                    15,000          15,000             1,000             
Total General Office 1,050,000           262,500             283,821            888,337        1,172,158         (122,158)      

General Administration
Unscheduled Maintenance 40,000                10,000               729                   40,000          40,729             (729)              
Security Systems 20,000                5,000                 3,636                16,103          19,739             261                
Consultants and Studies 122,000              30,500               3,934                120,000        123,934           (1,934)           
Legal 100,000              25,000               40,658              121,975        162,634           (62,634)         
Volunteer and Community Engagement 20,000                5,000                 92                     19,500          19,592             408                
Bank Charges 1,500                  375                    295                   885               1,180               320                

P1 of 2



                         NEW WESTMINSTER POLICE DEPARTMENT
                         2024 FINANCIAL FORECAST AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

 2024 Annual 
Budget   YTD Budget 

 Actual March 
31, 2024 

 2024 
Remaining 
Estimates 

 Total 2024 
Forecast 

  Budget to 
Forecast 
Variance 

Total General Administration 303,500              75,875               49,344              318,464        367,808           (64,308)        

Operational Equipment
Equipment Operating Costs 28,000                7,000                 3,375                10,125          14,700             14,500          
Radio Communications 310,000              77,500               81,814              238,035        319,849           (9,849)           
Photographic 10,500                2,625                 10,000          10,000             500                
Firearms 75,000                18,750               55,305              24,695          80,000             (5,000)           
Operational Costs - Other 90,000                22,500               47,994              60,000          107,994           (17,994)         
Total Operational Equipment 513,500              128,375             188,487            342,855        532,543           (17,843)        

Other Costs
Appreciation and Hospitality 14,000                3,500                 -                    14,000          14,000             ‐                 
Other Grants and Donations 30,000                7,500                 2,575                25,000          27,575             2,425             
Special Investigations 25,000                6,250                 25,080              25,080             (80)                 
Clothing Allowance 60,000                15,000               16,216              48,649          64,866             (4,866)           
Clothing Issue 215,000              53,750               22,144              141,432.33   163,576           51,424          
Laundry 55,000                13,750               6,517                32,585          39,102             15,898          
Total Other Costs 399,000              99,750               72,533              261,667        334,199           64,801         

Total Operating Expenditures 40,033,000         10,619,105         9,939,023         30,249,965   40,192,257       (155,988)      

Revenues

Sale of Services

Custodial Services (35,000)               (8,750)                (9,325)               (25,675)         (35,000)            ‐                 
Other Sales of Services (340,000)             (85,000)              (48,120)             (281,880)       (330,000)          (10,000)         
3rd Party Cost Recovery Charge (6,074,000)          (1,518,500)         (1,165,045)        (4,659,957)    (5,825,002)       (248,998)       
City Special Event Recovery (105,000)             (26,250)              -                    (105,000)       (105,000)          ‐                 
Sale of Services (6,554,000)          (1,638,500)         (1,222,490)        (5,072,512)    (6,295,002)       (258,998)      

Grants from Other Governments

Grants - Revenue Sharing (1,752,000)          (438,000)            (763,507)           (1,334,437)    (2,097,944)       345,944        
Grants from Other Governments (1,752,000)          (438,000)            (763,507)           (1,334,437)    (2,097,944)       345,944       

Other Revenue

False Alarm Fines (13,000)               (3,250)                (8,300)               (5,000)           (13,300)            300                
Auction Proceeds (10,000)               (2,500)                (2,415)               (7,245)           (9,659)              (341)              
Other Revenue (23,000)               (5,750)                (10,715)             (12,245)         (22,959)            (41)               

Total Revenues (8,329,000)          (2,082,250)         (1,996,711)        (6,419,194)    (8,415,905)       86,905         

Net Operating Expenditures 31,704,000         8,536,855          7,942,312         23,830,771   31,776,352       (69,083)        

P2 of 2



                   NEW WESTMINSTER POLICE DEPARTMENT              
                   BUDGET TO ACTUAL AS AT MARCH 31, 2024
                   POLICE BOARD 

 2024 Annual 
Budget  

 Actual March 31, 
2024 

  Budget to Actual 
Variance 

Conferences and Seminars 20,000                       650                       19,350                  
Dues and Membership Fees 2,000                         2,625                    (625)                      
Consultants and Honorarium 20,700                       2,184                    18,516                  
Total Police Board 42,700                       5,459                    37,241                  

P1 of 1



 
 

  
 
 

 
R E P O R T  

 
 

To: Mayor Patrick Johnstone and Members of 
the New Westminster Police Board 

Date: May 21, 2024 

    
From: Inspector Andrew Perry 

 
Item #:  

Subject: Facility Asset Management Plan (FAMP) – Police Building 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the New Westminster Police Board (“Board”) receive this report for information purposes. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information from the City of New 
Westminster’s first Facility Asset Management Plan (‘FAMP’) relevant to the Police Building. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of New Westminster’s first FAMP was developed following the strategies and direction 
of the City of New Westminster’s 2019 Asset Management Strategy. The purpose of the first 
FAMP is to: 
 

 form part of the wider Asset Management strategy and approach; 

 provide a baseline for the current condition of the Building Asset Class; 

 provide direction on the ‘future state’ through Levels of Service discussions, and serve as a 
strategic and financial document based on ‘current’ and ‘future’ state understandings;  

 identify gaps and areas for improvement from an Asset Management Perspective related to 
the Building Asset Class; and 

 act as a tool to inform staff recommendations and priorities on renewal, upgrade and 
growth projects for City owned buildings and sites. 
 



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 2 

 

The FAMP aligns with the City’s area of focus on ‘Asset Management and Infrastructure’ as 
outlined in 2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan and the goal to provide resilient infrastructure 
that meets the community’s needs today and into the future. The FAMP is a document 
developed to support the City in managing its existing Building assets in a sustainable, efficient, 
and financially responsible manner. As the FAMP improves over time, it will help the City 
understand the balance between existing asset needs and the growth and upgrade 
considerations to meet the needs of the City’s growing and changing population. 
 
Summary of Key Terminology:  
 
To help improve understanding of terminology used in this report, below is a list of Key Terms 
related to the FAMP. A more detailed Glossary is included in the Facilities Asset Management 
Plan: 
 

 Renewals - works to replace or rehabilitate existing assets or building components with 
assets or components of equivalent capacity or performance capability; i.e., 
rehabilitation or  replacement with ‘like for like’ components or assets, 

 Upgrades - works to replace existing assets or building components with assets or 
components of improved performance capability, 

 Growth/ Expansion - work to increase the existing capacity of the Building Asset class. 
For example, the addition of new space or facilities to the Building Asset Class, 

 Service Area - to add an additional layer of analysis, through the FAMP the  City’s 
Buildings are categorized into the following ‘Service Areas’ as part of the asset 
hierarchy: Engineering, Electrical, Culture & Administrative (including: Irving House, 
Museum Annex, the Fraser River Discovery Centre, Massey Theatre, City Hall, Bernie 
Legge Theatre, Anvil Centre), Fire & Rescue Services, Library, Police Department, Parks, 
Recreation,  

 Level of Service (LOS) - established objectives that the City intends to deliver through its 
facilities. Established LOS inform renewals, upgrades and growth work along with the 
estimated costs to complete this work,  

 Facility Condition Assessment (FCA) - a process to visually assess the condition of each 
facility in the Building Asset Class and to document the identified renewal needs. This 
process is needed to establish a current building condition baseline (i.e. ‘where we are 
now’) in order to inform the FAMP work. The most recent FCA was completed prior to 
the start of the FAMP. FCAs are typically completed every five years with the next one 
scheduled for 2028, 

 Facility Condition Index (FCI) - a metric, in percentage form, that is used to estimate the 
condition rating of a building on a five point scale ranging from ‘Very Poor’ to ‘Very 
Good’. FCI is calculated by dividing the total cost of the needed renewals (as determined 
in the FCA) over a five year period, by the facility’s current total replacement cost. The 
FCI rating does not consider upgrade or growth work, 



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 3 

 

 Replacement Cost - The estimated cost to replace a capital asset with a similar asset 
based on studies, appraisals (such as a Facility Condition Assessment), industry 
standards, actual experience and considering escalation costs.  

 
KEY FINDINGS 
 

 As the City’s first FAMP, this document acts more as a baseline document, with future 
updates progressing toward a tactical plan. It is anticipated that the Building Asset Class’ 
Asset Management maturity and the information within the FAMP will continually improve 
with each iteration (planned to be updated for every five years moving forward). 

 Average Building Condition (current state) is ‘fair’: 71.3% of the City’s facilities are 
estimated to be in ‘Fair’ or better condition. The average condition of ‘Fair’ means that in 
general, the average City facility requires attention as it shows signs of deterioration with 
some elements exhibiting deficiencies.  

 Identified Financial Gap: to maintain the current average building condition rating of ‘Fair’, 
an additional average budget of $3.5 million per year is needed above the currently planned 
annual Capital Plan Renewal Budget. This means that the average condition rating is 
anticipated to deteriorate in the upcoming years if the funding gap remains.  

 Identified Data Gaps related to Establishing Levels of Service: the FAMP work has 
demonstrated that additional data is needed to improve the City’s overall understanding of 
Levels of Service for work related to improvements (upgrades) or building capacity 
(growth/expansion). Some of this work is already underway through Master Plans and 
studies, and it is anticipated that the next FAMP update will close some of these gaps as 
Master Plans and studies are completed.  

 
STATE OF POLICE BUILDING 
 
The following provides a summary of the state of the Police Building: 
 

 The Police Building is 85 years old (built in 1939) and had a major renovation in 2001. 

 The Police Building condition was “Good”, it is 1 of 2 City of New Westminster buildings that 
achieved the highest rating along with Recreation. “Good” means the facility is in good 
condition; will look clean and functional some elements show general signs of deterioration 
that requires attention. Repairs and replacement are more of an aesthetic or general 
nature, such as wall painting, carpet replacement, roof repair, window caulking. 

 “Good” has a Facility Condition Index (FCI) range of >5 to 15%,  

  “Very good” was the highest possible rating with a FCI range of 0 to 5%. 

 The Police Building replacement value = $28,462,060 and an FCI of 7.9%. Note: The Police 
Building is owned as an air space parcel located in the building located at 549 Columbia St.  
This building is on the City’s Heritage Register. The replacement value and FCI calculation in 
the FAMP are based off the data gathered as part of the Facility Condition Assessment (FCA) 
that was completed in 2022. The FCA data was calculated on the building components 
inside the building envelope only, and did not include the exterior façade or exterior 

http://arcgis.newwestcity.ca/images/heritageregister/sos/SOS_0045.pdf


New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 4 

 

windows as information on the ownership of these exterior elements was not available at 
the time of the 2022 FCA. The façade and windows are to be included in the next FCA 
(scheduled for 2028), and work is needed to understand how Heritage Assets are 
appropriately considered from an FCI perspective as part of improvement work for the next 
FAMP. Inclusion of the exterior façade could impact the replacement value and FCI of the 
Police Building in future FAMPs.  

 For Emergency facilities for Police and Fire Services, health and safety is the main impact. 
These facilities are critical as there is a potential for fatalities and serious injury if these 
facilities are not in operation, assigned high risk rating. 

 Upgrades currently included in the 2023 to 2027 Capital plan include upgrades of the 
change rooms and washrooms at the Police Building to be non-gendered and universal. 

 The Fourth Street parkade replacement value = $15,742,500. 

 The Fourth Street parkade and elevator was considered in “Fair” condition. “Fair” means 
the asset requires attention, the asset shows signs of deterioration and some elements 
exhibit deficiencies. 

 “Fair” has a FCI range of >15 to 30%. 

 The Fourth Street parkade has a FCI of 17.5%. 

 The NWPD is part of the City of New Westminster’s Accessibility Committee, which is made 
up of community members and staff liaisons from the New Westminster Public Library, City 
of New Westminster, and the NWPD. This Committee has been established in response to 
the implementation of the Accessible B.C. Act and Regulation.  The purpose of the 
Committee will be to plan to improve accessibility to City of New Westminster Buildings for 
the benefit of the employees who work there and the people they serve. 

 
FACILITY ASSET MANAGEMENT PLANNING PROCESS 
 
The City of New Westminster sought feedback from the NWPD regarding the facility asset 
management planning process.  The NWPD provided feedback that the NWPD does not 
currently have a master plan for space planning needs.  In advance of completing a Master Plan 
or Space Planning Study, NWPD has identified the current qualitative space needs as identified 
below: 

 
1) Space for additional lockers for current staff, 
2) Space to accommodate a projected fifteen (15) new officers over three (3) years as part 

of the backfill strategy, specifically additional change room and locker spaces. 
 
CAPITAL PLANNING PROCESS – UPGRADE & GROWTH PROJECTS  
 

 The first FAMP iteration is a baseline document and has shown that ‘upgrade’ and ‘growth’ 
projects should be tied to discussions about Levels of Service targets (informed by 
quantitative metrics defined through Master Plans, Space Planning work or Feasibility 
Studies).  



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 5 

 

 Civic Buildings & Properties (CB&P) is initiating/overseeing an upgrade analysis and 
resultant capital planning work in the areas of Accessibility and Energy/Emissions for the 
facilities portfolio as a whole. In order to address other upgrade or growth projects (such as 
requests to add or renovate space), Service Areas need to quantify the building function 
and building capacity needs by commissioning appropriate master plans, planning studies 
and/or feasibility studies. CB&P can support in the delivery of these studies, but require the 
host service area to initiate the request and secure capital funding.   

 Even if funding is secured, corporate Facility Staff resources are limited and spread across 
the entire civic building portfolio. External consultant project management should be 
included as a necessary expense when estimating project budgets. 

 
NEXT STEPS:  
 
The NWPD supports the FAMP recommendation to develop a Police Building Master Plan or 
Space Planning Study, to define quantitative metrics in order to understand how much space 
the NWPD will need. The NWPD will need to secure capital funding to begin this work and will 
discuss with the CB&P, what space planning work will fall under the NWPD’s responsibility and 
what will fall under the City of New Westminster’s responsibility prior to beginning any work.  
The NWPD will coordinate with CB&P as needed for preliminary advice and/or support, and 
may consider external consultant project management as needed.   
 
In advance of the Master Plan or Space Planning work, the NWPD will explore opportunities for 
efficiencies with the existing space, including:  

 
1) Allowing employees who work a hybrid remote schedule to share an office. For 

example, recent changes allowing civilian employees to work remotely have provided 
some space flexibility options that did not exist previously,  

2) Requesting Supervisors to be creative and flexible when planning staff levels in 
consideration of space availability. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
The FAMP serves as the guiding document to manage the City’s facility infrastructure effectively 
and efficiently. This FAMP will require continual improvement of the asset management 
practices employed as part of the City’s asset management journey. The ‘Implementation & 
Continuous Improvement’ section in the FAMP document provides recommended activities 
that will help evolve and improve the City’s Facility Asset Management Plan through each 
iteration.   
The NWPD will remain engaged with the City to help address the Police Building space planning 
needs. 
 
OPTIONS 
 
1) That the Board receive this report for information purposes.   



New Westminster Police Department            May 21, 2024 6 

 

 
2) That the Board provide further direction. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommend that the Board approve option 1. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
1. City of New Westminster Council Workshop Agenda – February 26, 2024 – Re: FAMP (130 

pages) 
 
This report has been prepared by: 
 

 
____________________________ 
Inspector Andrew Perry 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP
AGENDA

 
Monday, February 26, 2024, 4:00 p.m.

Meeting held electronically and open to public attendance
Council Chamber, City Hall

We recognize and respect that New Westminster is on the unceded and unsurrendered land of the
Halkomelem speaking peoples. We acknowledge that colonialism has made invisible their histories
and connections to the land. As a City, we are learning and building relationships with the people
whose lands we are on.
 
LIVE WEBCAST: Please note City Council Meetings, Public Hearings, Council Workshops and some
Special City Council Meetings are streamed online and are accessible through the City’s website at
http://www.newwestcity.ca/council  

Pages

1. CALL TO ORDER AND LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Mayor will open the meeting and provide a land acknowledgement.

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
As circulated or as amended (urgent/time sensitive matters only)

3. PRESENTATIONS

3.1 Facilities Asset Management Plan (FAMP)

a. Presentation (On Table) 3

b. Report 32
To provide the City’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan
(FAMP) to Council for endorsement.

Recommendation:
THAT  Council  endorse  the  City’s  first  Facilities  Asset
Management Plan.

4. END OF THE MEETING
 

 

http://www.newwestcity.ca/council


*Some personal information is collected and archived by the City of New
Westminster under Section 26(g)(ii) of the Freedom of Information and
Protection of Privacy Act and for the purpose of the City's ongoing commitment
to open and transparent government. If you have any questions about the
collection of personal information please contact Legislative Services, 511 Royal
Avenue, New Westminster, V3L 1H9, 604-527-4523.

Page 2 of 130



1SLIDE :

CITY OF NEW 
WESTMINSTER
FACILITIES ASSET 
MANAGEMENT PLAN
COUNCIL WORKSHOP
FEB 26th, 2024

ON TABLE
Council Workshop
February 26, 2024
re: Item 3.1.a

Page 3 of 130



2SLIDE :

Introduction PLAN
• Plan development 

• City’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan; work has been underway 
since 2019;  

• Informed by 2022 Facility Condition Assessment (2022);

• Based on and adapted according to data and financial information as it 
became available.

• Consultant Team: 
• SLBC (advisory professionals with extensive experience in leading 

Asset Management Programs across Canada) with WSP (peer review)
• Project leads: 

• Aman Singh M.Eng, MBA, P.Eng, PMP, AMP (Managing 
Partner)

• Thomas Uda P.Eng, PMP (Engagement Manager)

Staff Stakeholders Consulted from:

• Engineering 
• Parks & Recreation
• Electrical
• Climate Action
• Planning & Development
• Museum Services 
• Community Arts & Theatre
• Anvil Centre 
• Fire & Rescue Services
• Library
• Police
• Finance
• Human Resources
• Information Technology 
• Asset Management Steering 

Committee
• Senior Management Team

Page 4 of 130



3SLIDE :

AGENDA

• What is Asset Management?
• Project Objective & Approach
• Key Messages
• State of Infrastructure
• Levels of Service Framework
• Renewal Needs and Funding Gap
• Growth & Upgrade Considerations 
• Next Steps

Page 5 of 130



What is Asset Management?

4

• Seeking to minimize total costs of 
acquiring, operating, maintaining, and 
renewing assets

• Within an environment of limited 
resources

• While continuously delivering the 
service levels customers need and 
regulators require

• At an acceptable level of risk to the 
organization

Level of 
Service

Cost of 
Service Risk

Page 6 of 130



The purpose of the first Facility Asset Management Plan (FAMP) is to:
• Form part of the wider Asset Management strategy and approach
• Provide a baseline for the current condition of the Building Asset 

Class
• Provide direction on the ‘future state’ (ie. where the City wants to go) 

through Levels of Service discussions
• Act as a tool to inform staff recommendations and priorities on 

renewal, upgrade and growth projects for City owned buildings and 
sites

• Identify gaps and areas for improvement

Project Objective

5
Page 7 of 130



• Alignment with key strategic goals and objectives for 
infrastructure management and service delivery

• Focus on ‘Asset Management and Infrastructure’ 
per 2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan

• Building on existing AM practices and initiatives
• Introducing best and leading AM practices / standards 
• FAMP was developed with City Staff from February 2023 

to January 2024
• Collaborative process engaging City Staff through 

various workshops and review of project 
deliverables

• On-going sharing and transferring knowledge 
between SLBC and City staff

Project Approach

6
Page 8 of 130



• Iterative Document: as the City’s first FAMP, this document acts 
more as a baseline document, with future updates progressing 
toward a tactical plan.

• Average Building Condition (current state) is ‘fair’: 71.3% of the 
City’s facilities are estimated to be in ‘Fair’ or better condition. 

• Identified Financial Gap: shortfall is an average $2.5 million per 
year to maintain the City’s current building condition

• Identified Data Gaps related to Establishing Levels of Service: 
improve the City’s overall understanding of Levels of Service for 
work related to upgrades and growth/expansion

Key Messages

7
Page 9 of 130



• City’s 70 facilities have an estimated replacement value of $506 million.

State of Infrastructure

8

Service Area
# of 

Facilities
Total

Engineering 15 $91,326,101

Electrical 1 $3,264,000

Culture & Administrative* 8 $144,101,032

Fire & Rescue Services 3 $12,630,243
Library 1 $17,989,910

Police Department 1 $28,462,060
Parks 33 $25,636,487

Recreation 8 $183,047,064

Overall 70 $506,456,896

* Irving House, Museum Annex, Fraser River Discover Centre (FRDC), Massey Theatre, City Hall, Bernie Legge Theatre, Anvil Centre

Page 10 of 130



• City’s 70 facilities have an average age of 36.9 years (weighted by 
value).

State of Infrastructure

9
Page 11 of 130



• Average Building 
Condition (current 
state) is ‘fair’: 
Average Facility 
Condition Index is 
17.5%

State of Infrastructure

10

Condition Facility Condition 
Index Condition Description

Very Good 0 to 5%
The facility is generally in very good condition, typically new or recently 
rehabilitated. A few elements may require minor attention. Facilities staff time 
will be devoted to regular scheduled maintenance.

Good >5 to 15%

The facility is in good condition; will look clean and functional some elements 
show general signs of deterioration that requires attention. Repairs and 
replacement are more of an aesthetic or general nature, such as wall painting, 
carpet replacement, roof repair, window caulking. Facilities staff time will be 
devoted to regular scheduled maintenance.

Fair >15 to 30%

The facility is in fair condition; it shows general signs of deterioration and 
requires attention. Repairs and replacement of specific systems, i.e. boiler, 
window replacements, interior renovations. Facilities staff time may at times 
be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance.

Average 
Current 

Condition

Poor >30 to 60%

The facility is in poor condition, Facilities will look worn with apparent and 
increasing deterioration. Replacement of specific major systems required, 
such as heating and plumbing systems, complete interior renovations, 
building envelope restoration Facilities staff time will likely be diverted from 
regular scheduled maintenance and forced to “reactive” mode.

Very Poor >60%
Facilities will look worn with obvious deterioration. Replacement of multiple 
systems required (i.e. Mechanical, Electrical, Architectural and Structural Staff 
will not be able to provide regular scheduled maintenance due to high level
of “reactive” calls.

Facility Condition 
Index (FCI)

Page 12 of 130



State of Infrastructure

11

• Average Building Condition (current state) is ‘fair’: 71.3% of the City’s 
facilities are estimated to be in ‘Fair’ or better condition.

Service Area FCI (5-
Year)

Average 
Condition

Engineering 16.8% Fair
Electrical 36.7% Poor

Culture & Administrative 23.1% Fair
Fire & Rescue Services 28.6% Fair

Library 18.4% Fair
Police Department 11.3% Good

Parks 46.0% Poor
Recreation 9.9% Good

Overall 17.5% Fair

Page 13 of 130



AM Plan and Levels of Service Framework

12
Page 14 of 130



Levels of Service

13

• The 2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan provides five areas of focus that 
reflect the needs of the community and in turn guide the management of the 
City’s assets.

Strategic Plan Focus 
Area

Supporting Goals

Community Belonging 
and Connecting

A community where everyone belongs and has the opportunity to connect 
and contribute.

Homes and Housing 
Options

Clear the way for all types of homes needed by people today and tomorrow, 
prioritizing homes for those with the greatest need.

People-Centered 
Economy

A local, nimble, resilient economy that serves our local community.

Safe Movement of 
People

Prioritize the movement of people on foot, cycle and transit on streets that 
are safer for all.

Asset Management 
and Infrastructure

Resilient infrastructure that meets the community’s needs today and into the 
future.

Page 15 of 130



Capital Lifecycle Activity Definitions

14

• Renewal - works to replace or rehabilitate existing assets or building 
components with assets or components of equivalent capacity or 
performance capability; i.e., rehabilitation or replacement with like for like 
components or assets

• Upgrade - works to replace existing assets or building components with 
assets or components of improved performance capability.

• Growth/Expansion - works to increase the existing capacity of the Building 
Asset class. For example, the addition of new space or facilities to the 
Building Asset Class.

Page 16 of 130



Renewal Needs

15

• Renewal needs are driven by the service level for maintaining assets in 
‘fair’ condition (FCI ~17%)

Customer Performance Measure Technical Performance Measure

Performance Measure Target
Current 

Performance
Performance Measure Target

Current 
Performance

% of facilities in Fair or 
better condition (based on 
FCI)  

Maintain Current 
Performance*

71.3%
Facility Condition Index 
(Overall Average)

Maintain 
~17%

17.5% 

(Fair)

• Scenario 4: Maintain service level (FCI 
~17%) requires $6.8 million average annual 
expenditure over next 10 years (1.4% 
reinvestment rate) on existing assets

• Canadian Infrastructure Report Card (2016) 
recommends that municipalities invest 
1.7% to 2.5% annually

Page 17 of 130



Renewal Needs and Funding Gap

16

• Scenarios 1 to 3 align with the funding scenarios discussed as part of the 
Council Budget Workshop on October 16th, 2023 regarding the 2024-2028 
Five-Year Financial Plan

• Scenario 1: provides $16.6 million in 
renewal funding (2024 to 2028)

• Scenario 2: Scenario 1 + $5M (aligns 
with proposed 2024-2028 Financial 
Plan)

• Scenario 3: Scenario 1 + $17.5M 
(additional $2.5 in 2024, continued
incremental $0.5 million added to each 
subsequent year)

• Scenario 4: Maintain FCI Scenario

Page 18 of 130



Renewal Needs and Funding Gap

17

• Identified Financial Gap: to maintain the current average building condition 
rating of ‘Fair’, an additional average budget of $2.5 million per year

• Scenario 1: provides $16.6 million in 
renewal funding (2024 to 2028)

• Scenario 2: Scenario 1 + $5M (aligns 
with proposed 2024-2028 Financial 
Plan)

• Scenario 3: Scenario 1 + $17.5M 
(additional $2.5 in 2024, continued
incremental $0.5 million added to each 
subsequent year)

• Scenario 4: Maintain FCI Scenario

Page 19 of 130



Renewal Needs and Funding Gap

18

Year 6 to 10 Assumptions:
• Scenario 1: no renewal 

funding
• Scenario 2: continued $2.5M 

per year
• Scenario 3: continued

incremental $0.5 million added 
to each subsequent year from 
the previous year

• Scenario 4: maintain $6.8 
million per year

FCI Forecast Comparison
Scenario 1 - $16.6M in Renewal Funding (2024-2028) Scenario 2 – Scenario 1 + $5M (proposed 2024-

2028 Financial Plan)   

  

Scenario 3 – Scenario 1 + $17.5M Scenario 4 - ‘Maintain FCI Scenario’ 

  

 Page 20 of 130



19

Discussion:

1. Does Council support a Level of Service target of maintaining current 

“fair” FCI?

2. Does Council support staff using the annual Capital Planning process 

as the mechanism for addressing the funding gap?

Page 21 of 130



Prioritizing Renewal Needs (Risk)

20

PoF 
Ratin
g

Facility 
Conditio

n
FCI

1 Very Good 0 to 5%
2 Good >5 to 15%
3 Fair >15 to 30%
4 Poor >30 to 60%
5 Very Poor >60%

Risk = Consequence of Failure (CoF) x Probability of Failure (PoF)

• CoF Rating scale based on City’s Strategic 
Asset Management Plan

Page 22 of 130



Prioritizing Renewal Needs (Risk)

21

• FAMP provides a preliminary assessment of quality and reliability risk
• High-level assessment for understanding the City’s risk exposure at a facility-level
• Facilities with a value of $119.2 million are currently estimated to be in the Very High 

risk category

Page 23 of 130



Growth & Upgrade Considerations

22

• Identified Data Gaps related to Establishing Levels of Service: the FAMP 
work has demonstrated that additional data is needed to improve the City’s 
overall understanding of Levels of Service for work related to improvements 
(upgrades) or building capacity (growth/expansion).

• Growth: City is currently developing capacity service levels through on-going 
Master Plans and other future studies. Update to this FAMP will consider 
capacity service levels established in these future plans and the potential 
need for new facilities; current work includes:

• Update to the Parks & Recreation Comprehensive Plan
• Facility space planning strategy
• Update to Child Care Strategy
• Fire Master Plan 

Page 24 of 130



Growth & Upgrade Considerations

23

• Upgrade Considerations: 
• Accessibility: Accessibility Plan will develop actions to mitigate risks related to inaccessible 

spaces. Currently planned upgrades include universal washrooms.
• Other upgrade projects include EV charging station infrastructure, new bicycle parking, and 

upgrades at Massey Theatre
• Climate Change and Energy Efficiency: City has set specific GHG emission reduction 

recommendations and targets. $1.1M of GHG emission reduction projects are planned in the 
proposed 2024 to 2028 Financial Plan.

Technical Performance Measure

Performance Measure Target
Current 

Performance
Annual energy consumption (natural gas/electricity) per 
sq.m. (energy intensity)

* 0.97 GJ/sq.m.*

Total GHG emissions (tC02e) for City buildings 2030: 1,038 tC02e 2022: 1535 tC02e

Page 25 of 130



Forecast and Gap Summary

24

Asset Lifecycle
5-Yr Total Forecast 

Needs
5-Yr Total Planned 

Funding
5-Yr Total Gap Comments

Capital Growth Not identified $3.7M
No identified 
shortfall over 
5-year plan

On-going and future Master Plans by Service Areas 
will confirm growth needs

Capital Upgrade Not identified $12.5M
No identified 
shortfall over 
5-year plan

On-going and future Master Plans by Service Areas 
and future Accessibility Plan will confirm upgrade  
needs

Capital Renewal
$34.1M

(Scenario 4)

$21.6M

(Scenario 2)

$12.5M 
(~$2.5M/yr)

Funding scenarios are recommended to be reviewed 
to determine an appropriate service level balanced 
against the associated costs and risks.

• Operating Budget: 2023 operating budget of $1.8 million related to utility costs, subcontracts, 
maintenance

• Budget pressures related to scheduled and unscheduled maintenance
• Budget needs to be increased to account for the addition of the new TACC facility to the City’s 

asset portfolio
• City is currently working on implementing improved tracking of costs through CMMS 

(Computerized Maintenance Management System)

Page 26 of 130



Improvement Initiatives and Next Steps

25

• Improve accuracy of facility replacement values and project costs
• Develop Service Area Master Plans and studies; identify growth and functional 

service levels with quantifiable targets
• Align 2024-2028 Financial Plan more closely with the renewal data captured 

through the recent Facility Condition Assessment 
• Develop a system-level risk registry assessment in line with the framework 

outlined in the Strategic Asset Management Plan
• Consider vulnerability assessments for critical facilities to increase resiliency
• Develop long term funding strategies to address funding gaps and 

improvements to how renewal work is formally prioritized.

Page 27 of 130



26

Discussion:

1. Additional work is required to quantify accessibility upgrade gaps. 

Does Council support a facilities accessibility audit to identify upgrade 

needs and funding gaps? 

2. Additional work is required to establish capacity metrics across all 

departmental service areas in order to forecast growth needs/gaps. 

Does Council support this quantitative approach based on Master 

Plan development?

Page 28 of 130



27

Recommendation:

THAT Council endorse the City’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan. 

Page 29 of 130



28SLIDE :

QUESTIONS

Page 30 of 130



29SLIDE :

www.slbc-inc.com

Page 31 of 130



mnLegis 
 

R E P O R T  
Engineering Services 

 

To: Mayor Johnstone and Members of 

Council 
Date:           February 26, 2024 

    

From: Lisa Leblanc File: 05.1035.10 

 Director of Engineering Services   (EDMS 2433087) 

 

  Item #:  2024-86 

 

Subject:        
 
Facilities Asset Management Plan (FAMP) 2024 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Council endorse the City’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan.  
 

 
PURPOSE 
 
To provide the City’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan (FAMP) to Council for 
endorsement. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of New Westminster’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan (‘FAMP’) is a 
written document (Attachment 1) developed following the strategies and direction of the 
City of New Westminster’s 2019 Asset Management Strategy (SAMP). The purpose of the 
first Facilities Asset Management Plan is to: 
 

 form part of the City’s wider Asset Management strategy and approach, 

 provide a baseline for the current condition of the Building Asset Class,  

 provide direction on the ‘future state’ (i.e. where the City wants to go) through 

Levels of Service discussions, and serve as a strategic and financial document 

based on ‘current’ and ‘future’ state understandings,  

 identify gaps and areas for improvement from an Asset Management perspective 

related to the Building Asset Class,  

Page 32 of 130

https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/Asset_Management_Strategy(SAMP)_Final_Draft_pdf.pdf


City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 2 

 

 act as a tool to inform staff recommendations and priorities on renewals, upgrades 

and growth projects for City-owned buildings and sites. 

 
The FAMP aligns with the City’s area of focus on ‘Asset Management and Infrastructure’ 
as outlined in 2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan and the goal to provide resilient 
infrastructure that meets the community’s needs today and into the future. The FAMP is 
a document developed to support the City in managing its existing building assets in a 
sustainable, efficient, and financially responsible manner. As the FAMP improves over 
time, it will help the City understand the balance between existing asset needs and growth 
and upgrade considerations to meet the needs of the City’s growing and changing 
population.  
 

Summary of Key Terminology:  
 
To help improve understanding of terminology used in this report, below is a list of Key 
Terms related to the FAMP. A more detailed Glossary is included in the Facilities Asset 
Management Plan (Attachment 1): 
 

 Renewals - works to replace or rehabilitate existing assets or building components 
with assets or components of equivalent capacity or performance capability; i.e., 
rehabilitation or  replacement with ‘like for like’ components or assets, 

 Upgrades - works to replace existing assets or building components with assets 
or components of improved performance capability, 

 Growth/ Expansion - work to increase the existing capacity of the Building Asset 
class. For example, the addition of new space or facilities to the Building Asset 
Class, 

 Service Area - to add an additional layer of analysis, through the FAMP the  City’s 
Buildings are categorized into the following ‘Service Areas’ as part of the asset 
hierarchy: Engineering, Electrical, Culture & Administrative (including: Irving 
House, Museum Annex, the Fraser River Discovery Centre, Massey Theatre, City 
Hall, Bernie Legge Theatre, Anvil Centre), Fire & Rescue Services, Library, Police 
Department, Parks, Recreation,  

 Level of Service (LOS) - established objectives that the City intends to deliver 
through its facilities. Established LOS inform renewals, upgrades and growth work 
along with the estimated costs to complete this work,  

 Facility Condition Assessment (FCA) - a process to visually assess the 
condition of each facility in the Building Asset Class and to document the identified 
renewal needs. This process is needed to establish a current building condition 
baseline (i.e. ‘where we are now’) in order to inform the FAMP work. The most 
recent FCA was completed prior to the start of the FAMP. FCAs are typically 
completed every five years with the next one scheduled for 2028, 

 Facility Condition Index (FCI) - a metric, in percentage form, that is used to 
estimate the condition rating of a building on a five point scale ranging from ‘Very 

Page 33 of 130



City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 3 

 

Poor’ to ‘Very Good’. FCI is calculated by dividing the total cost of the needed 
renewals (as determined in the FCA) over a five year period, by the facility’s current 
total replacement cost. The FCI rating does not consider upgrade or growth work, 

 Replacement Cost - The estimated cost to replace a capital asset with a similar 
asset based on studies, appraisals (such as a Facility Condition Assessment), 
industry standards, actual experience and considering escalation costs.  

 
DISCUSSION 
 
Key Findings from the First FAMP Iteration:  
 
Iterative Document 
 
As the City’s first FAMP, this document acts more as a baseline document, with future 
updates progressing toward a tactical plan. The Building Asset Class’ Asset Management 
maturity and the information within the FAMP is anticipated to continually improve with 
each iteration (planned to be updated for every five years moving forward). 
 
Current Average Building Condition is ‘Fair’   
 
The City’s first step in developing the FAMP is understanding the facilities that it owns. 
The City owns 70 Facilities with an estimated replacement value of $506.5 million. A list 
of the City’s Facilities can be viewed in Appendix A of the FAMP document (Attachment 
1). The average age of the City’s 70 facilities is 36.9 years. 
 
The FAMP uses a Facility Condition Index (FCI) to articulate the condition rating of the 
City’s Building Asset Class on a five-point scale ranging from ‘Very Poor’ to ‘Very Good’. 
The FCI rating is related specifically to renewal work, not upgrades or growth work. Based 
on the FCI, the FAMP analysis shows that 71.3% of the City’s facilities are estimated to 
be in ‘Fair’ or better condition and the average building condition is  ‘Fair’ (FCI of 17.5%) 
(See Figure 1). An average ‘Fair’ condition means that the average City facility shows 
general signs of deterioration and requires attention, repairs and replacement of specific 
systems are typically needed, such as boiler, window replacements, interior renovations 
and facilities staff time may at times be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance. 
 

Figure 1. Conversion Table for Condition Grades and Facility Condition Index 

Condition 
Facility 

Condition 
Index 

Condition Description 

 

Very Good 0 to 5% 
The facility is generally in very good condition, typically new or recently 
rehabilitated. A few elements may require minor attention. Facilities 
staff time will be devoted to regular scheduled maintenance. 

 

Page 34 of 130



City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 4 

 

Good >5 to 15% 

The facility is in good condition; will look clean and functional some 
elements show general signs of deterioration that requires attention. 
Repairs and replacement are more of an aesthetic or general nature, 
such as wall painting, carpet replacement, roof repair, window 
caulking. Facilities staff time will be devoted to regular scheduled 
maintenance. 

 

Fair >15 to 30% 

The facility is in fair condition; it shows general signs of deterioration 
and requires attention. Repairs and replacement of specific systems, 
i.e. boiler, window replacements, interior renovations. Facilities staff 
time may at times be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance. 

Average 
Current 

Condition 

Poor >30 to 60% 

The facility is in poor condition, Facilities will look worn with apparent 
and increasing deterioration. Replacement of specific major systems 
required, such as heating and plumbing systems, complete interior 
renovations, building envelope restoration Facilities staff time will likely 
be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance and forced to 
“reactive” mode. 

 

Very Poor >60% 

Facilities will look worn with obvious deterioration. 
Replacement of multiple systems required (i.e. Mechanical, 
Electrical, Architectural and Structural Staff will not be able 
to provide regular scheduled maintenance due to high level 
of “reactive” calls. 

 

 

Identified Financial Gap for Renewals (‘like for like’ replacements or repairs) 
 
There is a financial gap between renewal needs identified through the Facility Condition 
Assessment work (2022) and the proposed 2024-2028 budget for renewal work (i.e., 
maintenance and repair projects replaced with ‘like for like’ replacements). To maintain 
the current average building condition rating of ‘Fair’, an additional average budget of 
$2.5 million per year is needed above the currently proposed annual budget for renewal 
work (as per the 2024-2028 Financial Plan). If the gap remains, the average building 
condition (FCI of 17.5%) will worsen. This is discussed in more detail in the ‘Financial 
Implications’ section of this report and in the ‘Financial Strategy Section’ in the FAMP 
(Attachment 1).   

 
Identified Data Gaps related to Establishing Levels of Service for Upgrades 
(improvements) and Growth (adding new space or assets)  
 

The FAMP work has demonstrated that additional data is needed to improve the City’s 
overall understanding of Levels of Service for work related to improvements (upgrades) 
or building capacity (growth and expansion). Some of this work is already underway 
through Master Plans and studies, and the next FAMP update is anticipated to close some 
of these gaps as Master Plans and studies are completed.  

 

Page 35 of 130



City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 5 

 

NEXT STEPS 
 
Development of Asset Management Plans is an iterative process that requires improving 
data, processes, systems, staff skills, and organizational culture over time. 
Recommended improvement initiatives are listed in the ‘Implementation & Continuous 
Improvement’ of the Facilities Asset Management Plan (Attachment 1).  
 

The next Facility Condition Assessment is planned for 2028 and the next FAMP iteration 
is anticipated for 2029.  
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The City currently has $1.1M of Green House Gas (GHG) emission reduction projects 
planned in the 2024 to 2028 Capital Plan to support its GHG emission reduction targets 
(See Section 6.1.3.2 of the FAMP). The available Level of Service data related to 
sustainability upgrades is primarily informed by the Corporate Energy & Emissions 
Reduction Strategy 2020 (CEERS 2020).  
 
A recommended annual ongoing activity listed in the FAMP is to “Review Climate Change 
Impacts: Monitor climate change impacts to facility infrastructure to understand ongoing 
resilience of facility assets. Incorporate findings into capital plans and revisions to the 
FAMP (Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024); page 50)”. 
 
In addition, there are a number of Climate Action recommendations listed in the 
‘Improvement Plan’ (Section 7.4) of the FAMP including: 

 Complete Energy and Accessibility Audits on all Civic Facilities to provide 

baselines for capital planning and for considering improvements,  

 Update the Green Building Policy to include renewal projects in existing facilities, 

 Consider facility vulnerability assessments for critical facilities to understand risks 

due to extreme weather events and implement upgrades for increased facility 

resiliency,  

 Make improvements to the renewals projects in the Civic Buildings & Properties 

Capital Plan to align more closely with the renewal data captured through the 

Facility Condition Assessments. This work will also provide a baseline for better 

quantifying upgrades (such as those related to Climate Action). 

Upgrade opportunities to reduce GHG emissions will also continue to be evaluated on a 
project-by-project basis as is the current practice.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The FAMP aims to inform responsible decision-making and financial sustainability. For 
renewal needs, the FAMP compares four scenarios to demonstrate the funding gap and 
the impact of additional funding on the overall condition of the City’s facilities. The 
Scenarios were developed to align with the Scenarios presented in the October 16th 

Page 36 of 130

https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/CNW_Corporate_Energy_and_Emissions_Strategy_2010_WEB.pdf
https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/CNW_Corporate_Energy_and_Emissions_Strategy_2010_WEB.pdf


City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 6 

 

Council Workshop: Budget 2024: Proposed 2024 General Fund Capital Budget & 2024 - 
2028 Five Year Capital Plan and Funding Strategy: 

 Scenario 1: This funding scenario provided $16.6 million for total renewal over the 

next five years (2024 to 2028). This scenario assumes no funding through 2029 to 

2033. FCI deteriorates to 27.7% (Fair but approaching Poor condition), 

 Scenario 2 – Scenario 1 + $5 million (aligns with the proposed 2024-2028 

Financial Plan). This scenario assumes the funding proposed in Scenario 1, plus an 

additional $2.5 million in each of 2027 and 2028, for a total of $21.6 million in the five 

year plan. For a full 10-year forecast, it is assumed that this funding would also be 

provided in each of the years 2029 to 2033. FCI deteriorates to 24.3% (Fair but 

approaching Poor condition), 

 Scenario 3 – Scenario 1 + $17.5 million; this scenario assumes the funding 

proposed in Scenario 1, with an additional $2.5 million of funding in 2024, with an 

incremental $0.5 million added to each subsequent year from the previous year 

(additional $3 million in 2025, $3.5 million in 2026, etc.), for a total of $34.1 million in 

the five-year plan. FCI deteriorates slightly to 18.4% (Fair condition), 

 Scenario 4 – ‘Maintain FCI Scenario’; includes the same additional $17.5 million 

as in Scenario 3, with a continued $6.8M/year in years 6 to 10. FCI is maintained 

at 17.5%. 

There is an estimated $12.5 million renewal funding gap over the next five years (average 
$2.5 million/year) comparing Scenario 2 (which aligns with the proposed 2024-2028 
Financial Plan) and Scenario 4 (to maintain Facility Condition Index). Scenario 1 was 
included for analysis as part of 2024 budget discussions. 
 
The financial analysis presented focuses on renewals (based on the Facility Condition 
Assessment data). As data is developed to improve the City’s overall understanding of 
Levels of Service for work related to improvements (upgrades) or building capacity 
(growth and expansion), this will further inform the financial analysis related to upgrades 
and growth. The financial analysis does not include considerations on staff resources at 
this time, this will be considered as part of the ongoing work related to the Facilities Asset 
Management Plan.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37 of 130

https://pub-newwestcity.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=16584
https://pub-newwestcity.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=16584


City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 7 

 

Figure 2. Renewal Forecast and Financing Scenario Comparison. The ‘Renewal Need 
(Unconstrained)’ is determined by the Facility Condition Assessment data. 
 

 
 
INTERDEPARTMENTAL LIAISON 
 
Staff from multiple departments were consulted for this work, including representatives 
from each service area: Engineering, Electrical, Culture & Administrative (including staff 
representatives from: Irving House, Museum Annex, Fraser River Discovery Centre, 
Massey Theatre, City Hall, Bernie Legge Theatre, Anvil Centre), Fire & Rescue Services, 
Library, Police Department, Parks, Recreation, the Asset Management Steering 
Committee, as well as representatives from Finance, Information Technology, Human 
Resources, and the Manager of Climate Action.  
 
OPTIONS 
 
The following options are presented for Council’s consideration:  
 

1. That Council endorse the City’s first Facility Asset Management Plan, 

 

2. That Council provides alternative direction to Staff.  

Staff recommends Option 1.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The FAMP serves as the guiding document to manage the City’s facility infrastructure 
effectively and efficiently. This FAMP will require continual improvement of the asset 
management practices employed as part of the City’s asset management journey. The 
‘Implementation & Continuous Improvement’ section in the FAMP document provides 

Page 38 of 130



City of New Westminster  February 26, 2024 8 

 

recommended activities that will help evolve and improve the City’s Facility Asset 
Management Plan through each iteration. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 – Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) - City of New Westminster  
 
APPROVALS 
 
This report was prepared by: 
Karen Campbell, Project Manager, Civic Buildings & Properties 
 
This report was reviewed by: 
Tobi May, Senior Manager, Civic Buildings & Properties, 
Kwaku Agyare-Manu, Senior Manager, Engineering Services 
 
This report was approved by: 
Lisa Leblanc, Director, Engineering Services  
Lisa Spitale, Chief Administrative Officer 

Page 39 of 130



Attachment # 1
Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) 

City of New Westminster

Corporation of the City of 
^ NEW WESTMINSTER 

# 

Page 40 of 130



 

 

 

FACILITIES ASSET 
MANAGEMENT PLAN (2024) 

City of New Westminster 

Page 41 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | i 

Rev No Date Revision Details 

01 Feb 26th, 2024 For Council endorsement 

   

   

   

  

Page 42 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | ii 

Executive Summary 
Introduction 
This document is the City of New Westminster’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan (‘FAMP’). The 
FAMP was developed following the strategies and direction of the City of New Westminster’s 2019 Asset 
Management Strategy (SAMP).  

The purpose of the first Facilities Asset Management Plan is to: 

• form part of the wider Asset Management strategy and approach, 
• provide a baseline for the current condition of the Building Asset Class,  
• provide direction on the ‘future state’ (ie. where the City wants to go) through Levels of Service 

discussions, and serve as a strategic and financial document based on ‘current’ and ‘future’ state 
understandings,  

• identify gaps and areas for improvement from an Asset Management Perspective related to the 
Building Asset Class,  

• act as a tool to inform staff recommendations and priorities on renewal, upgrade and growth 
projects for City-owned buildings and sites. 
 

The FAMP aligns with the City’s area of focus on ‘Asset Management and Infrastructure’ as outlined in 
2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan and the goal to provide resilient infrastructure that meets the 
community’s needs today and into the future. The FAMP is a document developed to support the City in 
managing its existing Building assets in a sustainable, efficient, and financially responsible manner, while 
also considering the City’s Climate Emergency goals and targets. As the FAMP improves over time, it will 
help the City understand the balance between existing asset needs and the growth and upgrade 
considerations to meet the needs of the City’s growing and changing population.  

Key Findings 
• As the City’s first FAMP, this document acts more as a baseline document, with future updates 

progressing toward a tactical plan. The Building Asset Class’ Asset Management maturity and the 
information within the FAMP is anticipated to continually improve with each iteration (planned 
to be updated for every five years moving forward). 

• Average Building Condition (current state) is ‘fair’: 71.3% of the City’s facilities are estimated to 
be in ‘Fair’ or better condition. The average condition of ‘Fair’ means that in general, the average 
City facility requires attention as it shows signs of deterioration with some elements exhibiting 
deficiencies.  

• Identified Financial Gap: to maintain the current average building condition rating of ‘Fair’, an 
additional average budget of $2.5 million per year is needed above the current five-year Capital 
Plan. The average condition rating is still anticipated to worsen in the upcoming years if the 
funding gap remains.  

• Identified Data Gaps related to Establishing Levels of Service: the FAMP work has demonstrated 
that additional data is needed to improve the City’s overall understanding of Levels of Service for 
work related to improvements (upgrades) or building capacity (growth/expansion). Some of this 

Page 43 of 130

https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/Asset_Management_Strategy(SAMP)_Final_Draft_pdf.pdf
https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/Asset_Management_Strategy(SAMP)_Final_Draft_pdf.pdf


 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | iii 

work is already underway through Master Plans and studies, and the next FAMP update is 
anticipated to close some of these gaps as Master Plans and studies are completed. 

Overview 

State of the Infrastructure (Current State) 

The City’s first step in developing the FAMP is understanding the facilities that it owns. The City owns 70 
Facilities with an estimated replacement value of $506.5 million (Table ES-1). See Appendix A for a list of 
City Facilities included in this iteration of the FAMP.  

Table ES-1: Replacement Value of City Assets ($M) 

Service Area # of Facilities Total 

Engineering 15* $91,326,101 
Electrical 1 $3,264,000 

Culture & Administrative 8 $144,101,032 
Fire & Rescue Services 3 $12,630,243 

Library 1 $17,989,910 
Police Department 1 $28,462,060 

Parks 33 $25,636,487 
Recreation 8 $183,047,064 

Overall 70 $506,456,896 
*Two engineering facilities also have part of the facilities dedicated to Electrical services 

The average age of the City’s 70 facilities is 36.9 years, approaching the mid-life of the average estimated 
service life. This age aligns with the City’s overall average facility condition, which is estimated to be in 
‘Fair’ condition based on a Facility Condition Index (FCI) of 17.5% (Figure ES-1). An average ‘Fair’ 
condition means that the average City facility requires attention, as it shows signs of deterioration and 
some element deficiencies. 

Figure ES-1: Condition Overview 

Condition 
Facility 

Condition 
Index 

Condition Description 
 

Very Good 0 to 5% 
The facility is generally in very good condition, typically new 
or recently rehabilitated. A few elements may require minor 
attention. Facilities staff time will be devoted to regular 
scheduled maintenance. 

 

Good >5 to 15% 

The facility is in good condition; will look clean and functional 
some elements show general signs of deterioration that 
requires attention. Repairs and replacement are more of an 
aesthetic or general nature, such as wall painting, carpet 
replacement, roof repair, window caulking. Facilities staff 
time will be devoted to regular scheduled maintenance. 

 

Page 44 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | iv 

Condition 
Facility 

Condition 
Index 

Condition Description 
 

Fair >15 to 30% 

The facility is in fair condition; it shows general signs of 
deterioration and requires attention. Repairs and 
replacement of specific systems, i.e. boiler, window 
replacements, interior renovations. Facilities staff time may at 
times be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance. 

Average Current 
Condition 

Poor >30 to 60% 

The facility is in poor condition, Facilities will look worn with 
apparent and increasing deterioration. Replacement of 
specific major systems required, such as heating and 
plumbing systems, complete interior renovations, building 
envelope restoration Facilities staff time will likely be diverted 
from regular scheduled maintenance and forced to “reactive” 
mode. 

 

Very Poor >60% 

Facilities will look worn with obvious deterioration. 
Replacement of multiple systems required (i.e. Mechanical, 
Electrical, Architectural and Structural Staff will not be able 
to provide regular scheduled maintenance due to high level 
of “reactive” calls. 

 

 

The condition distribution of the City’s Facilities is summarized in Figure ES-2. Approximately 71% of the 
City’s facilities are estimated to be in ‘Fair’ or better condition. 29% are estimated to be in ‘Poor’ or ‘Very 
Poor’ condition. 

Figure ES-2: Condition Overview by Replacement Value 

 

Page 45 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | v 

 

Levels of Service 

The City’s facilities play a critical role in ensuring the continued delivery of services to the community. 
Established Levels of Service, when clearly defined, help to identify needs and inform recommendations 
for renewals and upgrade work in relation to maintaining building components, along with 
recommendations on when new facilities or new spaces are needed (growth/expansion). 

The recently completed Facility Condition Assessment (2022) provides data to inform Levels of Service 
for renewal (‘like for like’) work. A key focus of this FAMP is to establish the Levels of Service related to 
reliability and quality for the Building Asset Class’ current state along with associated costs. The goal is to 
establish service levels from Corporate, Legislated, Customer and Technical perspectives so that the 
City’s facilities are maintained in an appropriate state of good repair. Understanding the current state 
sets the stage for determining appropriate service level targets (future state) in the next FAMP update. 

This iteration of the FAMP has identified that there are some data gaps that limit the City’s ability to fully 
establish the Levels of Service related to planning and budgeting for upgrades and growth/expansion. 
Additional work is required through Master Plans or studies to improve the City’s Level of Service 
understanding in these areas. Actions are included in the ‘Implementation and Continuous 
Improvement’ Section to help address this gap for the next FAMP iteration. 

Risk Management Strategy 

A preliminary risk analysis was conducted at the facility-level to understand the risk exposure across the 
asset portfolio and inform work across facilities and service areas. Higher risk facilities that are more 
critical to service delivery and have significant backlog or upcoming renewal work were identified as 
Massey Theatre and Arts Complex, City Hall, Queens Park Stadium and Arena, Engineering Operations 
Main Office and Electrical Office, Mercer Stadium Grandstand, and Queensborough and West End Fire 
Halls. Staff is developing a criteria to incorporate risk into the capital planning process to provide 
additional guidance on prioritizing projects. 

Lifecycle Management Strategy 

Asset lifecycle management strategies are the planned activities that enable assets to provide service 
levels in a sustainable way, while managing risks. Growth (new facilities or expansions) and upgrade 
projects are identified in the City’s upcoming 2024 to 2028 five-year Capital Plan. As the Levels of Service 
related to upgrades and growth/expansion will be determined through future Master Plans or studies, 
this FAMP does not identify the total needs related to growth and upgrades. Currently, the City’s main 
planned growth expenditure if the remaining cost of the new TACC facility in 2024. Currently planned 
upgrades such as universal washrooms and energy efficiency projects over the next five years are 
estimated at $12.5 million.  

For renewal activity needs, the FAMP forecasts the needs required to maintain service levels related to 
the quality and reliability of the Building Asset Class. It is estimated that the City will need to spend an 
average of $6.8 million per year over the next 10 years to maintain the Facility Condition Index at 
approximately 17% (overall average Fair condition). 

Page 46 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | vi 

Financial Analysis 

The City’s Facilities Asset Management Plan informs responsible decision-making and financial 
sustainability. For renewal needs, the FAMP compares four scenarios to demonstrate the funding gap 
and the impact of additional funding on the overall condition of the City’s facilities. The Scenarios were 
developed to align with the Scenarios presented in the October 16th Workshop: Budget 2024: Proposed 
2024 General Fund Capital Budget & 2024 - 2028 Five Year Capital Plan and Funding Strategy: 

• Scenario 1: This funding scenario provided $16.6 million for total renewal over the next five years 
(2024 to 2028). This scenario assumes no funding through 2029 to 2033. FCI deteriorates to 27.7% 
(Fair but approaching Poor condition) 

• Scenario 2 – Scenario 1 + $5 million (aligns with the proposed 2024-2028 Financial Plan). This 
scenario assumes the funding proposed in Scenario 1, plus an additional $2.5 million in each of 2027 
and 2028, for a total of $21.6 million in the five year plan. For a full 10-year forecast, it is assumed that 
this funding would also be provided in each of the years 2029 to 2033. FCI deteriorates to 24.3% (Fair 
but approaching Poor condition) 

• Scenario 3 – Scenario 1 + $17.5 million; this scenario assumes the funding proposed in Scenario 1, 
with an additional $2.5 million of funding in 2024, with an incremental $0.5 million added to each 
subsequent year from the previous year (additional $3 million in 2025, $3.5 million in 2026, etc.), for 
a total of $34.1 million in the five-year capital plan). FCI deteriorates slightly to 18.4% (Fair condition) 

• Scenario 4 – ‘Maintain FCI Scenario’; includes the same additional $17.5 million to Financial Plan as 
Scenario 3, with a continued $6.8M/year in years 6 to 10. FCI is maintained at 17.5%. 

There is an estimated $12.5 million renewal funding gap over the next five years (average $2.5 
million/year) comparing Scenario 2 (which aligns with the proposed 2024-2028 Financial Plan) and 
Scenario 4 (to maintain Facility Condition Index). Scenario 1 was included for analysis as part of 2024 
budget discussions. An appropriate level of funding will be determined annually through the annual 
Capital Planning process, in consideration of the current funding gap and associated impact on facility 
condition.  The financial analysis is based upon data related to renewals as primarily collected through 
the Facility Condition Assessment and does not include considerations on staff resources at this time. 
This will be considered as part of the ongoing work related to the Facilities Asset Management Plan. 

Page 47 of 130

https://pub-newwestcity.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=16584
https://pub-newwestcity.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=16584


 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | vii 

Figure ES-3: Renewal Forecast and Financing Scenario Comparison 

 

Table ES-2 summarizes the financial sustainability and affordability for growth, upgrade, and renewal to 
maintain current service levels based on available information.  

Table ES-2: Summary of 5-Year Financial Sustainability & Affordability of Current Service 
Levels 

Asset 
Lifecycle 

5-Yr Total 
Forecast 

Needs 

5-Yr Total 
Planned 
Funding 

5-Yr Total Gap Comments 

Capital 
Growth 

Not 
identified 

$3.7M 
No identified 

shortfall over 5-
year plan 

On-going and future Master Plans by Service Areas 
will confirm growth needs  

Capital 
Upgrade 

Not 
identified 

$12.5M 
No identified 

shortfall over 5-
year plan 

On-going and future Master Plans by Service Areas 
and future Accessibility Plan will confirm upgrade 
needs 

Capital 
Renewal 

Scenario 4 
$34.1M 

($6.8M/yr) 

Scenario 2 
$21.6M 

($4.3M/yr) 

$12.5M 
($2.5M/yr) 

Scenario 4 funding maintains the average portfolio 
FCI at 17.5%. Scenario 3 matches Scenario 4 funding 
over the first 5 years but does not maintain FCI 
through years 6 to 10. These scenarios are 
recommended to be reviewed to determine an 
appropriate service level balanced against the 
associated costs and risks. 

 
The analysis above focuses on the capital budget, however increases to the operating budget will also be 
required to accommodate operations and maintenance of the new TACC facility. Consideration should 
also be given to increasing the budgets for scheduled and unscheduled maintenance, which are currently 
underbudgeted for managing the existing facilities. 

Page 48 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | viii 

Implementation and Continuous Improvement 

Development of AM Plans is an iterative process that requires improving data, processes, systems, staff 
skills, and organizational culture over time.  

Recommended improvement initiatives include the following: 

• Improve accuracy of facility replacement values 
• Work to develop Service Area Master Plans and studies, and corporate plans such as the 

Accessibility Plan with specific and measurable Levels of Service measures in order to fill data 
gaps related to capacity (growth) and functional (upgrades) service levels 

• Make improvements to the renewals projects in the Civic Buildings & Properties Capital Plan to 
align more closely with the renewal data captured through the recent Facility Condition 
Assessment  

• Complete a high level risk registry assessment in line with the framework outlined in the 
Strategic Asset Management Plan 

• Consider facility vulnerability assessments for critical facilities to identify vulnerabilities and 
increase facility resiliency 

• Improve renewal costing estimates such as project soft costs 
• Develop long term funding strategies to address funding gaps 

Page 49 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | ix 

Acknowledgements 
 
The Facilities Asset Management Plan was prepared through the insights of City staff.  Staff were 
consulted from the following departments and groups:  
 

• Engineering 
• Parks & Recreation 
• Electrical 
• Climate Action  
• Museum & Heritage Services, Community Arts & Theatre, Anvil Centre 
• Fire & Rescue Services 
• Library Services 
• Police  
• Finance  
• Human Resource 
• Information Technology 
• The Asset Management Steering Committee. 

 

Page 50 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | x 

Table of contents 
Executive Summary ............................................................................................................... ii 

Acknowledgements .............................................................................................................. ix 

Table of contents ................................................................................................................... x 

List of Tables ........................................................................................................................ xii 

List of Figures ...................................................................................................................... xiii 

Glossary .............................................................................................................................. xiv 

Acronyms .......................................................................................................................... xviii 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................. 1 

1.1 Background ............................................................................................................................... 1 
1.2 Purpose ..................................................................................................................................... 1 
1.3 Scope of the AM Plan ............................................................................................................... 2 
1.4 Stakeholders ............................................................................................................................. 3 
1.5 Alignment with Corporate Direction and Documents .............................................................. 4 
1.6 General Methodology ............................................................................................................... 6 
1.7 FAMP Inputs and Data Reliability ............................................................................................. 6 

2 State of Infrastructure .................................................................................................. 9 

2.1 Facility Overview ....................................................................................................................... 9 
2.2 Asset Component Hierarchy ..................................................................................................... 9 
2.3 Data Sources ........................................................................................................................... 10 
2.4 Inventory and Replacement Value ......................................................................................... 10 
2.5 Average Age ............................................................................................................................ 11 
2.6 Condition ................................................................................................................................ 12 

3 Understanding Levels of Service .................................................................................. 16 

3.1 Levels of Service and Line of Sight .......................................................................................... 16 
3.2 Corporate Levels of Service .................................................................................................... 19 

4 Risk Management ....................................................................................................... 29 

4.1 Risk Context ............................................................................................................................ 29 
4.2 Risk Identification ................................................................................................................... 29 
4.3 Risk Analysis ............................................................................................................................ 32 
4.4 Risk Evaluation ........................................................................................................................ 36 
4.5 Risk Treatment & Control ....................................................................................................... 36 
4.6 Risk Monitoring & Review ...................................................................................................... 37 

5 Lifecycle Strategy ........................................................................................................ 38 

5.1 Lifecycle Management Needs................................................................................................. 38 
5.2 Planned Capital Growth .......................................................................................................... 39 

Page 51 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xi 

5.3 Planned Capital Upgrades ....................................................................................................... 39 
5.4 Capital Renewal Needs ........................................................................................................... 40 
5.5 Operations and Maintenance Needs ...................................................................................... 42 

6 Financial Strategy ....................................................................................................... 44 

6.1 Budgeting Principles ............................................................................................................... 44 
6.2 Funding Sources ...................................................................................................................... 44 
6.3 Financial Sustainability ........................................................................................................... 45 
6.4 Affordability of Current Service Levels ................................................................................... 50 
6.5 Forecast and Funding Gap Limitations ................................................................................... 50 

7 Implementation & Continuous Improvement .............................................................. 52 

7.1 Governance Model ................................................................................................................. 52 
7.2 Delivery Risks and Uncertainties ............................................................................................ 52 
7.3 Implementation Roadmap ...................................................................................................... 53 
7.4 Improvement Plan .................................................................................................................. 55 

Appendix A –Facility List with Replacement Value and Condition ......................................... 61 

Appendix B – Preliminary Risk Ratings ................................................................................. 64 

Appendix C – Uniformat Element Preliminary CoF Ratings.................................................... 67 

Appendix D – Typical Component Service Lives .................................................................... 69 
 

Page 52 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xii 

List of Tables 
Table ES-1: Replacement Value of City Assets ($M) .................................................................................... iii 

Table ES-2: Summary of 5-Year Financial Sustainability & Affordability of Current Service Levels ............ vii 

Table 1-1: Questions Addressed by the FAMP .............................................................................................. 2 

Table 1-2: Internal Stakeholders and Interests ............................................................................................. 3 

Table 1-3: External Stakeholders and Interests ............................................................................................ 4 

Table 1-4: FAMP Alignment with City’s Corporate Objectives ...................................................................... 5 

Table 1-5: Data Reliability Scale .................................................................................................................... 6 

Table 1-6: Data Source and Data Reliability .................................................................................................. 7 

Table 2-1: Uniformat II Level 1 ...................................................................................................................... 9 

Table 2-2: Data Source Summary ................................................................................................................ 10 

Table 2-3: Estimated Replacement Value of City Facilities ($M) ................................................................ 11 

Table 2-4: Conversion Table for Condition Grades and Facility Condition Index ....................................... 13 

Table 2-5: Average Facility Condition Index by Service Area ...................................................................... 14 

Table 3-1: Service-Area Specific Planning Documents and Vision/Mission Statements ............................. 21 

Table 3-2: Facilities Levels of Service – Functional ..................................................................................... 25 

Table 3-3: Facilities Levels of Service – Quality & Reliability ...................................................................... 26 

Table 3-4: Facilities Levels of Service – Affordability .................................................................................. 27 

Table 4-1: Risk Register - Asset and Enterprise Risks .................................................................................. 30 

Table 4-2: Probability of Failure Ratings for Reliability ............................................................................... 32 

Table 4-3: CoF (Asset Criticality) Rating Scale ............................................................................................. 33 

Table 4-4: Asset and Enterprise Risks with Potential Treatments .............................................................. 37 

Table 5-1: Asset Lifecycle Management Categories ................................................................................... 38 

Table 5-2: Typical Operations and Maintenance Activities for Facility Assets............................................ 42 

Table 5-3: 2023 Operating Budget for Facilities Maintenance (Utilities and Maintenance) ...................... 43 

Table 6-1: Funding Scenario Descriptions and Facility Condition Index Forecast....................................... 46 

Table 6-2: Funding Values ($M) and Impacts on FCI Forecast by Funding Scenario................................... 49 

Table 6-3: Summary of 5-Year Financial Sustainability and Affordability of Current Service Levels .......... 50 

Table 7-1: Implementation Activities .......................................................................................................... 53 

Table 7-2: Recommended Improvement Plan ............................................................................................ 55 
 

Page 53 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xiii 

List of Figures 
Figure ES-1: Condition Overview .................................................................................................................. iii 

Figure ES-2: Condition Overview by Replacement Value ............................................................................. iv 

Figure ES-3: Renewal Forecast and Financing Scenario Comparison .......................................................... vii 

Figure 2-1: Average Age – Facility Assets .................................................................................................... 12 

Figure 2-2: Condition Distribution ............................................................................................................... 14 

Figure 2-3: Condition Distribution by Service Area ..................................................................................... 15 

Figure 3-1: Levels of Service Framework .................................................................................................... 18 

Figure 3-2: The City’ Sustainability Framework .......................................................................................... 20 

Figure 4-1: Reliability Risk Map Format ...................................................................................................... 34 

Figure 4-2: Current Reliability Risk (by Replacement Value in $M*) .......................................................... 36 

Figure 5-1: 5-Year Planned Capital Upgrades ............................................................................................. 40 

Figure 5-2: 10-Year Capital Renewal Needs Forecast (Unconstrained) ...................................................... 41 

Figure 5-3: Facility Condition Index Forecast (Unconstrained versus Maintain LOS Strategy) ................... 41 

Figure 6-1: Renewal Forecast and Financing Scenario Comparison ........................................................... 48 

Page 54 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xiv 

Glossary 
Term Description 

Asset An item, thing or entity that has potential or actual value to the City. See also: 
Tangible Capital Asset 

Asset Class A group of assets with common attributes and/or objectives, such as the 
transportation asset class 

Asset Condition The measure of the physical state of an asset, but may also include functional 
and demand considerations 

Asset 
Management 
(AM) 

The coordinated activity of the City to realize value from its assets. This 
includes making decisions about thexiv stewardship of infrastructure to deliver 
services in a way that considers current and future needs, manages risks and 
opportunities, and makes the best use of resources. 

Asset 
Management 
Policy 

The intentions and directions of the City as formally expressed by its senior 
management in the form of a suite of guiding principles for a structured and 
cohesive approach to AM. 

Asset 
Management Plan 
(AMP) 

Documented information that specifies the activities, resources and timescales 
required for an individual asset, or a grouping of assets, to achieve the 
organization’s management objectives. 

Business Case The framework to develop and evaluate business cases for investment 
decisions. 

Consequence of 
Failure 

A measure of the direct and indirect impacts on the City if an asset failure were 
to occur. 

Critical Assets Assets for which the financial, business, or service-level consequences of 
failure are sufficiently severe to justify proactive inspection and rehabilitation. 
Critical assets have a lower threshold for action than non-critical assets. 

Facility Condition 
Assessment (FCA) 

A process to visually assess the condition of each facility in the Building Asset 
Class and to document the identified renewal needs. This process is needed to 
establish a current building condition baseline (i.e. ‘where we are now’) in 
order to inform the FAMP work. The most recent FCA was completed prior to 
the start of the FAMP. FCAs are completed every five years with the next one 
scheduled for 2028.  

Page 55 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xv 

Term Description 

Facility Condition 
Index (FCI) 

A metric, in percentage form, that is used to estimate the condition rating of a 
building on a five point scale ranging from ‘Very Poor’ to ‘Very Good’. FCI is 
calculated by dividing the total cost of the needed renewals (as determined in 
the FCA) over a five year period, by the facility’s current total replacement cost. 
The FCI rating does not consider upgrade or growth work. 

Funding Gap The difference between the current capital funding and the recommended 
capital funding. 

Gap Analysis “A method of assessing the gap between an organization’s current AM 
practices and the future desirable AM practices” (IIMM, 2015). A gap analysis 
may also be referred to as a needs analysis or improvement planning. 

Growth/Expansion Work to increase the existing capacity of the Building Asset class. For example, 
the addition of new space or facilities to the Building Asset Class. 

Infrastructure The system of core assets, facilities and/or equipment. 

Level of Service 
(LOS) 

Established objectives that the City intends to deliver through its facilities. 
Established LOS inform renewals, upgrades and growth work along with the 
estimated costs to complete this work. 

Objectives A result to be achieved. Objectives can be expressed in a variety of ways and 
can be either strategic, tactical or operational. 

Outcome The overall desired or actual result of a service. Service level outcomes define 
what the service is supposed to achieve, for example, a “reliable” service. 

Performance 
Indicator/Measure 

A qualitative or quantitative measure of a service or activity used to compare 
actual performance against a standard or target. Performance indicators 
commonly relate to statutory limits, safety, responsiveness, cost, comfort, 
asset performance, reliability, efficiency, environmental protection and 
customer satisfaction.  

Practices The actual application, execution or use of the processes and procedures. It 
includes improvisational behaviours to address changing circumstances. 

Probability of 
Failure 

The likelihood or chance that an event will occur within a specified time frame. 

Procedure The sequence of steps taken to implement and achieve an activity within a 
process. 

Page 56 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xvi 

Term Description 

Process The structured transformation of inputs into outputs. Processes typically 
operate across many functions and may cross department lines. A complex 
process may contain many procedures. 

Remaining Life The period from the current point in time to the time that an asset requires 
renewal. 

Renewals works to replace or rehabilitate existing assets or building components with 
assets or components of equivalent capacity or performance capability; i.e., 
rehabilitation or  replacement with like for like components or assets 

Replacement Cost The estimated cost to replace a capital asset with a similar asset based on 
studies, appraisals, industry standards, actual experience and considering 
escalation costs. Future estimated replacement costs are current replacement 
costs inflated by an appropriate factor. 

Responsibilities The obligations or expectations to perform certain specific activities or duties 
according to a particular role. 

Risk The effect of uncertainty on objectives. An event that impacts the achievement 
of objectives and deals with the uncertainty. It is measured in terms of 
consequence and likelihood. 

Risk Management The application of a formal process to the range of possible values relating to 
key factors associated with a risk to determine the resultant ranges of 
outcomes and their probability of occurrence. 

Roles The position(s) occupied (“the part played”) by certain internal stakeholders 
(and external stakeholders). 

Service Area to add an additional layer of analysis, through the FAMP the  City’s Buildings 
are categorized into the following ‘service areas’ as part of the asset hierarchy: 
Engineering, Electrical, Culture & Administrative (including: Irving House, 
Museum Annex, the Fraser River Discovery Centre, Massey Theatre and Arts 
Complex, City Hall, Bernie Legge Theatre, Anvil Centre), Fire & Rescue Services, 
Library, Police Department, Parks, Recreation. 

Stakeholders A person, group, or organization that can affected, be affected by, or perceive 
themselves to be affected by a decision or activity. 

Tangible Capital 
Asset (TCA) 

The physical assets addressed by the City’s policy; including infrastructure and 
land. 

Page 57 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xvii 

Term Description 

Upgrades works to replace existing assets or building components with assets or 
components of improved performance capability. 

Useful Life 
(Service Life) 

The estimate of the number of years over which a capital asset is expected to 
be used. 

Page 58 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xviii 

Acronyms 
Term Description 

FCA Facilities Condition Assessment 

AM  Asset Management 

AMP Asset Management Plan 

SAMP Strategic Asset Management Plan / Asset Management Strategy 

FAMP Facilities Asset Management Plan 

TACC təməsew̓txʷ Aquatic and Community Centre 

CEERS Corporate Energy & Emissions Reduction Strategy 

NWPL New Westminster Public Library 

NWPD New Westminster Police Department 

LOS Levels of Service 

NFPA National Fire Protection Association 

DEIAR Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, & Anti-Racism 

BAS Building Automation System 

PIEVC Public Infrastructure Engineering Vulnerability Committee 

CoF Consequence of Failure 

PoF Probability of Failure 

O&M Operations and Maintenance 

OCP Official Community Plan 

SLAM City’s Capital Planning software system (stores data collected from the Facility 
Condition Assessment) 

Page 59 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | xix 
Page 60 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 1 

1 Introduction 
The City of New Westminster (the “City”) has developed this Facilities Asset Management Plan (FAMP) to 
serve as a guiding document that will support the ongoing management and long-term stewardship of 
the City’s facility assets. The City’s facilities enable service delivery across various areas including, but not 
limited to electrical, culture, parks, recreation, police, fire, and library. 

The City owns and operates these facilities and ensures that they are maintained, repaired, and 
upgraded as required for reliable, safe, and sustainable service delivery. This iteration of the FAMP 
includes information on the following: 

• Replacement value and condition of the City’s facilities 
• Current levels of service (LOS) 
• Activities required for asset renewal and discussion of new facilities required to deliver services 

today and into the future 
• Investment required to fund the capital works outlined in the FAMP; and 
• Overview of risks to be considered in asset management (AM) planning 

1.1 Background 

Asset Management is identified in the Corporate Strategic Plan as a priority for the City. The City is 
committed to “implementing a systematic asset management methodology to apply appropriate AM 
best practices across the organization.” The City completed its Asset Management Strategy in 2019 
which outlines its AM objectives and improvement roadmap. It also provides an overview of the AM 
system and its key documents, including an outline to guide AM planning for each service area. The City 
has identified the priority for greater clarity about its facility investment needs. The City has completed 
building condition assessments for most of its facilities and are managing the forecasting of required 
work in the City’s SLAM software system. This FAMP is based on data from these improvements in 
understanding the state of facility assets and improved data collection and tracking. 

1.2 Purpose 

This document is the City of New Westminster’s first Facilities Asset Management Plan (‘FAMP’). The 
FAMP was developed following the strategies and direction of the City of New Westminster’s 2019 Asset 
Management Strategy (SAMP).  
 
The purpose of the first Facilities Asset Management Plan is to: 

• form part of the wider Asset Management strategy and approach, 
• provide a baseline for the current condition of the Building Asset Class,  
• provide direction on the ‘future state’ (ie. where the City wants to go) through Levels of Service 

discussions, and serve as a strategic and financial document based on ‘current’ and ‘future’ state 
understandings,  

• identify gaps and areas for improvement from an Asset Management Perspective related to the 
Building Asset Class,  

Page 61 of 130

https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/Asset_Management_Strategy(SAMP)_Final_Draft_pdf.pdf
https://www.newwestcity.ca/database/files/library/Asset_Management_Strategy(SAMP)_Final_Draft_pdf.pdf


 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 2 

• act as a tool to inform staff recommendations and priorities on renewal, upgrade and growth 
projects for City owned buildings and sites. 

The purpose of this FAMP is to address key questions that will assist the City in the responsible 
stewardship of facility assets, as well as the long‐term sustainability of the facility-related services. The 
questions addressed by this FAMP are identified in Table 1-1. 

Table 1-1: Questions Addressed by the FAMP 

# Questions FAMP Item or 
Measure Section of the AMP 

1 What do we own? Inventory and 
hierarchy State of Infrastructure 

2 What are our assets worth? Valuation State of Infrastructure 

3 How long will our assets last? Age and estimated 
service lives State of Infrastructure 

4 Which assets are beyond their 
theoretical service life? 

Infrastructure 
renewal deficit State of Infrastructure 

5 What service levels do our assets 
need to provide? 

Service level 
measures Levels of Service 

6 What is the relative importance of 
our assets? 

Preliminary criticality 
assessment Risk Management 

7 What assets do we fix first? Preliminary risk 
assessment Risk Management 

8 When do the assets need to be 
replaced? Renewal forecast Lifecycle Management 

9 How much will it cost to replace the 
assets? Renewal forecast Lifecycle Management 

10 How much money will we need? Renewal forecast Lifecycle Management 
11 How much money will we have? Capital Plan Financial Management 

12 What are the next steps on our 
journey? Recommendations Implementation and Continuous 

Improvement 

13 
What is the energy performance of 
this asset? What is the emission 
profile of this asset? 

Future  To be incorporated into future 
FAMPs 

1.3 Scope of the AM Plan 

1.3.1 Assets Included in FAMP 

The facilities are categorized into the following service areas as part of the asset hierarchy: 

• Engineering 
• Electrical 
• Culture & Administrative 
• Fire & Rescue Services 
• Library 

Page 62 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 3 

• Police Department
• Parks
• Recreation

Facilities include those owned by the City even though they may be leased or maintained by third 
parties. The Wharf Building Heritage facility is owned by the City but is maintained by Metro Vancouver. 

1.3.2 Excluded Assets 

Excluded assets from this FAMP include: 

• Facility components such as fitness equipment, library collections, and furniture that are typically
not fixed to the building and are not covered by the facility condition assessments

• Engineering Operations: Fuel Pumping Station
• Structures such as pedestrian bridges (e.g., Pier Park bridge that spans Pier Park elevator and the

Front Street Parkade)
• Facilities not owned by the City, such as the Tennis Clubhouse, Curling facility, and Queen’s Park

Cadets Building

1.4 Stakeholders 

The development and execution of this FAMP relies on the collaborative effort of multiple City 
departments and the perspective of many external stakeholders. Table 1-2 and Table 1-3 identify the 
internal and external stakeholders and their interests in this FAMP. 

Table 1-2: Internal Stakeholders and Interests 
Stakeholders Interest 

FAMP Project Group 

Managed by Civic Buildings & Properties and comprised of 
members from the following departments: Infrastructure 
Planning, Operations, IT, and Finance. This Group is tasked with 
developing a cohesive FAMP that aligns with the City’s 
objectives. 

Asset Management Steering 
Committee 

Provides direction to the City’s overall asset management 
program and will serve as a key audience of the AMP. 

City Council and Executive Team Act as stewards for all City assets and approve the AM policy, 
establish LOS delivery, and monitor progress and outcomes. 

Development Services (Planning 
Department) 

Provides information on the Official Community Plan (OCP) and 
provides information such as growth and demand. 

Finance Department (including 
Procurement) 

Provides financial data and develops/supports financial 
management strategies related to facility assets. Procurement 
services develop and execute policies and strategies to retain 
external services. 

Civic Buildings & Properties 

Inspects, maintains, and renews the majority of facility assets 
including the building envelope, HVAC, plumbing, site assets, 
and facility demolition. This group is fundamental in achieving 
service delivery and management of the facility assets. It is 
responsible for determining and monitoring asset condition, 

Page 63 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 4 

Stakeholders Interest 
criticality, risk, decision making, performance, and planning. 
This group also collects and maintains the asset data. 

Climate Action To support and accelerate achieving Climate Action targets. 

Engineering Department Engineering Operations, and inspects, maintains, and renews 
some facility site assets, . 

Electrical Department Inspects, maintains, and renews electrical assets within 
facilities; delivers electrical service to all city facilities. 

IT Department 
Inspects, maintains, and renews communication system assets 
within facilities, including Data Centres at City Hall, Library Main 
Branch, and Anvil Centre. 

Human Resources To support alignment with Human Resources Policies. 

Parks & Recreation 

Involved, through coordination with Civic Buildings & 
Properties, in Operations, Maintenance, Inspection and 
Upgrades of a number of Civic Facilities.   Inspects, maintains, 
and renews facility site assets such as trees and landscaping. 

Individual Service Areas 

Departments including Parks, Recreation, Culture & 
Administrative, Library, and Police. Responsible for 
maintenance and renewal of equipment and furnishings within 
facilities, and specialized construction within facilities such as 
pools. 

Table 1-3: External Stakeholders and Interests 
Stakeholders Interest 

Facility customers: 
-Residents
-City staff

Residents rely on City services that are carried out in and 
supporting by City facilities. City staff work in many of these 
facilities while carrying out City services. 

Metro Vancouver and 
neighbouring municipalities 

Regional objectives may influence the provision of City facility 
services. The need for new and changing services may be 
managed in coordination due to population growth and 
demographic changes with nearby municipalities. 

Provincial and Federal 
Government 

These groups enact and enforce facility-related legislation and 
regulations (e.g.  health and safety) 

1.5 Alignment with Corporate Direction and Documents 

The FAMP was prepared in alignment with existing corporate documents which provide guidance for the 
City as well as the relevant provincial legislation related to facility services. Table 1-4 describes how this 
FAMP supports and relates to the City’s corporate objectives.  

General City objectives, mandate and requirements are contained within the Community Charter, the 
Local Government Act, and various federal and provincial legislation. The SAMP identifies several 
additional objectives that have and will be considered in the development and execution of this FAMP. 

Page 64 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 5 

Table 1-4: FAMP Alignment with City’s Corporate Objectives 
Corporate 
Objectives 

AMP Section 
Reference Alignment Description 

Provincial and 
Federal Legislation Levels of Service Levels of service standards include the reporting and other 

requirements needed to adhere to provincial legislation. 

City’s Asset 
Management 
Strategy (SAMP) 

Entire document 
structure and 
content 

The Facilities AMP follows the guidance of the City’s Asset 
Management Strategy, developed in 2019. The Strategy is 
commonly referenced as a “Strategic Asset Management Plan”, 
abbreviated as “SAMP”. The SAMP provides guidance on the 
following: 
1. Specifics on how City objectives are translated into Asset 
Management Objectives;  
2. Description on how they achieve the Asset Management 
Objectives (Roadmap); and  
3. Information on AMP development standards to maintain 
consistency among City departments. 

Corporate Asset 
Management Policy 

Entire document 
structure and 
content 

The Corporate AM Policy sets principles for implementing 
consistent processes and approaches for asset management 
throughout the City. 

2017 Official 
Community Plan 
(Updated April 2023) 

Levels of Service,  
Asset Lifecycle 
Strategies 

The Official Community Plan defines future population numbers 
to the year 2041. The projected population data informs growth 
needs as part of Master Planning. The Community Plan outlines 
key priorities which include safety, adequate infrastructure to 
sustain effectiveness through growth, and conservation goals 
such as reduction of energy consumption. 

2023-2026 
Council Strategic Plan 

Entire document 
content 

The 2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan provides five areas of 
focus that reflect the needs of the community and in turn guide 
the management of the City’s assets. 

Envision 2032 New 
Westminster’s 
Sustainability 
Framework 

Levels of Service 

The Envision Framework provides guiding principles and a 
detailed plan for sustainability initiatives moving forward. This 
FAMP builds on these initiatives to identify facility-specific 
sustainability measures. 

Seven Bold Steps and 
Corporate Energy & 
Emissions Reduction 
Strategy (CEERS 
2020) 

Levels of Service 

To support the climate emergency declaration in 2019, the City 
established a climate action budgeting framework and seven 
bold steps with the goal of moving New Westminster towards a 
zero-carbon future by 2050. Through Bold Step number 1, 
Carbon Free Corporation, the City pledged that it will work to 
exceed its 2030 climate emergency target of 45% (below 2010 
emissions levels) by striving to be net zero by 2030. To reach this 
aggressive target, the City will need to take significant measures 
to reduce its emissions.  

Service Area Strategic 
Plans, Master Plans, 
and other Studies 

Levels of Service Other Service Area specific strategic documents are discussed in 
Section 3. 

Page 65 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 6 

1.6 General Methodology 

This FAMP is a medium to long range planning document that is used to support the City’s goals by 
providing a rational strategy for proactively and effectively managing the City’s assets. The FAMP was 
developed by SLBC Inc. in collaboration with City staff through: 

• Review of background materials available on the City’s web site and provided by the City’s project
team including asset inventories, planning documents, and budgets

• Workshops with internal stakeholders
• Other interim meetings with the City’s project team
• Numerous data and information transfers
• Review of interim outputs by the City’s project team and other stakeholders, and incorporation of

comments into the final FAMP
• State of infrastructure analysis and forecasting based on City’s building recommendations tracked

in SLAM software system. Supporting methodology underlying the analysis is outlined in the State
of Infrastructure Section.

1.7 FAMP Inputs and Data Reliability 

Table 1-5 identifies the Data Reliability Grades on a 5-point scale as recommended in the SAMP. This 
provides definition of the reliability levels of each data source. 

Table 1-5: Data Reliability Scale 
Grade Reliability Description Accuracy 

1 High 
Reliability 

Data based on sound records, procedures, 
investigations and analysis, documented 
properly and agreed as the best method of 
assessment. 

Dataset is complete and 
estimated to be accurate 
+/- 2%. 

2 Reliable 

Data based on sound records, procedures, 
investigations and analysis, documented 
properly but has minor shortcomings, for 
example some of the data is old, some 
documentation is missing and/or reliance is 
placed on unconfirmed reports or some 
extrapolation. 

Dataset is complete and 
estimated to be accurate 
+/- 10%. 

3 Uncertain 

Data based on sound records, procedures, 
investigation and analysis which is 
incomplete or unsupported, or extrapolated 
from a limited sample for which grade 1 or 2 
data are available. 

Dataset is substantially 
complete but up to 50% 
is extrapolated data and 
accuracy estimated at +/- 
25%. 

4 Very 
Uncertain 

Data is based on unconfirmed verbal reports 
and/or cursory inspections and analysis 

Dataset may not be fully 
complete, and most data 
is estimated or 
extrapolated. Accuracy 
+/- 40%. 

5 Unknown None or very little data held. 

Page 66 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 7 

The information collected and used in analysis in the FAMP is based on information available at the time 
of preparation which includes data that was collected from the following sources. It is expected that with 
each iteration of the FAMP, the data confidence will improve due to development and implementation 
of the initiatives listed in the FAMP Improvement Plan. 

The main data sources used, and the data reliability (confidence) rating is provided in Table 1-6. 

Table 1-6: Data Source and Data Reliability 

Data Source Confidence 
Grading 

FAMP Section 
Reference Comments 

2017 Official 
Community Plan 
(Updated April 
2023) 

1 Levels of 
Service 

The Official Community Plan provides direction to 
realize the City’s opportunities and manage assets 
and issues to ensure that the City remains one of 
the most livable communities in Metro Vancouver. 

Envision 2032 1 Levels of 
Service 

Strategy aims to minimize ecological footprint, 
which is the total impact of production and 
consumption activities on the earth, whether this 
takes place within or outside of the City. 

Strategic Asset 
Management Plan 
(SAMP) 

1 Entire 
Document 

The SAMP guided the development of the Facilities 
AMP including items such as growth statistics, 
objectives, risk framework, decision-making 
approach, stakeholder engagement, etc. 

Corporate Energy 
& Emissions 
Reduction 
Strategy (CEERS 
2020) 

1 

Levels of 
Service, 
Lifecycle 
Strategy 

As part of an ASHRAE Level 1 energy study, a 
prioritized list of 13 civic facilities underwent a 
detailed energy assessment. GHG emission 
reduction in CEERS recommendations ranged from 
lower cost measures such as recommissioning the 
building automation system (BAS) controls to 
higher cost measures such as upgrading 
mechanical systems. These 13 projects are 
expected to reduce GHG emissions by 332 tC02e. 

SLAM building 
element 
recommendations 

3 Lifecycle 
Strategy 

SLAM software tracks the renewal work 
recommended from building condition 
assessments. Improvements to costing of project 
work, particularly understanding of soft costs is 
recommended. 

SLAM facility 
replacement 
values 

3 State of 
Infrastructure 

The City maintains overall facility replacement 
values in SLAM, which are generally 
underestimated and were updated as part of this 
FAMP and documented in the City’s Master List of 
Facilities (MS Excel file). 

Page 67 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 8 

Data Source Confidence 
Grading 

FAMP Section 
Reference Comments 

City 5-year Capital 
Plan 2 

Lifecycle 
Strategy, 
Financial 
Strategy 

The City’s Capital Plan is used to determine the 
growth and upgrade needs, as well as the funding 
available for renewal. Some projects cover both 
renewal and upgrade, and associated project costs 
were assumed to be 50% renewal and 50% 
upgrade. 

Page 68 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 9 

2 State of Infrastructure 
2.1 Facility Overview 

This FAMP covers 70 facilities owned by the City. Parkades are also considered a facility and included in 
this FAMP. Components within facilities cover a broad range of assets, some managed jointly and others 
separately by the Engineering department (within Civic Buildings & Properties) as well as City 
departments. The facilities are categorized into the following service areas: 

• Engineering 
• Electrical 
• Culture & Administrative 
• Fire & Rescue Services 
• Library 
• Police Department 
• Parks 
• Recreation 

Facilities include those owned by the City even though they may be leased or maintained by third 
parties. The Wharf Building Heritage facility is owned by the City, however, is maintained by Metro 
Vancouver. 

Excluded assets from this FAMP are provided in Section 1.3. 

2.2 Asset Component Hierarchy 

Each facility is also broken down into the building component type per Uniformat II standard, which 
enables the City to manage its assets by component type (such as structural versus HVAC assets) and 
enables aggregation and disaggregation of data in terms of cost, performance, and risk metrics. Level 1 
of the Uniformat II hierarchy is shown in Table 2-1. 

Table 2-1: Uniformat II Level 1 

Uniformat Level 1 
A Substructure 

B Exterior 

C Interiors 

D Services 
E Equipment & Furnishings 

F Special Construction 
G Sitework 

This FAMP includes the facility components covered by the facility condition assessments such as 
structural and architectural components; building services such as HVAC, plumbing, and electrical; and 
site works.  

Page 69 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 10 

2.3 Data Sources 

The City maintains a master list of facilities which includes an inventory of all facilities as well as 
information such as construction year, gross floor area, and number of stories. In 2021 and 2022, the City 
completed a Facilities Condition Assessment (FCA) for its facilities along with implementation of the data 
into a Capital Planning software system (SLAM). The forecasted recommendations in SLAM are the main 
source of data for determining the Facility Condition Index of each facility. The replacement value for 
each facility is based on the sum of component replacement costs in the SLAM software. Where possible, 
costs are updated to unit construction costs provided in the 2023 Canadian Cost Guide by Altus Group.  

Table 2-2 summarizes the data sources used for the state of infrastructure analysis. 

Table 2-2: Data Source Summary 

State of 
Infrastructure 

Element 
Description of Data Sources 

Replacement 
Value 

- Unit construction costs per sq.ft (Altus Group 2023 Construction Cost Guide) or, 
- Sum of component replacement costs in SLAM software including soft costs 

estimated at an additional 60% of the Facility Condition Assessment component 
replacement costs 

Age 
- Construction and last major renovation year as provided in City’s Master Facility List 

(MS Excel) 

Condition 

- Facility Condition Index (note: numerator is based on SLAM software forecast, which 
includes estimated additional soft costs (20%) and cost corrector factor (40%)  to the 
facility condition assessment action costs) 

- For Fourth Street and Front Street parkades, the original Building Condition 
Assessments reports were used to determine the Facility Condition Index 

- For new or nearly constructed facilities (TACC (təməsew̓txʷ Aquatic and Community 
Centre)), River Walk Daycare, and 940 Quayside Elevator), it is assumed that the 
facilities are in Very Good condition 

2.4 Inventory and Replacement Value 

As indicated in Section 1, understanding the value, age, and condition of its assets is the starting point 
for a municipality to develop a plan for managing them. The replacement value of an asset represents 
the expected cost to replace an asset to the same functional standard with a ‘like for like’ new version 
based on current market conditions, materials, and construction standards, including soft costs. Land 
value is not included in the replacement value. The total replacement value for the City’s 70 facilities is 
estimated to be $506.5 million. Table 2-3 provides a breakdown of the replacement value and the 
number of facilities for each service area. 

Page 70 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 11 

Table 2-3: Estimated Replacement Value of City Facilities ($M) 

Service Area # of Facilities Total 

Engineering 15* $91,326,101 

Electrical 1 $3,264,000 

Culture & 
Administrative 8 $144,101,032 

Fire & Rescue Services 3 $12,630,243 

Library 1 $17,989,910 

Police Department 1 $28,462,060 

Parks 33 $25,636,487 

Recreation 8 $183,047,064 

Overall 70 $506,456,896 
*Electrical Services Buildings include the Electrical Operations Main Office and Storage Bays, with shared spaces 
with Engineering Operations, such as the Engineering Operations Main Office Building and the Operations Yard, 
included as part of the Engineering Service Area.  

Engineering facilities include Engineering Operations and associated buildings at 901 First Street, Animal 
Shelter, Cemetery Building & Tool Shed, Parks Administrative Building, 940 Quayside Elevator, and three 
parkades. Electrical facilities consist of the Electrical Operations Main Office and Storage building. 

Culture & Administrative facilities include the Anvil Centre, City Hall, Bernie Legge Theatre, Fraser River 
Discovery Centre, Massey Theatre and Arts Complex, River Walk Daycare, Irving House, and the New 
West Museum & Archives Annex. A full list of facilities in each Service Area is provided in Appendix A. 

Recreation and Culture & Administrative categories represent 31.0% and 31.6% of the portfolio value, 
respectively. The new TACC (təməsew̓txʷ Aquatic and Community Centre) recreation facility estimated at 
$75M is currently under construction and is included in the valuation.  

A full list of facility replacement values is provided in Appendix A.  The Centennial Community Centre and 
Massey Gymnasium are planned for demolition and are not included in the count or valuation of 
facilities in Table 2-3. 

2.5 Average Age 

The average age of the City’s Facilities, weighted by replacement value and compared to the expected 
service life, is summarized in Figure 2-1. Facilities are generally expected to last at least 80 years, except 
for gazebos and picnic shelters that represent part of the park facility portfolio and typically have a 
shorter expected life of approximately 50 years. The age is based on the year of the original construction 
year unless a major overhaul renovation for the overall facility was completed more recently.  Overall, 
the average facility age is 36.9 years, approaching the mid-life of the estimated service life. 

The Electrical Operations Main Office and some Parks facilities are approaching the end of their 
estimated service life. For parks facilities, the estimated average service life of 74 years is based on 
structures such as shelters, gazebos, and sheds estimated to have a service life of 50 years and 

Page 71 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 12 

washrooms at 80 years. The average age of parks is largely influenced by Mercer Stadium, Queen’s Park 
Stadium and the Queen’s Park buildings within the mechanics yard, which were all constructed in 1950 
(73 years old). The police services building is 84 years old but had a major renovation in 2001; this 
building is also listed on the Heritage Register. The Library is also an older building built in 1958 and had 
a renovation in 2018, but the building envelope is largely still from the original construction. 

Figure 2-1: Average Age – Facility Assets 

2.6 Condition 

Understanding an asset’s remaining life and current condition informs the timing of required lifecycle 
activities to maintain quality and reliability-related service levels. In 2021, the City retained a consultant 
to complete Facility Condition Assessments based on the ASTM Standard Guide for Property Condition 
Assessments (Baseline Property Condition Assessment Process E2018-15). The inspections included a 
visual walk-through of each facility to determine physical deficiencies and recommended actions for the 
property, building, and related structures. 

Using observed asset condition through inspection programs provides a higher degree of confidence in 
the state of the assets, more than what is provided in a strictly age-based analysis. These assessments 
help the City manage its facility assets proactively and mitigate potential risks to service levels. Based on 
the assessment information, an overall condition for State of Infrastructure reporting is determined for 
each facility based on the Facility Condition Index (FCI). The City uses a 5-year FCI, calculated based on 
the following formula: 

FCI =        Total Cost of Needed Repairs/Renewals 

    Current Replacement Value of Facility 

Where: 

Page 72 of 130



City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 13 

• Total Cost of Needed Repairs/Renewals: Deferred and needed repair/renewal requirements
over next 5 years (based on FCA forecast in SLAM software)

• Current Replacement Value: Overall facility replacement value (like-for-like)

Higher repairs and renewals result in a higher FCI and worse facility condition. The FCI is converted to a 
Very Good to Very Poor condition rating based on Table 2-4. Table 2-4 also summarizes the condition 
description related to each category, in alignment with the 2019 Canadian Infrastructure Report Card. 

Table 2-4: Conversion Table for Condition Grades and Facility Condition Index 

Condition 
Facility 

Condition 
Index 

Condition Description 

Very 
Good 0 to 5% 

The facility is generally in very good condition, typically new or recently 
rehabilitated. A few elements may require minor attention. Facilities 
staff time will be devoted to regular scheduled maintenance. 

Good >5 to 15%

The facility is in good condition; will look clean and functional some 
elements show general signs of deterioration that requires attention. 
Repairs and replacement are more of an aesthetic or general nature, 
such as wall painting, carpet replacement, roof repair, window caulking. 
Facilities staff time will be devoted to regular scheduled maintenance. 

Fair >15 to 30%

The facility is in fair condition; it shows general signs of deterioration and 
requires attention. Repairs and replacement of specific systems, i.e. 
boiler, window replacements, interior renovations. Facilities staff time 
may at times be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance. 

Poor >30 to 60%

The facility is in poor condition, Facilities will look worn with apparent 
and increasing deterioration. Replacement of specific major systems 
required, such as heating and plumbing systems, complete interior 
renovations, building envelope restoration Facilities staff time will likely 
be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance and forced to 
“reactive” mode. 

Very Poor >60%

Facilities will look worn with obvious deterioration. 
Replacement of multiple systems required (i.e. Mechanical, 
Electrical, Architectural and Structural Staff will not be able 
to provide regular scheduled maintenance due to high level 
of “reactive” calls.. 

Overall, the City’s average FCI is 17.5% and the overall facility portfolio is in ‘Fair’ condition, which means 
that the average facility is in fair condition; it shows general signs of deterioration and requires 
attention. Repairs and replacement of specific systems, i.e. boiler, window replacements, interior 
renovations. Facilities staff time may at times be diverted from regular scheduled maintenance.. Table 2-
5 summarizes the average FCI weighted by replacement value by Service Area. Parks facilities have the 
highest FCI and are on average in poor condition. The TACC is a new facility expected to be completed in 

Page 73 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 14 

2024 and is therefore considered in Very Good condition. Due to the significant value of the TACC facility 
($114.6 million), the facility has a large influence on the overall FCI for Recreation facilities. 

Table 2-5: Average Facility Condition Index by Service Area 

Service Area FCI (5-
Year) 

Average 
Condition 

Engineering 16.8% Fair 

Electrical 36.7% Poor 

Culture & Administrative 23.1% Fair 

Fire & Rescue Services 28.6% Fair 

Library 18.4% Fair 

Police Department 11.3% Good 

Parks 46.0% Poor 

Recreation 9.9% Good 

Overall 17.5% Fair 
 

The condition distribution of the City’s Facilities is summarized in Figure 2-2. Approximately 71% of the 
City’s facilities are estimated to be in ‘Fair’ or better condition. Approximately $145 million in facility 
value (29% of the overall portfolio value) is in ‘Poor’ or ‘Very Poor’ condition. 

Figure 2-2: Condition Distribution 

 

Figure 2-3 summarizes the facility condition profile by Service Area. Park facilities have a higher 
proportion of facilities in Poor and Very Poor condition based on FCI, as well as the Electrical Operations 
Main Office.  This condition profile aligns with the older age of the Electrical Operations Main Office and 
park facilities indicated in Section 2.5.  

$200.4
39.6%

$81.0
16.0%

$79.8
15.8%

$129.4
25.5%

$15.8
3.1%

Very Good
Good
Fair
Poor
Very Poor

Page 74 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 15 

Figure 2-3: Condition Distribution by Service Area 

 

Park facilities categorized as Poor or Very poor include Mercer Stadium and Queen’s Park Stadium and 
other various buildings at Queen’s Park. Engineering facilities also have a significant value of facilities in 
Poor or Very Poor condition. These facilities include several buildings at the Engineering Operations site 
at 901 First Street and the leased facility at 151 Spruce Street. A full list of the estimated FCI and 
associated condition for each facility is provided in Appendix A. 

Page 75 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 16 

3 Understanding Levels of Service 
In the State of Infrastructure Section, the value, age, and condition of the City’s infrastructure assets 
were discussed. The Levels of Service (LOS) chapter builds on the State of Infrastructure by defining the 
performance the City’s assets are intended to deliver over their service lives to support higher-level 
organizational objectives. For example, part of the City’s Parks and Recreation vision is to deliver a well-
maintained network of facilities that provide creative and innovative services and programs for its 
residents1.  

LOS are measures that describe the outputs and objectives 
the City intends to deliver to its residents, businesses, and 
other stakeholders.  

In general, LOS are guided by a combination of customer 
expectations, legislative requirements, internal policies and 
procedures, and affordability. Effective asset management 
requires that LOS be formalized and supported through a 
framework of performance measures, performance levels, 
and timeframes to achieve performance levels, such that the 
costs to deliver the service levels can be determined. 

The City's facilities play a role in ensuring the successful delivery of essential services to the community. 
These facilities provide a wide range of spaces, such as offices for City staff as well as critical facilities for 
fire and police, and operations facilities for staff who oversee roads and parks operations. The City’s 
recreation and culture facilities, including recreation centres, community centres, Anvil Centre, and the 
museum, support participation in physical and social activities that enrich the lives of residents. Libraries 
and parks facilities, including parks washrooms, also contribute to the community's overall quality of life. 

3.1 Levels of Service and Line of Sight 

Figure 3-1 shows the LOS framework and line of sight from high-level Corporate initiatives to detailed 
asset-specific Technical LOS. Corporate commitments, along with legislated LOS guide Customer LOS that 
measure the services that the assets need to deliver from the residents’ perspective. Customer LOS are 
categorized to one of the following service attributes: 

• Capacity & Use: Services have enough capacity and are available at appropriate times  to residents 
and relevant stakeholders 

• Function: Services meet customer needs while limiting health, safety, security, natural and 
heritage impacts 

• Quality & Reliability: Services are provided reliably and to the agreed quality to residents and 
relevant stakeholders  

• Affordability: Services are financially sustainable  

 

 

A key focus of the City’s 2023 to 
2026 Strategic Plan is to deliver 

resilient infrastructure and 
sustainable service today and 
into the future. Developing, 

monitoring, and reporting on 
LOS are all integral parts of an 

overall performance 
management program which 
support efficient provision of 
services to City stakeholders. 

Page 76 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 17 

1 Reference: City Parks & Recreation website: About Parks & Recreation | City of New Westminster (newwestcity.ca) 

Technical LOS define asset performance levels. These LOS drive the required lifecycle activities and 
associated funding that are needed to mitigate risks to service levels. As shown in Figure 3-1: 

• Capacity & Use LOS informs Growth needs; i.e., does a facility or service area have enough physical 
space? 

• Function LOS informs Upgrade needs; i.e., does a facility function appropriately?  
• Quality & Reliability LOS informs Renewal, Operations and Maintenance needs, i.e., is a facility in 

an appropriate condition level?  
• Affordability LOS informs Funding needs 

Capacity & Use, and Function LOS are generally informed by Master Plans and studies. In this FAMP, 
Quality & Reliability LOS relate to building condition and are primarily informed by the Facility Condition 
Assessment Data.  

This Line of Sight establishes the connection of how the day-to-day management of City assets supports 
the achievement of higher-level strategic priorities. 

Identified Data Gaps related to Establishing Levels of Service 

The FAMP work has demonstrated that additional data is needed to improve the City’s overall 
understanding of Levels of Service for work related to improvements (upgrades) or building capacity 
(growth/expansion). Some of this work is already underway through Master Plans and studies, and the 
next FAMP update is anticipated to close some of these gaps as Master Plans and studies are completed. 

Page 77 of 130

https://www.newwestcity.ca/parks-and-recreation/about-parks-and-recreation#purpose


 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 18 

Figure 3-1: Levels of Service Framework 

 

Page 78 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 19 

3.2 Corporate Levels of Service 

The Corporate, or Strategic LOS establish service levels that describe the main vision or objective of 
service delivery at the City. The 2023-2026 Strategic Priorities Plan provides five areas of focus that 
reflect the needs of the community and in turn guide the management of the City’s assets. 

Strategic Plan Focus 
Area 

Supporting Goals 

Community Belonging 
and Connecting 

A community where everyone belongs and has the opportunity to connect 
and contribute. 

Homes and Housing 
Options 

Clear the way for all types of homes needed by people today and tomorrow, 
prioritizing homes for those with the greatest need. 

People-Centered 
Economy 

A local, nimble, resilient economy that serves our local community. 

Safe Movement of 
People 

Prioritize the movement of people on foot, cycle and transit on streets that 
are safer for all. 

Asset Management 
and Infrastructure 

Resilient infrastructure that meets the community’s needs today and into the 
future. 

   

These focus areas set a framework for the required actions that enable the City to provide services 
important to the community, and support the City’s vision to be a vibrant, compassionate, resilient city 
where everyone can thrive. The Strategic Priorities Plan is supported by and aligned with other City 
planning documents and department goals including the following: 

2017 Official Community Plan (Updated April 2023) 
The Official Community Plan provides direction to realize the City’s opportunities and manage assets and 
issues to ensure that the City remains one of the most livable communities in Metro Vancouver. It 
describes the kind of community that the municipality wishes to evolve into and acknowledges the 
importance of shaping growth in a way that is responsive to the City’s distinct circumstances. 

Goals of the Official Community Plan related to facility assets include: 

• Community and Individual Well-Being: New Westminster is an equitable, inclusive, safe, and 
welcoming place where all community members have opportunities to contribute, while feeling 
connected and accepted. 

• Culture: New Westminster encourages opportunities to generate and encounter the diverse 
creative, spiritual, intellectual, and material features of the city and its development. 

• Energy, Emissions, and Climate Change: New Westminster is an energy-efficient and low-carbon 
community that takes action to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and is resilient to the impacts 
of climate change. 

• Heritage: New Westminster has a strong sense of historic identity, and it values, promotes, and 
protects its heritage assets. 

• Parks & Recreation: New Westminster provides excellent programs, events, and recreation 
opportunities for all within a high-quality, comprehensive network of parks, open spaces, and 
facilities. 

Page 79 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 20 

 

 

Envision 2032 (Sustainability Framework) 
The City developed ten (10) guiding principles within the City’s Sustainability Framework, “Envision 
2032” to help the City evaluate future decisions and initiatives with a lens on social, economic, and 
environmental perspectives. The Envision 2032 framework is shown in Figure 3-2 which identifies the 
environmental and economic factors and further expands on social factors to include: Arts and Culture as 
well as Community, Liveability and Social Equality. 

Figure 3-2: The City’ Sustainability Framework 

 
The Envision 2032 Guiding Sustainability Principles that were identified as being relevant to the facility 
assets are included below: 

• Apply long-term thinking to all decision making. 
• Achieve lasting economic security and social wellbeing, with vibrant arts and culture. 
• Minimize ecological footprint, which is the total impact of production and consumption activities 

on the earth, whether this takes place within or outside of the City. 
• Strive towards continuous measurable improvement in meeting sustainability objectives. 
• Institutionalize accountability and transparency in governance practices. 

Seven Bold Steps and Corporate Energy & Emissions Reduction Strategy (CEERS 2020) 
To support the climate emergency declaration in 2019, the City established a climate action budgeting 
framework and seven bold steps with the goal of moving New Westminster towards a zero-carbon future 

Page 80 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 21 

by 2050. Through Bold Step number 1, Carbon Free Corporation, the City pledged that it will work to 
exceed its 2030 climate emergency target of 45% (below 2010 emissions levels) by striving to be net zero 
by 2030. In order to reach this aggressive target, the City will need to take significant measures to reduce 
its emissions. The Corporate Energy & Emissions Reduction Strategy (CEERS) primarily helps the City 
achieve Bold Step number 1, however many of the recommended strategies within the document also 
advances other bold steps. 

Planning by Service Areas 
Several Service Areas and Departments across the City have developed Master Plans, strategies, or 
Vision/Mission statements that have driven past, on-going, and future projects. Several of these plans 
are also in development or currently being updated, as indicated in Table 3-1. 

Table 3-1: Service-Area Specific Planning Documents and Vision/Mission Statements 
Service Area / 
Department 

Planning Document or Vision/Mission Statement 

Parks & Recreation 

Parks & Recreation Comprehensive Plan (2008 – update in development) 
In the 2008 Parks & Recreation Comprehensive Plan, it was noted that parks 
and recreation services will be challenged to keep pace with growth, as 
green space faces pressures due to development, facilities continue to age, 
and the population ages and becomes more diverse. The City has completed 
additional plans as required over the years to define a long-term vision for 
Queen’s Park, Riverfront Park, Westminster Pier Park, and Hume Park.  

New Westminster 
Public Library (NWPL) 

2021-2025 Strategic Plan 
The City’s Public Library’s 2021-2025 Strategic Plan ensures the continued 
provision of core library services expected by the community it serves. 
NWPL’s vision is to provide an inclusive and diverse community where 
everyone is learning, connected, and inspired. 

Child Care 

Child Care Strategy (2016 – update in development) 
The Child Care Strategy provides an overall framework and long-term 
direction for childcare in the City. The update to the Strategy will continue to 
reflect the City’s commitment in the belief that quality, accessible and 
affordable childcare is necessary in the creation of a healthy community and 
prosperous economy. 

Culture (Museum and 
Archives) 

Mission and Mandate 
The New Westminster Museum and Archives (NWMA) strive to enhance 
knowledge and deepen understanding of the City and its diverse peoples – 
from the First Nations cultures to the multicultural community of today – by 
illuminating past events, exploring current issues, and facilitating 
conversations around future possibilities. The NWMA is mandated to: 

Page 81 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 22 

Service Area / 
Department 

Planning Document or Vision/Mission Statement 

• collect, preserve and house the objects, archival materials, natural 
history specimens and collective memories that best serve to 
illustrate the first peoples, environment, founding, settlement, 
relationships, and development of the New Westminster area;  

• research, make available, interpret and exhibit its collections for the 
use and benefit of the public 

• engage with all peoples and organizations that can inform and 
support the narratives of the New Westminster area 

Culture (Arts & 
Theatre) 

New Westminster Arts Strategy 

The City’s Arts Strategy recognizes that artists, arts organizations, 
infrastructure investment and local arts generation are significant and valued 
components of a healthy and creative community.  The Strategy lays the 
groundwork to create a sustainable, resilient, innovative creative sector that 
reflects the community’s needs.  

New Westminster Theatre Strategy 

The New Westminster Theatre Strategy grew from the Arts Strategy, and 
provides a focused plan specific to the City’s theatre assets, namely the 
Massey Theatre and Arts Complex and Complex, Anvil Theatre and the 
Bernie Legge Theatre.  The Strategy lays out a framework for governance and 
priority of investment, supporting the unique and distinct civic theatre assets 
in order to provide a stable environment for the continued growth and 
development of all the disciplines of performing arts.  

Fire & Rescue Services 

Vision 
Fire & Rescue Services’ vision is to proudly serve our communities by 
providing exceptional and innovative fire and emergency rescue services. 

New Westminster 
Police Department 

2022-2024 Strategic Plan 
The Police Department (NWPD) has three strategic goals to define its 
direction over the next five to ten years: 

• Listening to the community 
• Serving the community 
• Supporting our people 

   

3.3 Legislated Levels of Service 

Legislated requirements define the standards according to which the City is legally obligated to provide 
services to the community, and these standards typically relate to asset safety or reliability. For example, 

Page 82 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 23 

the B.C. Pool Regulation, B.C. Reg. 296/2010 ensures that public pools meet water quality parameters 
such as water clarity, temperature, pH, and chlorine. Key legislated service levels are considered in this 
FAMP but are generally not documented as measures in Section 3.4 as the City has incorporated 
activities to meet long-standing legislation into its normal day-to-day operations. The City is improving its 
documentation of preventative maintenance tasks, including legislated activities, within its work order 
system to better understand the costs associated with these activities. This data will enable the City to 
consider financial measures related to facility operating costs in the future. 

3.4 Customer and Technical Levels of Service  
As discussed in Section 3.1, Customer LOS measures services from a resident perspective, and Technical 
LOS define asset performance levels. The Customer and Technical LOS discussed in this FAMP are 
focused on measures developed to support achievement of the City’s higher-level strategic goals. The 
City will be completing key planning documents and master plans that will discuss additional service 
levels for input into future updates of this FAMP.  

This FAMP summarizes the City’s performance on the measures for 2023 or 2022 based on the data 
available. The City has determined target performance levels where possible based on currently available 
information. As the City matures in development of its AM Plans, its goal is to involve the public by 
ensuring that service level and financial decisions reflect resident concerns and aspirations. Much of this 
public stakeholder engagement, particularly related to capacity and functional service levels, will be 
considered as part of the City’s master planning process to be completed by individual Service Areas. 

3.4.1 Capacity & Use Levels of Service (informs Growth needs)  

Capacity and Use LOS related to facility assets provides guidance for ensuring there is sufficient 
community infrastructure and facilities to meet the current and projected needs of the population.  To 
manage the impacts of the City’s growing population, evolving demographics, and recreation trends, the 
City maintains an appropriate number of facility spaces to ensure that the City’s portfolio is aligned with 
current and future needs. The City considers a wide range of service levels in determining capacity gaps 
and then considers innovative ways in the use of existing spaces or through partnerships prior to 
determining that a new facility or expanded space is required.  

For recreation facilities, the City maintains data on waitlists, unused time (booked time that is not used), 
and requests from sports groups and residents to understand potential capacity issues. For Community 
Centres and gymnasiums, the City considers geographic perspectives and walking distance time for 
residents and explores opportunities to partner with schools for additional gym space as required to 
maximize efficiencies, prior to acquiring or building a new facility. Pools and Arenas are considered 
destination spaces where utilization rates are generally more important than geographic considerations. 
The City is currently developing an update to the Parks & Recreation Comprehensive Plan which will 
explore service levels and the potential need for expansion or additional facilities. Strategic priorities can 
also dictate the need for a new facility. 

The City also monitors spaces required for City staff and is planning to develop a facility space planning 
strategy that would address current challenges within City Hall and any other critical areas. The City also 
noted that the Engineering Operations Yard has limited capacity and that storage capacity for snow 
events is limited. 

Page 83 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 24 

The New Westminster Public Library (NWPL) keeps track of visitors at both locations as well as program-
related measures such as program attendance and the number of programs held. The NWPL’s 2021-2025 
Strategic Plan identified the need to continually improve physical spaces to meet the diverse needs of 
the community.  

The 2016 Child Care Strategy will be updated to examine the current situation for the City including 
childcare supply and demand factors, while defining the City’s role and recognizing the importance of 
senior levels of government who are primarily responsible for childcare funding and provision. The 2016 
Strategy identified the lack of infant/toddler spaces in Queensborough, leading to the development of 
Riverwalk Day Care Centre. The updated strategy will help identify other gaps and the potential need for 
additional spaces. 

The New Westminster Museum and Archives completes studies as required to ensure adequate and 
appropriate spaces for collecting, preserving, housing, exhibiting and interpreting its various collections – 
the 2004 Museum Planning and Feasibility Study informed the museum space needs in the Anvil Centre. 
Currently, some collections are stored in the Museum Annex, which is to be demolished, and the City 
may have some challenges regarding storage space in the future. It is recommended that storage needs 
be considered as part of the City’s Space Planning Strategy. 

Fire & Rescue Services tracks response times and monitors its performance against the NPFA (National 
Fire Protection Association) 1710 Standard. The standard covers response time objectives such as ‘First 
Engine Arrive on Scene Time’. A Fire Master Plan is currently being developed to analyze emergency 
response and protection services across the City and will inform if there is a need for additional fire hall 
locations or space. Many factors affect response times, including location of fire hall, size of the fire hall 
response district, traffic patterns and routes within the response district, and fire hall design. Non-facility 
factors such as the number of staff and apparatus also impact overall service level performance. 

For Service Areas without a Master Plan or growth study currently planned, it is recommended that the 
City confirm the scope of upcoming corporate studies such as the Space Planning Strategy which could 
cover capacity issues across various Service Areas. 

3.4.2 Functional Levels of Service (informs upgrade needs) 

Table 3-2 summarizes Technical Functional LOS related to Facilities. Functional measures relate to 
providing services that meet customer needs while limiting impacts to health, safety, security, and the 
environment. 

The City’s Accessibility Committee is currently developing an Accessibility Plan which will guide 
accessibility actions within the City. The Accessibility Committee is made up of community members and 
staff liaisons from the New Westminster Public Library, City of New Westminster, and the New 
Westminster Police Department. A future recommended measure is included in Table 3-2 regarding the 
number or percentage of washrooms meeting City accessibility standards, as the City already has a few 
major projects planned for universal and accessible washroom facilities at critical facilities. Performance 
and targets will be set after the Accessibility Plan is developed. The City strives to be a universally 
accessible City where all people can exercise their rights and carry out their daily activities independently 
and without barriers. It is an example of the City’s DEIAR (Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, & Anti-Racism) 
framework, as described in the 2023 to 2026 Strategic Plan, that is woven throughout all the City’s work. 

Page 84 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 25 

Table 3-2: Facilities Levels of Service – Functional 
Levels of Service Technical Performance Measure 

Service Attribute Performance Measure Target Current 
Performance 

Functional 

Accessibility Future: Number or percentage of washrooms 
meeting City accessibility standards TBD TBD 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Annual energy consumption (natural 
gas/electricity) per sq.m. (energy intensity)  * 0.97 

GJ/sq.m.*  

Total GHG emissions (tC02e) for City buildings 2030: 1,038 
tC02e 

2022: 1535 
tC02e 

*Energy consumption is based on City scorecard of 21 main facilities. The City’s goal is to decrease the energy 
intensity each year, though no specific target levels will be set.  

As discussed in Section 3.2, the City established a climate action budgeting framework and seven bold 
steps with the goal of moving New Westminster towards a zero-carbon future by 2050 and an 
aspirational target to be carbon neutral by 2030. To monitor its climate action performance for its 
facilities, the City measures energy consumption on a per square metre basis (energy intensity), and total 
GHG emissions. For each of these measures, the goal is to reduce consumption and emissions over time.  

In the Corporate Energy & Emissions Reduction Strategy (CEERS), as part of an ASHRAE Level 1 energy 
study, a prioritized list of 13 civic facilities underwent a detailed energy assessment. GHG emission 
reduction recommendations ranged from lower cost measures such as recommissioning the building 
automation system (BAS) controls to higher cost measures such as upgrading mechanical systems. These 
13 projects are expected to reduce GHG emissions by 332 tC02e. The new təməsew̓txʷ Aquatic and 
Community Centre (TACC) facility, which replaced the existing Canada games pool, is expected to 
achieve an additional reduction of 815 tCO2e for the City. 

In addition to maintaining accessible and environmentally sustainable facilities, the City’s Service Areas 
and Departments review specific functional needs for its facilities through the master planning process 
and other studies as needed. For example, the major renovation to the Main Branch library completed in 
2018 addressed changes in community needs by adding a new 12-set iConnect LAB used for technology 
instruction and a new Reading Lounge on the main floor. As discussed in Section 3.4.1 for capacity 
service levels, upcoming Master Plans and studies will also inform department specific functional service 
level needs and considerations. 

3.4.3 Quality & Reliability Levels of Service (informs renewal needs) 

Table 3-3 summarizes Customer and Technical Reliability LOS which manage the quality and reliability of 
services provided to the community. Quality and Reliability Levels of Service relate to the condition of a 
building and are informed in this FAMP by the Facility Condition Assessment data.  

Currently, the City’s buildings have an average Facility Condition Index of 17.5% (Fair condition).  

 

 

 

Page 85 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 26 

As indicated in the State of Infrastructure, FCI is calculated by: 

FCI =        Total Cost of Needed Repairs/Renewals 

    Current Replacement Value of Facility 

Municipalities and agencies use different timelines for determining the numerator in the FCI calculation, 
as well as different thresholds relating the FCI to Very Good to Very Poor condition. The City uses a 5-
year FCI which aligns with the British Columbia School Trustees, BC Housing, and the City’s building 
condition assessments completed in 2022. The City recognizes that agencies may update the FCI 
methodology over time based on new and improved data, and will consider alignment with other 
municipalities and organizations as appropriate in future updates to the FAMP. 

Table 3-3: Facilities Levels of Service – Quality & Reliability 
Levels of Service Customer Performance Measure Technical Performance Measure 

LOS 
Category 

Service 
Value 

Performance 
Measure Target Current 

Performance 
Performance 
Measure Target Current 

Performance 

Quality & 
Reliability Quality 

% of facilities 
in Fair or 
better 
condition 
(based on FCI)   

Maintain 
Current 

Performance* 
71.3% 

Facility 
Condition 
Index (Overall 
Average) 

Maintain 
~17% 

17.5%  
(Fair) 

*Strive to maintain over 70% based on current performance of 71.3% 

From a customer and resident perspective, the condition of a facility is more understandable when 
represented as a qualitative condition rating rather than the FCI percentage, and therefore the customer 
performance measure is reported in terms of the percentage of facilities estimated to be in fair or better 
condition (the conversion of FCI to 5-point condition scale was discussed in Section 2.6, including a 
summary of average FCI by Service Area). 

By value of facilities, 71.3% of facilities are in fair or better condition. Note that the average FCI and 
71.3% of facilities in fair or better condition includes the $114.6 value of the TACC1, which accounts for 
23% of the City’s overall facility portfolio value. 

As the City improves its work order system tracking, it will also consider other reliability measures in the 
future such as those related to the downtime of critical assets, such as elevators and boilers.  

3.4.4 Affordability Service Levels 

Table 3-4 summarizes Technical Affordability LOS related to Facilities. The average annual renewal 
investment rate measures the percentage of capital investment divided by the replacement value of the 
portfolio. Per industry benchmarks, such as the Canadian Infrastructure Report Card (2016), it is 
recommended that municipalities invest 1.7% to 2.5% of their facility asset portfolio value into capital 
renewal each year. Based on the analysis in the Lifecycle Strategy, this FAMP recommends an average 
annual investment of 1.4% for the $506.5 million facility portfolio over the next 10 years to maintain 
service levels (Facility Condition Index ~17%). A higher investment of 1.7% will be required to improve 
service levels, and these investment levels are discussed in further detail in the Financial Strategy section 
of the FAMP. 

Page 86 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 27 

Historically, the City has only been investing approximately 1% annually in capital renewal over the past 
few years, excluding the TACC1 from the historical investment rate calculation as it is being constructed 
in 2023. Funding shortfalls will be discussed further in Section 6. 

As indicated in Section 2.3, as the City continues to improve its data collection and tracking, a future 
measure to consider is the operating and maintenance cost of facilities per square foot, which would be 
enabled by setting up the City’s work order system to track hours and costs. 

Table 3-4: Facilities Levels of Service – Affordability 
Levels of Service Technical Performance Measure 

LOS 
Category Service Value Performance Measure Target Current 

Performance 

Affordability 
Financial 

Sustainability/ 
Efficiency 

Facility asset renewal 
annual investment as a % 
of replacement value 

1.4% 
2021/2022: 

Approximately 
1% 

 

1At the time of writing this FAMP, the TACC is a new facility soon to be completed  

Page 87 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 28 

3.5 External Trends and Issues Affecting Levels of Service 

The City’s ability to maintain current service levels may be impacted by external trends and factors. 
Future updates to the FAMP will consider such factors as they occur and incorporate them into the 
reporting and setting of appropriate service levels. 

• Demographic Factors: Population and employment changes can impact the intensity and 
frequency of infrastructure use, resulting in the need for additional infrastructure or more 
frequent asset renewal strategies.  

• Social and Economic Factors: Increases in environmentally conscious behaviour and attitudes 
among residents and businesses can lead to infrastructure that lasts longer and is more efficient. 
From an economic perspective, higher costs due to increases to the cost of materials and energy 
can reduce the ability to maintain the same level of service. Increased tourism initiatives may 
also have potential impacts on required service levels. 

• Technological Factors: Changes in technology or asset construction, operation, or maintenance 
methods may lead to the replacement of obsolete equipment or materials, helping to achieve 
higher quality service levels and better cost efficiencies over future asset lifecycles. 

• Regulatory Factors: The City is subject to various policies, programs, and legislative decisions 
issued by other levels of government (i.e., federal, provincial, and regional), and such legislative 
changes can impact the City’s strategic direction and demand for services. Specific asset-related 
legislation can also impact the required performance levels of assets. 

• Environmental Factors: To support the climate emergency declaration in 2019, the City 
established a climate action budgeting framework and seven bold steps with the goal of moving 
New Westminster towards a zero-carbon future by 2050. Mitigation and adaptation strategies to 
minimize the impacts of climate change will continue to be developed and implemented by the 
City as climate change impacts on service levels are better understood. 

Page 88 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 29 

4 Risk Management 
A key asset management objective is to meet service levels while managing risk and minimizing lifecycle 
costs. The relative importance of the assets to support service delivery, referred to as asset criticality, is a 
key driver in the selection and prioritization of appropriate asset management strategies. Critical assets 
typically have high consequence of failure ratings because failure of these assets will have a high adverse 
affect on the City’s ability to provide the required service levels.  

Asset failures pose risks to meeting service levels related to capacity, function, or reliability, and 
therefore may compromise the delivery of the City's strategic priorities. Lifecycle activities are used to 
manage the risk of failure by reducing the risks to acceptable levels.  

This FAMP follows a six-step risk management process that conforms with the ISO 31000 Risk 
Management standard and aligns with the City’s Strategic Asset Management Plan (SAMP). 

1. Risk Context 
2. Risk Identification 
3. Risk Analysis 
4. Risk Evaluation 
5. Risk Treatment & Control 
6. Risk Monitoring & Review 

4.1 Risk Context 

Understanding the risk landscape in the context of what the City is trying to achieve is the first 
component to developing an effective risk management methodology. Asset risks are addressed 
subjectively by each department and there is no formal risk register or risk treatment plan. The City’s 
SAMP includes a preliminary risk framework for the City, which has now been pilot tested as part of the 
development of the City’s first AM Plans as well as the preliminary risk assessment provided in this 
FAMP. The future state for the City is to have a fully developed and operationalized risk framework 
consistent across service areas that is used to make risk-based decisions. 

As described in the City’s SAMP, risks may be categorized into enterprise and asset risks. The focus of 
this FAMP is on asset risks, which includes risks associated with facilities with respect to poor condition, 
service interruptions, accessibility issues, and poor energy efficiency. For this FAMP, the asset risks are 
defined at the facility level, i.e., the risk to each building. To help with prioritization of projects, further 
assessment is recommended to assess risks at the component level and the associated impact to the 
facility. 

Enterprise Risk considers higher-level business continuity impacts such as seismic events, pandemics, 
strikes, and extreme weather events. The main enterprise risk considered in this FAMP is extreme 
weather events related to climate change. 

4.2 Risk Identification 

Risk identification is the process of finding and describing risks within the context of the organization. 
Table 4-1 provides a small sample of risk events that may be contemplated as part of a larger risk 

Page 89 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 30 

register. The risk register is a work in progress and will need to be updated as part of the City’s ongoing 
asset management journey. One key goal through risk analysis work is to create a formalized approach 
for communicating risks to key decision makers (i.e., Council). This iteration of the FAMP includes a first 
step to formalizing risk, but improvements in this area are expected as further risk analysis work is 
completed  with each FAMP iteration.  In this FAMP, Step 3 (Risk Analysis) and Step 4 (Risk Evaluation) 
have been carried out for quality & reliability risk related to asset condition. Risk analysis and evaluation 
for capacity and functional risks are typically more appropriate to evaluate on a project-by-project basis 
due to the differing nature and scope of projects addressing these risks. The risks in Table 4-1 are further 
discussed in Sections 4.2.1 to 4.2.4. 

Table 4-1: Risk Register - Asset and Enterprise Risks 
Levels of Service Risk Identification 

Service Attribute Risk Event Cause 

Asset Risks 

Capacity Facility cannot meet capacity requirements, 
resulting in unmet community needs 

Inadequate planning or lack of 
funding for expansion/ additional 
facilities 

Functional 

Accessibility 
Facility spaces are not inclusive and do not 
accommodate unique needs of all residents 
and City staff 

Inadequate planning or lack of 
funding for facility upgrades 
related to accessibility 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Facilities contribute to high GHG emissions, 
increasing operational costs and 
contributing further to climate change 

Inadequate planning or lack of 
funding for upgrades related to 
energy efficiency 

Quality & 
Reliability Quality 

Facilities are in poor condition, resulting in 
service disruptions or health and safety risks 
to residents or staff 

Inadequate planning or lack of 
funding for state of good repair 
needs (including operations, 
maintenance and or renewal 
activities) 

Enterprise Risks 

Climate Change Impacts 
(General impacts to all service 

attributes) 

Extreme weather events damaging facilities 
and causing faster deterioration of building 
components 

Inadequate understanding of 
facility vulnerabilities and lack of 
funding to implement facility 
upgrades for resiliency. Lack of 
funding to account for faster 
deterioration of building 
components. 

 

4.2.1 Risks to Capacity Service Levels 

Ensuring that population growth is managed in a sustainable, efficient, and financially responsible 
manner is central to the long-term health, prosperity, and well-being of the City and its residents. As 
discussed in Section 3.4.1, to manage the impacts of the City’s growing population and changing 
demographics (and associated preferences), the City maintains an appropriate number of facility spaces 
to ensure that the City’s portfolio is aligned with current and future needs. The City considers a wide 
range of service levels in determining capacity gaps and then considers innovative ways in the use of 
existing spaces or through partnerships prior to determining that a new facility or expanded space is 
required. Strategic priorities can also dictate the need for a new facility. Master Planning or related 

Page 90 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 31 

studies by each Service Area should be developed for managing the risks associated to capacity service 
levels. 

4.2.2 Risks to Functional Service Levels (related to upgrades) 

The City also plans for service improvements to functional service levels while balancing these risks 
against capacity and reliability-related needs. As discussed in the 3.4.2, the City’s Accessibility Committee 
is currently developing an Accessibility Plan which will guide accessibility actions within the City. This 
Accessibility Plan will be developed with the City’s DEIAR (Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, & Anti-Racism) lens 
and will aim to mitigate risks related to inaccessible and inequitable spaces. 

For addressing environmental sustainability, the City established a climate action budgeting framework 
and seven bold steps with the goal of moving New Westminster towards a zero-carbon future by 2050 
and an aspirational target to be carbon neutral by 2030. In the Corporate Energy & Emissions Reduction 
Strategy (CEERS), the City has set specific GHG emission reduction recommendations and targets. 

4.2.3 Risks to Quality and Reliability Service Levels (related to renewals) 

The Quality & Reliability Level of Service refers to maintaining City facilities in a state of good repair to 
reduce the incidence of unscheduled service interruptions due to poor asset condition while minimizing 
lifecycle costs. Depending on the asset, unplanned failures can have wide-ranging consequences 
including service disruption, damage to surrounding infrastructure and property, risks to public safety, 
and environmental impacts. This FAMP provides a preliminary assessment of quality and reliability risk in 
alignment with Step 3 (Risk Analysis) and Step 4 (Risk Evaluation) of the City’s SAMP. 

4.2.4 Risks due to Climate Change 

Climate change risks such as more intense and frequent rainfalls, rain on snow events, heat waves, and 
ice-storms can have significant implications on facility infrastructure. An increase in extreme weather 
events will likely lead to increased investment in maintenance and system improvements. Understanding 
the severity and frequency of these climate change events and incorporation of climate change 
considerations into the City’s asset management planning approach is critical to maintaining service 
levels and managing risk.  

As indicated in Section 4.2.2, the City has implemented initiatives to help mitigate climate change 
through GHG emission reduction targets. From a climate change adaptation perspective, through its 
facility condition assessments (FCAs), the City maintains a current understanding of how its facilities are 
deteriorating with respect to the impacts of extreme weather on its building components. An additional 
recommendation is for the City to consider vulnerability assessments on critical facilities. Municipalities 
are starting to carry out vulnerability assessments based on industry standard methodologies such as the 
Public Infrastructure Engineering Vulnerability Committee (PIEVC) Protocol. The vulnerability 
assessments, in addition to identifying asset deterioration risks, provide recommendations not typically 
covered by an FCA. A vulnerability assessment can help identify potential upgrades for increased 
resiliency and facility design adaptation, such as designing for larger capacity HVAC systems, installing 
emergency generators, and improving site drainage system design.  

Page 91 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 32 

4.3 Risk Analysis 

The City’s preliminary risk strategy in the FAMP estimates the quality and reliability risk exposure of its 
assets to inform the prioritization of renewal projects across asset classes and service areas. Risk 
exposure is the multiplication of two factors: 

Risk Exposure = Consequence of Failure x Probability of Failure 
 

The criticality or consequence of failure (CoF) is the direct and indirect impact on the City if an asset 
failure were to occur, and the probability of failure (PoF) is the probability that an asset failure may 
occur.  

4.3.1 Probability of Failure1 

Probability of Failure (PoF) is estimated based on the condition of the facility from the State of 
Infrastructure analysis, as summarized in Table 4-2. For facilities, Facility Condition Index is used to 
assess the overall facility condition. 

Table 4-2: Probability of Failure Ratings for Reliability 
PoF Rating* Facility Condition FCI  

1 Very Good 0 to 5%  

2 Good >5 to 15%  

3 Fair >15 to 30%  

4 Poor >30 to 60%  

5 Very Poor >60%  

*PoF Rating = Facility Condition 

4.3.2 Consequence of Failure 

CoF (or asset criticality) reflects the importance of an asset to the City’s delivery of services. The 
following impacts of a potential asset failure are considered to assess consequence of failure: 

• Financial: damages to City infrastructure or private property, loss of City revenue and/or 
incurring unbudgeted operating expenses, and fines. 

• Health and Safety: the degree and extent of potential injury, ranging from negligible injuries to 
loss of life. 

• Availability/Reliability: considers the extent (number of people impacted) and length of the 
service disruption. 

• Legislation: considers violations to bylaws or regulations. 
• Environmental:  acknowledges the length and extent of damages to the natural environment. 

                                                           

 

1 The Probability of Failure (PoF) defined in Table 4-2 is tailored for Facilities at the asset level, and is therefore not aligned with the PoF 
definition in the SAMP. To ensure consistency across the City, the SAMP’s PoF definition should be used when a risk assessment is completed 
for Enterprise or system wide Risks.  

Page 92 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 33 

• Corporate Image: considers reputational damage to the City. 

Table 4-3 summarizes the above listed impacts against an asset criticality rating scale from 1 to 5, with a 
higher score reflecting a higher consequence of failure. Understanding criticality enables risk to be 
incorporated into the development of the lifecycle management strategies. More critical assets are 
prioritized over less critical assets for expansion, inspection, cleaning, maintenance, and renewal, 
depending on their current and forecasted performance. 

Table 4-3: CoF (Asset Criticality) Rating Scale 
 

 
 

Page 93 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 34 

CoF is estimated for each asset type based on the expected impact of a facility failing to provide the 
required service according to the rating scale provided in Table 4-3. Risk is then assessed with the 
probability of failure (facility condition) from the State of Infrastructure analysis. 

A summary of the CoF scoring for facility assets is provided in Appendix B. For most facilities, the main 
CoF factor is availability/reliability (the number of people affected by facility closure). For Emergency 
facilities for Police and Fire Services, health and safety is the main impact. These facilities are critical as 
there is a potential for fatalities and serious injury if these facilities are not in operation. 

The Engineering Operations (Main Office) has the highest rating of 5 due to potential City-wide service 
disruptions if the facility is not available. Severe impacts (rating of 4) due to service delivery was assigned 
to City Hall, Massey Theatre and Arts Complex, and Anvil Centre, as well as main recreation facilities such 
as the arenas, Queensborough Community Centre, Queen’s Park Sportsplex, and the new TACC facility. 

For parks facilities, most are assumed to have a minor CoF score of 2 (localized service disruption of 100 
to 500 people affected). A lower score of 1 is assigned to structures such as picnic shelters and gazebos. 
Facilities with higher public access (Mercer Stadium, Moody Park Little League Stadium, Queen’s Park 
Stadium, and Queensborough Outdoor Stage) are assigned a moderate CoF rating of 3. 

Risk Map 

As part of the risk strategy, the risk results are plotted on a risk map (example format in Figure 4-1) to 
show a visual representation of risk exposure across the City’s assets. The location of the assets on the 
map denotes various levels of risk and help to prioritize the City’s resources, time, and effort for renewal 
activities. 

• Very High risks in the red zone: the risk is intolerable and must be reduced. The potential for 
failure must be addressed as a high priority.  

• High risks in the orange zone: the risk is manageable, but consequences are experienced upon 
failure. Monitoring and maintenance actions are required.  

• Moderate risks in the yellow zone: The risk can be tolerated if it is as low as reasonably 
practicable. If a cost-effective action can be identified to reduce the risk, then it should be 
implemented. 

• Low risks in the green zones: The risk is acceptable provided there are replacements and 
contingencies in place to ensure smooth operations. Run to fail strategies may be provided for 
non-critical assets. 

Figure 4-1: Reliability Risk Map Format 

PoF 

5        Risk 
Category 

4        Very High 

3        High 

2        Moderate 

1        Low 

    1 2 3 4 5   Total 

    CoF     

Page 94 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 35 

 
The risk assessment in this FAMP is a high-level assessment for understanding the City’s risk exposure at 
a facility-level but does not replace the specific project risks assessed as part of the annual capital 
budgeting process. 

The criticality and risk in this FAMP are estimated for facilities at the overall building level. In the future, 
the City plans to assign asset risk at the more detailed building component level in line with the building 
condition assessments. A preliminary CoF assessment for building components is provided in Appendix C, 
which can be combined with the facility CoF score to generate a rating specific to a building component 
in a particular facility. This detailed assessment is not provided in the FAMP but can be used by the City 
to further inform capital project planning at the component level. 

Page 95 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 36 

4.4 Risk Evaluation 

Based on the facility-level risk assessment, the following facilities with a replacement value of $119.2 
million are currently estimated to be in the Very High risk category (refer to Figure 4-2): 

• Queens Park – Stadium 
• Queen's Park - Arena 
• City Hall 
• Massey Theatre and Arts Complex  
• Queensborough Fire Hall 
• West End Fire Hall 2 
• Engineering Operations: Engineering Main Office 
• Engineering Operations: Electrical Operations Main Office 
• Mercer Stadium Grandstand and Washroom 

Figure 4-2: Current Reliability Risk (by Replacement Value in $M*) 

 
*Totals may not add up to an exact match with asset values due to rounding 

4.5 Risk Treatment & Control 

Risk treatment is the process of reducing the risks to acceptable levels. To reduce the risk, options may 
include the elimination of the causes of risk; reducing the likelihood or consequences of risk; sharing or 
transferring the risk to other parties through outsourcing, insuring against the risk; or in some cases, 
simply accepting the risk. Potential risk treatments are described in Table 4-4. Treatments related to 
asset lifecycle activities (new or expanded facilities, facility upgrades, and asset renewal) are described 
further in Section 5 (Lifecycle Strategy). 

5 $0.4 $7.6 $7.8 $0.0 $0.0 Risk 
Category

Replacement 
Value ($M) %

4 $0.0 $16.1 $1.9 $96.1 $15.3 Very High $119.2 23.5%

3 $0.0 $13.4 $47.5 $11.7 $7.2 High $70.7 14.0%

2 $0.0 $5.3 $33.6 $13.7 $28.5 Moderate $284.5 56.2%

1 $1.6 $9.6 $15.6 $173.6 $0.0 Low $32.1 6.3%

1 2 3 4 5 Total $506.5 100.0%

PoF

CoF

Page 96 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 37 

Table 4-4: Asset and Enterprise Risks with Potential Treatments 
Levels of Service Risk Identification 

Service Attribute Risk Event Risk Treatment 

Asset Risks 

Capacity 
Facility cannot meet capacity 
requirements, resulting in unmet 
community needs 

Master Planning to understand and 
address growth and demographic 
changes, and identifying the funding 
needed for new or expanded 
facilities 

Functional 

Accessibility 
Facility spaces are not inclusive and do 
not accommodate unique needs of all 
residents and City staff 

Accessibility Plan with service levels 
to identify required upgrade projects 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

Facilities contribute to high GHG 
emissions, increasing operational costs 
and contributing further to climate 
change 

Implement upgrade projects related 
to GHG emission reduction targets 
(as identified in Corporate Energy & 
Emissions Reduction Strategy) 
 
For any energy consuming 
equipment, identify opportunities to 
reduce energy consumption and 
remove fossil fuel use, and identify 
opportunities to incorporate public 
and/or fleet electric vehicle charging. 

Quality & 
Reliability Quality 

Facilities are in poor condition due to 
poor renewal practices, resulting in 
service disruptions or health and safety 
risks to residents or staff 

Implementation of projects from 
building condition assessments into 
Capital Plan with identified funding 

Enterprise Risks 

Climate Change Impacts 
(General impacts to all service 

attributes) 

Extreme weather events damaging 
facilities and causing faster deterioration 
of building components 

Continued understanding of asset 
deterioration through regular 
building condition assessments and 
consideration of building 
vulnerability assessments to improve 
resiliency (adaptation measures) to 
extreme weather events 

4.6 Risk Monitoring & Review 

Monitoring and reviewing risk levels, emerging risks and risk trends is important to manage the delivery 
of facility services. Per the City’s SAMP, it is recommended that the City develop procedures to regularly 
check and critically observe the risk register and risk plan. A starting point is to focus on reliability risk 
and update the risk profile in Section 4.4 on an annual basis to reflect updated risk scores after the 
implementation of treatment strategies. 

Further risk analysis is recommended to apply risks in a formalized way to capital planning (refer to 
Section 7). This work will assist in decision making regarding the prioritization of capital plan projects.  

Page 97 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 38 

5 Lifecycle Strategy 
The City expands or builds new facilities to meet capacity needs, upgrades assets to meet functional 
needs, and manages existing assets to meet reliability needs with available funding. Asset lifecycle 
management strategies are planned activities that enable assets to provide the service levels while 
managing risk at the lowest lifecycle cost. Asset lifecycle management strategies are typically organized 
into the categories listed in Table 5-1. 

Table 5-1: Asset Lifecycle Management Categories 

Lifecycle 
Activity 

Category 
Description Examples of Associated 

Activities 

Expand/Grow 
Activities to provide a new asset that did not 
exist previously or an expansion to an existing 
asset 

New or expanded asset 
construction such as an 
expansion to a facility 

Upgrade 
Activities to provide a higher level of service 
capability from an existing asset to achieve 
better fit for purpose or meet regulatory 
requirements 

Upgrades for HVAC energy 
efficiency, upgrades to meet 
washroom accessibility 
requirements 

Renew Activities that return the original service 
capability of an asset 

Minor or major asset 
rehabilitations, asset 
replacements 

Operate Regular activities to provide services Inspections, cleaning, utilities 

Maintain Activities to retain asset condition to enable it 
to provide service for its planned life 

Planned maintenance, minor 
repairs, component 
replacements within a facility 

 

In addition to the above asset strategies, non-asset solutions are also considered which are actions or 
policies that can lower costs, lower demands, or also extend asset life. For example, integrated capital 
planning such as bundling roof rehabilitations across multiple facilities under one contract may enable 
cost savings by grouping work into one project.  Similarly, remote working policies can help lower the 
demand for facility office space. 

5.1 Lifecycle Management Needs 

The City intends to use its understanding of risks associated with different service levels to inform the 
timing and level of investments needed for its facility assets. This section of the FAMP outlines the City’s 
growth needs to support capacity service levels, upgrade needs to address functional service levels, and 
the operations, maintenance, and renewal activities to support reliability service levels. 

Disposals are performed as required when facilities are no longer required, too expensive to rehabilitate, 
or replaced by a new facility. The City reviews service levels related to condition and capacity to evaluate 
when a facility should be considered for disposal or replacement. The City recently closed the Canada 
Games Pool and is planning for the demolition of Centennial Community Centre in 2024. The new TACC 
facility replaces and provides additional capacity compared to these two previous facilities. 

Page 98 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 39 

5.2 Planned Capital Growth 

The City’s main new facility over the next year is the TACC (təməsew̓txʷ Aquatic and Community Centre), 
with planned funding remaining of $3.2 million in 2024. The new facility reinforces the community’s 
cultural identity as an active healthy city by providing an important social and recreation gathering place 
for all its diverse residents. New facilities such as TACC are required to meet the City’s Green Building 
Policy. Important aspects of the new facility include: 

• Providing essential services as the only indoor pool in the community as well as being an 
important regional asset for fitness, length swimming and competitive training 

• Providing a variety of multipurpose spaces that can be programmed for a range of fitness, 
training, leisure, and rehabilitation uses in order to meet both current and future demands 

• Supporting excellence in competitive aquatics with a facility that can uphold the legacy of the 
Canada Games 

• Offering an opportunity for a new, larger facility with improved operating efficiency and reduced 
energy consumption 

• Creating a complete civic precinct with improved vehicular, cycling and pedestrian connections. 

In addition to the TACC, the City is also completing a new public free-standing washroom. This washroom 
is a cross-departmental effort from the Homelessness Response Working Group, to address the need for 
accessible public washroom facilities for all people. This project is expected to be completed in 2024. 

As indicated in Section 3.4.1, the City is currently developing capacity service levels through on-going 
Master Plans and other future studies. Updates to this FAMP will consider capacity service levels 
established in these future plans and the potential need for new facilities. Therefore, this FAMP reports 
on the currently planned growth projects but does not identify the total needs required to meet growth 
service levels. 

5.3 Planned Capital Upgrades 

Upgrade needs are identified as the currently planned projects relating to upgrade in the City’s 5-year 
Capital Plan. Major renovations, similar to new facilities, adhere to the City’s Green Building Policy. As 
discussed in the Levels of Service Tech Memo, in the Corporate Energy & Emissions Reduction Strategy 
(CEERS), the City has set specific GHG emission reduction recommendations and targets. The estimated 
costs of these projects totaled $1.3M, and the City currently has $1.1M of GHG emission reduction 
projects planned in the 2024 to 2028 Capital Plan. 

The City’s Accessibility Committee is currently developing an Accessibility Plan which will guide 
accessibility actions within the City to mitigate risks related to inaccessible spaces. Upgrades listed in the 
current Capital plan include upgrades of the change rooms and washrooms at all three Fire Halls and the 
police station to be non-gendered and universal. 

The average annual expenditure on upgrade projects in the 2024 to 2028 Capital Plan is $2.5/yr, as 
shown in Figure 5-1. Other upgrade projects include EV charging station infrastructure, new bicycle 
parking, and upgrades at Massey Theatre and Arts Complex. Several upgrade projects such as Massey 

Page 99 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 40 

Theatre and Arts Complex are both renewal and upgrade projects. For these projects, it is assumed that 
50% of the projects are associated to upgrade needs. 

As indicated in Section 3.4.2, the City is currently developing functional service levels through future 
Master Plans and studies. Therefore, this FAMP reports on the currently planned upgrade projects but 
does not identify the total needs required to meet functional service levels. 

Figure 5-1: 5-Year Planned Capital Upgrades 

 

5.4 Capital Renewal Needs 

The facility renewal forecast is based on the recommended activities from the facility condition 
assessments as well as the associated data maintained and updated in the City’s SLAM software system. 
The estimated service lives assumed in the forecast considers the appropriate expected life over which 
an asset can still provide the required service levels before needing replacement. These typical estimated 
service lives are summarized in Appendix D. The timing of renewal activities in the forecast is determined 
based on the asset’s current condition or age, and estimated service life from the facility condition 
assessment. This approach does not account for eventual replacement of the whole building, which may 
be decided by the City for strategic reasons or changes in functional requirements in addition to, or 
separate from, state of good repair needs. 

Figure 5-2 summarizes the unconstrained renewal and upgrade needs over the next 10 years for the 
City’s facility assets. The unconstrained scenario represents the expenditures required to replace every 
building element as recommended by the condition assessment and forecasts in SLAM. The asset 
renewal and upgrade needs are estimated at an average of $12.5 million per year for the 10-year 
forecast. In the unconstrained forecast, the expenditure in the first year (2024) includes the expenditures 
required to clear the backlog of major repairs and replacements. A significant expenditure is expected in 
2028 of the forecast due to the recommendations from the building condition assessments, which noted 
quite a few assets that were nearing end of life but were still in relatively good condition and 
performance, and not expected to require work until at least 2028. The forecast estimate will be further 
improved in future updates to the FAMP as the City refines its costing of projects, including soft costs 
such as engineering and project management. 

Page 100 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 41 

 

Figure 5-2: 10-Year Capital Renewal Needs Forecast (Unconstrained) 

 
If the City maintains its Facility Condition Index (FCI) at approximately 17% (overall fair condition), a 
backlog of needs can be carried through each year to the end of the forecast by deferring renewal on 
some assets. In this scenario, the estimated average annual renewal need is reduced to $6.8 million per 
year. A comparison of the FCI over the next 10 years for the unconstrained strategy and the maintain 
LOS strategy is summarized in Figure 5-3. As the City continues to improve the forecasts from the facility 
condition assessments and in the SLAM software, the accuracy of the estimated FCI forecast will also 
improve. Additional financial scenarios are discussed in Section 6.3. 

Figure 5-3: Facility Condition Index Forecast (Unconstrained versus Maintain LOS Strategy) 
Unconstrained Strategy ($12.5/yr) Maintain LOS (FCI) Strategy ($6.8 million/yr) 

  

 

The $6.8 million/yr expenditure represents an average annual investment of 1.4% of the facility portfolio 
replacement value.  Though the FCI is maintained at approximately 17% at this expenditure, a significant 

Page 101 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 42 

backlog is carried throughout the forecast, increasing the risk of higher overall lifecycle costs due to the 
impact of deferring maintenance work. The Canadian Infrastructure Report Card recommends a 1.7% to 
2.5% annual investment for maintaining the state of good repair of facility assets. For the City, a lower 
investment compared to this benchmark can be anticipated due to the TACC facility, which is a high 
value asset; as a new facility, it should not require the 1.7% rate of investment during its first 10 years of 
operation. The affordability and service level impacts of various scenarios is discussed in Section 6. 

5.5 Operations and Maintenance Needs 

The City supports asset reliability service levels through operations and maintenance (O&M) work. Table 
5-2 summarizes typical asset-related O&M activities for facility assets. 

Table 5-2: Typical Operations and Maintenance Activities for Facility Assets 
Asset Operations & Maintenance Activities 

Overall Facility 
• Utilities: Gas, electricity, water 
• Re-painting 
• Conduct Building Condition Assessments 

Structural / 
Architectural 

• Foundation wall/waterproofing repairs 
• Brick and masonry block repairs 
• Interior wall and ceiling finish repairs 
• Roof repairs 
• Other minor investigations and repairs  

Elevators, Life Safety 
Devices 

• Inspections and testing per regulations 
• Preventive maintenance 
• Maintenance/repair as needed 
• Other minor repairs  

HVAC, Plumbing, 
Electrical 

• Preventive maintenance 
• HVAC component replacements and repairs 
• Piping and valve repairs 
• Generator testing 
• Emergency light testing 
• Other minor repairs  

Site 

• Snow clearing and general grounds maintenance 
• Parking lot asphalt repairs, crack sealing 
• Sidewalk and walkway repairs 
• Concrete stair and ramp repairs 
• Guard and handrail repairs/replacements 
• Other minor repairs  

 

Table 5-3 summarizes the $1.8 million operating budget related to utility costs, subcontracts, scheduled 
maintenance, and unscheduled maintenance based on the City’s current 2023 budget. The average 
annual increase beyond 2023 will be impacted by the estimated growth in the asset portfolio due to the 

Page 102 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 43 

new TACC facility. Table 5-3 does not include salaries, insurance, and other non-asset related accounts in 
the operating budget. 

Table 5-3: 2023 Operating Budget for Facilities Maintenance (Utilities and Maintenance) 

Operating Budget Account Library Parks & Recreation 
Facilities Facilities Total 

Electricity* (if provided 
externally, such as BC Hydro) $0 $7,763 $20,118 $27,881 

Gas $17,568 $156,652 $156,875 $331,095 

Scheduled Maintenance $34,931 $238,024 $371,606 $644,561 
Unscheduled Maintenance $21,880 $59,960 $441,885 $523,725 

Subcontracts $70,608 $523 $170,180 $241,311 

Total $144,987 $462,922 $1,160,664 $1,768,573 
*Note: While the majority of the City’s facilities use electricity provided by the City of New Westminster Electrical 
Utility, some areas of the City rely on electricity from an external provider (generally in locations near the City 
Border). This table shows the operating budget for electricity provided by an external electricity provider. Data for 
City of New Westminster electricity use is captured outside of the Operating Budget and will be incorporated into 
future FAMP iterations.   

The City is underfunded for both scheduled and unscheduled maintenance, with actual expenditures in 
quarter 1 of 2023 higher than the budgeted amounts for that quarter. The City has recently improved its 
preventive maintenance programs and formalized these activities into service contracts, increasing the 
costs for the scheduled maintenance program. For unscheduled maintenance, the City has focused on 
finding and fixing the root cause of problems and costs are therefore higher than repairs that only treat 
surface-level issues. The root-cause approach is best practice and expected to reduce costs over the 
longer-term.  

Page 103 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 44 

6 Financial Strategy 
The financial analysis is informed by the preceding sections of the Asset Management Plan:  the value 
and condition of the assets, the current levels of service, the risks to service delivery, and the lifecycle 
activities needed to reduce the risks to acceptable levels. The financial strategy considers the 
affordability of the recommended asset management actions to maintain service levels. 

A key challenge to financial sustainability is balancing level of service decisions with risk and affordability. 
This section of the FAMP provides preliminary funding shortfall estimates demonstrating the impacts of 
various funding scenarios. Forecast and funding gap analysis limitations are discussed in Section 6.5.  

6.1 Budgeting Principles 

Through the City’s budgeting process, capital project and operating activity expenditure information is 
gathered from each service area, including investment needs, trends, and priorities, to prepare the 
capital and annual operating budget plans. 

The setting of the annual budget and 5-year Capital Plan is guided by Financial Sustainability Principles 
that align with the City’s core values and ensures that the City’s budget is: 

• Sustainable - Maintain assets in a state of good repair through reasonable tax/rate hikes, and 
without disruptions to services; living within our means; 

• Adaptable - The ability to change debt levels or leverage reserves; ability to ramp up or down on 
spending; 

• Stable - Predictability of City’s Sustainable Revenue Sources, and less reliance on external 
funding or 3rd party funding; and 

• Accountable - Fiscally prudent & responsible; the ability to ensure that the City’s financial 
decisions are in the best interest of all. 

6.2 Funding Sources 
Each year, an updated 5-year Capital Plan is presented to Council, and the first year is reviewed for 
approval. The Operating Budget is also approved annually. Once the expenditure plans are finalized, a 
financing plan is developed which includes several key sources of funding. 

The funding for the new TACC facility is mainly financed with debt and a minor portion funded through 
grants/contributions. Funding for the renewal and upgrade of existing facilities in the Capital Plan is 
mainly through reserves. The reserves are managed and guided by the City’s Reserve Policies and 
support the delivery of services to residents, businesses and industries both today and into the future. 
Reserves are essentially savings accounts of the City and promote long-term sustainability and stability 
for asset renewal, replacement, growth, and rate stabilization. For energy and emission reductions and 
EV Charging initiatives that strive to do better than business as usual, the City will be releasing a 
decision-making framework to support funding opportunities through the Climate Action Reserve Fund. 

Page 104 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 45 

The General Fund operating budget funds the operating expenditures such as facility utilities and 
maintenance discussed in Section 5.5. The main sources of revenues that pay for the City’s General Fund 
include taxation, the sale of services, and grants/contributions.  

6.3 Financial Sustainability 

6.3.1.1 Capital Growth  

As discussed in Section 5.2, the remaining cost for the new TACC facility is estimated to total $3.2 million 
in 2024. In addition to the TACC, the City is also installing a new public free-standing washroom. These 
growth projects are planned to maintain current service levels and are fully funded in the Capital Plan. 
The City may identify the need for additional facilities through on-going or future Master Plans, which 
will need to be incorporated into future updates to this FAMP. 

6.3.1.2 Capital Upgrade Needs 

The average expenditure on upgrade projects in the 2023 to 2027 Capital Plan is $2.5M/yr for a total 5-
year spend of $12.5 million. As discussed in Section 5.3, the City currently has $1.1M of GHG emission 
reduction projects planned in the 2024 to 2028 Capital Plan to support its GHG emission reduction 
targets. Other projects address accessibility upgrades, EV charging station infrastructure, new bicycle 
parking, and upgrades at Massey Theatre and Arts Complex. No funding shortfall is identified in this 
FAMP for upgrade needs, while recognizing that additional needs may be identified in on-going and 
future Master Plans, as well as the future Accessibility Plan. 

6.3.1.3 Capital Renewal Needs 
This FAMP considers four scenarios for capital renewal funding and their impact on reliability service 
levels (FCI). The first three scenarios align with the funding scenarios discussed as part of the Council 
Budget Workshop on October 16th, 2023 regarding the 2024 General Fund Capital Budget and 2024-2028 
Five-Year Financial Plan. For subsequent years (2029 to 2033), this FAMP assumes similar funding 
strategies as used for each scenario from 2024 to 2028. The four funding scenarios and associated 
impact on Facility Condition Index are summarized in Table 6-1. 

Page 105 of 130

https://pub-newwestcity.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=16584
https://pub-newwestcity.escribemeetings.com/FileStream.ashx?DocumentId=16584


 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 46 

Table 6-1: Funding Scenario Descriptions and Facility Condition Index Forecast 

Scenario Facility Condition Index Forecast 

Scenario 1: this funding scenario 
provided $16.6 million for total 
renewal over the next five years 
(2024 to 2028). This scenario 
assumes no funding through 2029 
to 2033. FCI deteriorates to 27.7% 
(Fair but approaching Poor 
condition).  

 

Scenario 2 – Scenario 1 + $5 
million (aligns with the proposed 
2024-2028 Financial Plan): this 
scenario assumes the funding 
proposed in Scenario 1, plus an 
additional $2.5 million in each of 
2027 and 2028, for a total of $21.6 
million in the five year capital plan. 
For a full 10-year forecast, it is 
assumed that this funding would 
also be provided in each of the 
years 2029 to 2033. FCI 
deteriorates to 24.3% (Fair but 
approaching Poor condition) 

 

Scenario 3 - Scenario 1 + $17.5 
million: this scenario assumes the 
funding proposed in Scenario 1, 
with an additional $2.5 million of 
funding in 2024, with an 
incremental $0.5 million added to 
each subsequent year from the 
previous year (additional $3 
million in 2025, $3.5 million in 
2026, etc.), for a total of $34.1 
million in the five-year capital 

 

Page 106 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 47 

Scenario Facility Condition Index Forecast 

plan). FCI deteriorates slightly to 
18.4% (Fair condition). 

Scenario 4 - ‘Maintain FCI 
Scenario’; same additional $17.5 
million in five-year Financial Plan 
and continued $6.8M/yr in years 6 
to 10 : $6.8 million annual 
expenditure in each of the 10 
years which maintains FCI at ~17% 
(Fair) as discussed in Section 5.4. 
This scenario requires an 
additional $51.9 million total over 
10 years).  

 

 

Page 107 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 48 

The unconstrained need, four scenarios, and average annual funding gap are shown in Figure 6-1. 

Figure 6-1: Renewal Forecast and Financing Scenario Comparison 

 

Table 6-2 summarizes the funding assumed for each of the four scenarios and the impact on FCI over the 
next 10 years in tabular format. With Scenario 2 funding, the FCI increases (lowers condition) from 17.5% 
to 20.4% by the end of 2028 and further increases to 24.3% at the end of 2033. The ‘Renewal Need 
(unconstrained)’ is determined by the Facility Condition Assessment data.  

 

 

Page 108 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 49 

Table 6-2: Funding Values ($M) and Impacts on FCI Forecast by Funding Scenario 

Scenario Current 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 5-yr 
Total 

10-yr 
Total 

Scenario 1 

Additional Funding - $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 

Total Renewal Funding - $9.4 $4.3 $2.3 $0.2 $0.5 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $16.6 $16.6 

FCI (at end of year) 17.5% 16.7% 18.7% 18.9% 19.9% 21.4% 22.7% 24.5% 25.5% 26.2% 27.7% - - 

Scenario 2 

Additional Funding - $0.0 $0.0 $0.0 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $5.0 $17.5 

Total Renewal Funding - $9.4 $4.3 $2.3 $2.7 $3.0 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $2.5 $21.6 $34.1 

FCI (at end of year) 17.5% 16.7% 18.7% 18.9% 19.4% 20.4% 21.3% 22.5% 23.0% 23.2% 24.3% - - 

Scenario 3 

Additional Funding - $2.5 $3.0 $3.5 $4.0 $4.5 $5.0 $5.5 $6.0 $6.5 $7.0 $17.5 $47.5 

Total Renewal Funding - $11.9 $7.3 $5.8 $4.2 $5.0 $5.0 $5.5 $6.0 $6.5 $7.0 $34.1 $64.1 

FCI (at end of year) 17.5% 16.2% 17.6% 17.1% 17.4% 18.0% 18.3% 19.0% 18.7% 18.2% 18.4% - - 

Scenario 4 

Additional Funding - -$2.5 $2.5 $4.5 $6.7 $6.4 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $17.5 $51.6 

Total Renewal Funding - $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $6.8 $34.1 $68.2 

FCI (at end of year) 17.5% 17.2% 18.7% 18.0% 17.7% 18.0% 17.9% 18.3% 18.0% 17.4% 17.5% - - 

 

 

Page 109 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 50 

6.3.1.4 Operations and Maintenance  

As discussed in Section 5.5, the City has a 2023 operating budget of $1.8 million related to utility costs, 
subcontracts, scheduled maintenance, and unscheduled maintenance. This budget is currently 
underfunded for both scheduled and unscheduled maintenance. Finding an appropriate balance of 
scheduled and unscheduled maintenance is important for risk management and reliability of service 
levels. Maintenance expenditure is also critical where asset replacement is not affordable and the City 
needs the asset to continue providing a service beyond its optimum lifespan. The operating budget will 
also need to be increased to account for the addition of the new TACC facility to the City’s asset 
portfolio. 

6.4 Affordability of Current Service Levels 

Table 6-3 summarizes the financial sustainability and affordability for growth, upgrades, and renewal 
activities based on the discussions in Section 6.3. The focus is on the next 5-year period to align with the 
City’s upcoming 2024-2028 Financial Plan. An infrastructure gap for capital renewal needs is estimated at 
$12.5 million over the next five years. An appropriate level of renewal funding will be determined 
through the annual Capital Planning process, in consideration of the current funding gap and associated 
impact on facility condition.   For the operating budget, a 5-year forecast is not provided in this FAMP, 
but future year budgets should incorporate the impacts of the new TACC facility. 

Table 6-3: Summary of 5-Year Financial Sustainability and Affordability of Current Service 
Levels 

Asset Lifecycle 
5-Yr Total 
Forecast 

Needs 

5-Yr Total 
Planned 
Funding 

5-Yr Total Gap Comments 

Capital Growth 
Not 

identified 
$3.7M 

No identified 
shortfall over 5-

year plan 

On-going and future Master Plans by 
Service Areas will confirm growth 
needs  

Capital Upgrade 
Not 

identified 
$12.5M 

No identified 
shortfall over 5-

year plan 

On-going and future Master Plans by 
Service Areas and future Accessibility 
Plan will confirm upgrade needs 

Capital 
Renewal 

$34.1M 
(Scenario 4) 

Scenario 2 
$21.6M 

($4.3M/yr) 

$12.5M 
($2.5M/yr) 

Scenario 4 funding maintains the average 
portfolio FCI at 17.5%. Scenario 3 matches 
Scenario 4 funding over the first 5 years 
but does not maintain FCI through years 6 
to 10. These scenarios are recommended 
to be reviewed to determine an 
appropriate service level balanced against 
the associated costs and risks. 

 

6.5 Forecast and Funding Gap Limitations 
The forecasts and funding gap estimates in this FAMP are based on currently available data. The City has 
relatively up-to-date data maintained in SLAM software which documents facility condition assessment 

Page 110 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 51 

recommendations. As the City continues to refine the estimated project costs, the confidence in 
forecasts and funding gap estimates will also improve. 

For the City’s newer facilities without building condition assessment data (TACC, Quayside Elevator, and 
Riverwalk Daycare), it was assumed that a 0.5% annual investment rate will be required over the next 5 
years, increasing to 1% in years 6 to 10. The forecast for these facilities will be replaced with more 
accurate recommendations from future building condition assessments as they are completed. 

The four scenarios for capital renewal incorporate varying amounts of deferred maintenance (backlog) 
that increases throughout the forecast. Deferring capital work may result in more expensive 
rehabilitations or replacements, shorter asset life, or increases in unscheduled maintenance. These 
additional cost impacts are not included in the FCI forecast analysis and may result in worse FCI values 
over the forecast period than estimated in Table 6-2. 

As indicated in Section 4.2.2, climate change risks can result in facility elements deteriorating faster than 
anticipated due to the impacts of extreme weather on building components. The potential impacts of 
climate change on state of good repair costs are currently difficult to estimate and are not included in 
the forecasts in Section 6.4. 

The financial analysis is based upon data related to renewals as primarily collected through the Facility 
Condition Assessment and does not include considerations on staff resources at this time. This will be 
considered as part of the ongoing work related to the Facilities Asset Management Plan. 

 

 

Page 111 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 52 

7 Implementation & Continuous Improvement 
The City is committed to continually improving the way assets are managed and how services are 
delivered. This FAMP will require continual improvement of the asset management practices employed 
as part of the City’s asset management journey. 

7.1 Governance and Implementation  

Supporting the continuous improvement for the FAMP will involve commitment from active stakeholders 
engaged in the advancement of asset management at the City. Roles and responsibilities in supporting 
the successful implementation of the FAMP are discussed in the stakeholder summary in Section 1.4.  

Governance, related to asset management, involves identifying the ways in which an organization makes 
decisions and assigns responsibility related to asset classes, asset components and projects. Civic 
Buildings & Properties is currently developing an asset management governance model for City facilities 
that will identify the responsibilities of City departments and divisions in regards to the planning and 
delivery of asset operations, maintenance, renewal, upgrade, and acquisitions. Additional work is needed 
at the City-wide level related to City-wide Asset Management Governance. 

Key activities for implementation of the FAMP include: 

• Regularly communicating the FAMP objectives and strategies which will further advance the 
culture of asset management; 

• Considering the FAMP recommended renewal investment in financial planning; 
• Tracking performance to determine if outcomes are being achieved and determine where 

additional supports may be required; 
• Implementing the FAMP’s Improvement Plan through multi-departmental initiatives; and 
• Reviewing and updating the FAMP. 

7.2 Delivery Risks and Uncertainties 

The City faces several uncertainties that may impact effective service delivery. Notable risks include: 

• Not providing adequate funding for increased capital investment: In order to deliver the 
renewal needs to maintain service levels, increased funding is required compared to the current 
10-yr Capital Plan. Not securing the increased funding will likely result in a deterioration of asset 
condition across the portfolio and shorter asset lifespans which will increase the demand for 
investment in asset renewals. High investment needs also make it challenging for the City to 
build its reserve funds. 

• Not providing adequate resourcing for increased capital investment: Both internal and external 
resources will need to be increased to provide effective system design, coordinate investment 
planning and construction with other teams, manage projects and contracts, and provide 
sufficient operations, procurement, human resources, and financial support. 

• Potential additional Metro Vancouver levies or fees: There is a risk that Metro Vancouver will 
place additional fees or levies on the City, which would place additional strain on the budget 

Page 112 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 53 

• Inadequate coordination of capital projects: Successful delivery of the FAMP will require 
effective integration of capital projects from across the City’s service areas as each seeks to 
deliver the required investment to sustain services. This will require advanced definition and 
scoping of projects, which will have the added benefit of being first-to-market in a high- cost 
construction environment. 

• Inadequate resources to implement the City’s climate action related policies: Sufficient staff 
resources and funding need to be provided to implement policies such as the City’s Green 
Building Policy. 

7.3 Implementation Roadmap 

The FAMP serves as the guiding document to manage the City’s facility infrastructure effectively and 
efficiently. Table 7-1 identifies recommended activities that support the implementation of the FAMP.  

Table 7-1: Implementation Activities 
Item Frequency 

Endorsement of FAMP by the AM Steering Committee: Presentation to 
AM Steering Committee for FAMP review and adoption. Assigning 
support to implement the FAMP. 

Every 4 or 5 years 

Update FAMP Every 4 or 5 years 
Coordinate, Engage, Collaborate and Communicate the FAMP: 
Implement Standing Meeting Agenda covering Condition of assets; 
Repairs, replacements and renewals of assets and associated 
budgeting; Risk assessment conducted and changes in risk status of 
assets 

Annual 

Incorporate FAMP findings: Use FAMP forecasts to inform budgeting 
processes and long-range financial plans. 

Annual (aligned with 
capital and operating 
budget process) 

Develop Business Cases: Develop and submit business cases for 
proposed capital projects as part of the annual budget requests to 
demonstrate options to address needs and the benefits to service 
delivery.   

Annual 

Prepare Benefits Summary: Measure the success of projects based on 
whether service levels have been achieved and high risks have been 
mitigated or addressed. 

Annual 

Implement FAMP Improvement Plan: Prioritize and plan for the 
implementation of the FAMP improvement activities. Assign and review 
roles and responsibilities, set timelines and milestones 

Annual 

Implement Quality Assurance Audit: Assess the level of effort of the 
current data collection methods and quality of information.  Annual 

Review Climate Change Impacts: Monitor climate change impacts to 
facility infrastructure to understand ongoing resilience of facility assets. 
Incorporate findings into capital plans and revisions to the FAMP. 

Annual 

 

Page 113 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 54 

The broader City asset management roadmap is outlined in the SAMP and provides guidance on 
corporate capability improvements in asset management. Like the FAMP implementation activities, 
these asset management efforts need to be championed and communicated effectively by City Council 
and the Executive team and resources need to be assigned to carry out the activities. 

  

Page 114 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 55 

7.4 Improvement Plan 

This FAMP has revealed some gaps and opportunities for improvement.  

Table 7-2 identifies recommendations that will help the FAMP evolve and improve through each 
iteration. 

Table 7-2: Recommended Improvement Plan 
AM Plan 
Section 

Gap Improvement Recommendation 
Led by Division(s)   

 

Improve accuracy 
of Facility 
Condition Index 

Continue to improve accuracy of Facility 
Condition Index ratings (refer to 
improved forecast recommendations in 
Lifecycle Strategy) 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

State of 
Infrastructure 

Complete facility 
inventory 

Add Facilities and Structures not currently 
included in the AMP such as the Fuel 
Pumping Station (Engineering 
Operations) that should be considered as 
part of the Building Asset Class.  

Document those structures that may not 
be suited for the Building Asset Class, so 
that they can be included in another 
Asset Class. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Improve accuracy 
of facility 
replacement 
values. 

Replacement costs were updated based 
on benchmark unit construction costs for 
some facilities. Additional review of unit 
construction costs and modifying costs by 
individual facility is recommended in 
future updates of replacement value. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Improve accuracy 
of component 
replacement 
values 

Review and improve accuracy of 
replacement costs at the building 
component level including appropriate 
soft costs.  

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Facility Audits  

Complete Energy and Accessibility Audits 
on all Civic Facilities to provide baselines 
for capital planning and for considering 
improvements. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Page 115 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 56 

AM Plan 
Section 

Gap Improvement Recommendation 
Led by Division(s)   

Levels of 
Service 

Establish capacity 
and functional 
service levels as 
part of Service 
Area Master Plans 
and studies, and 
corporate plans 
such as 
Accessibility Plan 

Service Area or Department Master 
Plans, Strategies, and studies should 
inform the service measures and 
performance levels used to make 
recommendations regarding growth, 
expansion, and upgrades for facility 
assets. AMP to incorporate these 
measures as appropriate in future 
updates. 

Individual  Service 
Areas 

The scope of the upcoming Facility Space 
Planning Strategy should consider which 
Service Areas and facilities it will include 
in its analysis, as well as consideration of 
both staff and storage space needs.  

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Accessibility Plan to set service levels 
regarding accessibility of facilities, such as 
universal washrooms and removal of 
barriers.  

Accessibility 
Advisory 

Committee 
(future) 

Establish tracking 
and monitoring 
process for LOS 
measures 

Track and monitor performance on 
measures included in this FAMP, on an 
annual basis. Establish what data needs 
to be collected to track indicators and 
develop an understanding of the current 
LOS. Determine what data is currently 
being collected, and what gaps exist 
where additional data is required to 
generate the required reports. Determine 
targets once the current performance is 
well understood. 
 
Review and update service levels as 
required to reflect alignment with other 
City plans and studies. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Update Green 
Building Policy 

Update Green Building Policy to include 
renewal projects in existing facilities.  

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Page 116 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 57 

AM Plan 
Section 

Gap Improvement Recommendation 
Led by Division(s)   

Accessibility 
Policy  

Develop Accessibility Policy 
Accessibility Advisory 
Committee/ Multiple 

Departments  

Risk 
Management 

Complete risk 
assessment at 
building 
component level 
and Risk Register 

Build on the facility-level risk assessment 
in this FAMP and apply risk assessment at 
the building component level to better 
understand the level of risk across asset 
types (such as roofs, HVAC, and electrical 
components). This risk assessment would 
help apply risk in a formalized way to 
capital projects and inform decision-
making regarding the prioritization of 
projects as part of the capital budgeting 
process. This work could become basis 
for a Risk Register.  

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Formalize Risk 
Analysis Review  

Develop procedures to regularly check 
and critically observe a Risk Register. A 
starting point is to focus on reliability risk 
and update the risk evaluation in Section 
4.4 of this document on an annual basis. 

Further risk analysis is recommended to 
apply risks in a formalized way to capital 
planning. This work will assist in decision 
making regarding the prioritization of 
capital plan projects.  

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Page 117 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 58 

AM Plan 
Section 

Gap Improvement Recommendation 
Led by Division(s)   

Develop system-
level risk 
assessment 

Develop a system-level risk assessment 
that supports the facility and building 
component level risk assessment. The 
system-level assessment considers 
broader risks that could affect facility 
services such as power failure, 
inadequate staff resources to delivering 
capital projects, missing or lack of critical 
asset data, and extreme weather events. 
Evaluation of these broader risks 
supports overall budgeting decisions 
when decisions are required between 
City initiatives, such as deciding to spend 
funding on state of good repair programs 
versus increasing the resilience of 
buildings to extreme weather events. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Monitor and plan 
for impacts due to 
climate change 

Monitor for faster deterioration of 
building components. Consider facility 
vulnerability assessments for critical 
facilities to understand risks due to 
extreme weather events and implement 
upgrades for increased facility resiliency. 

Multiple 
Departments 

Lifecycle 
Strategy 

Develop O&M 
forecasting 

Improve understanding of the level of 
effort (cost/resource needs) and 
frequency of operations and 
maintenance activities to increase 
accuracy of forecasting of annual O&M 
requirements for asset-related 
maintenance accounts, such as scheduled 
maintenance. This will enable the City to 
start assessing funding gaps in specific 
operating budget accounts. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Improve capital 
planning 

Make improvements to the renewals 
projects in the Civic Buildings & 
Properties Capital Plan to align more 
closely with the renewal data captured 
through the Facility Condition 
Assessments. This work will also provide 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Page 118 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 59 

AM Plan 
Section 

Gap Improvement Recommendation 
Led by Division(s)   

a baseline for better quantifying 
upgrades (such as those related to 
Climate Action).  

Align completion 
of project delivery 
and building 
condition 
assessment 
recommendations 

As projects are completed, the forecasts 
in the City's SLAM software should be 
updated to reflect needs that are no 
longer required. As facility condition 
assessments are typically completed 
every 5 years (or longer), this ensures 
that the forecast is up-to-date and does 
not overestimate the renewal forecast. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Capture electrical 
use data  

Capture data on electricity used by  
facilities as supplied by the City’s 
Electrical Utility into future FAMP 
iterations 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties/ Finance 
with Climate Action 

support  

Improve renewal 
costing estimates 

Improve accuracy of project costs from 
building condition assessments reported 
in SLAM software, in particular increase 
understanding of expected soft costs. The 
project costs influence the forecast but 
also the Facility Condition Index ratings in 
the State of Infrastructure analysis. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Financial 
Strategy 

Develop long term 
funding 
strategies. 

Work with Finance to identify funding 
strategies to meet expenditure 
requirements and build reserves. Be 
proactive in planning for future needs 
and update forecasts on a regular basis. 

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

 
Extend capital 
planning from 5 
to 10 years 

Move towards a 10-year Capital Plan 
which will allow for increased 
understanding of needs over the longer 
term, identify gaps in funding, and enable 
more proactive planning regarding the 
funding gap and ways to address it. 

Senior Management 
Team  

Page 119 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 60 

AM Plan 
Section 

Gap Improvement Recommendation 
Led by Division(s)   

Overall FAMP 
Improvements  

Dedicated Staff 
resource to FAMP 
Improvements 

Identify staff role or person to manage 
the Improvement Actions to assist with 
improvements  

Civic Buildings & 
Properties 

Page 120 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 61 

Appendix A –Facility List with Replacement Value and 
Condition 
Note that unit cost in the following table is specified where used to determine facility replacement value. 
Where unit cost is not specified in this table, the sum of component replacement costs per the FCA 
(SLAM software) has been used to determine the replacement value. Industry standard unit costs are not 
typically available for park facilities or structures such as pavilions. FCA costs were also used where 
replacement values based on unit construction costs were less than the FCA costs. 

Service Area Building Name Unit Cost 
(per sq.ft.) 

Replacement 
Value Final FCI Condition 

Culture & 
Administrative 

Queen's Park - Bernie Legge Theatre $875 $3,304,875 9.3% Good 
Fraser River Discovery Centre (FRDC) $525 $8,999,025 18.7% Fair 
River Walk Childcare $400 $855,432 2.5% Very Good 
Massey Theatre and Arts Complex  $875 $49,875,000 34.7% Poor 
City Hall $400 $23,087,200 49.9% Poor 
Irving House* $525 $6,877,500* 14.2% Good 
New West Museum & Archives Annex  $525 $2,677,500 29.8% Fair 
Anvil Centre $500 $52,551,000 1.4% Very Good 

Electrical Engineering Operations: Electrical Operations 
Main Office and Storage $400 $3,264,000 36.7% Poor 

Engineering 

Animal Shelter   $4,028,695 0.0% Very Good 
Cemetery Building & Tool Shed   $226,161 431.4% Very Poor 

Moody Park - Lawn Bowling Storage Shed   $152,020 89.6% Very Poor 

Engineering Operations: Engineering Main 
Office; shared with electrical. $400 $9,850,400 31.8% Poor 

Engineering Operations: Engineering Storage 
Bays $400 $2,400,000 42.1% Poor 

Engineering Operations: Equipment and Tire 
Storage $400 $780,800 59.2% Poor 

Engineering Operations: Salt Shed   $159,280 39.6% Poor 

Engineering Operations: Yard   $2,086,000 27.5% Fair 

 Parks Administration Building $400 $1,614,400 49.0% Poor 
151 Spruce Street Building    $3,778,301 68.8% Very Poor 
940 Quayside Elevator (Quayside Drive)    $1,300,000 2.5% Very Good 
Front Street Parkade (stand alone parkade)   $30,261,000 5.4% Good 
Anvil Parkade   $15,495,612 4.7% Very Good 

Fire & Rescue 
Services 

Glenbrook Firehall 1 $500 $7,228,500 21.1% Fair 
West End Fire Hall 2 $500 $1,887,500 47.9% Poor 
Queensborough Fire Hall   $3,514,243 33.5% Poor 

Page 121 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 62 

Service Area Building Name Unit Cost 
(per sq.ft.) 

Replacement 
Value Final FCI Condition 

Library Public Library $430 $17,989,910 18.4% Fair 

Parks 

Moody Park - Lawn Bowling Clubhouse   $835,064 41.0% Poor 
Grimston Park - Washroom Building   $190,992 25.6% Fair 

Hume Park - Washroom and Storage/ 
Caretakes/ Maintenance Building   $775,308 37.5% Poor 

Hume Park – Concession and Spray Park 
Service Building   $160,408 30.6% Poor 

Lower Hume Park - Picnic Shelter   $365,499 3.2% Very Good 

Lower Hume Park - Washrooms and Storage   $330,329 19.2% Fair 

Mercer Stadium Grandstand and Washroom   $2,747,900 85.0% Very Poor 
Mercer Storage Shed (BP007567)   $586,225 4.2% Very Good 
Moody Park - Washroom and Storage   $357,212 7.4% Good 
Quayside Park Washroom   $127,651 24.3% Fair 
Queen's Park - Bandshell   $671,475 65.4% Very Poor 
Queen's Park - Picnic Shelter #2 - 
Checkerboard   $113,557 0.0% Very Good 

Queen's Park - Gazebo (rose garden)   $88,464 2.7% Very Good 
Queen's Park - Greenhouses   $2,545,080 33.9% Poor 
Queens Park - Picnic Shelter #1   $244,451 0.0% Very Good 
Queens Park - Stadium   $5,069,225 64.1% Very Poor 
Queen's Park - Concession/   $852,999 0.0% Very Good 
The Farm    $976,874 14.0% Good 
Queens Park - Mechanics Yard - Main 
building (including Mechanic Shop, Offices, 
Equipment Bays and Paint Shop) 

  $1,604,345 87.6% Very Poor 

Queens Park - Mechanics Yard - Carpenter’s 
building    $1,007,102 79.7% Very Poor 

 Queensborough - Ryall Park Picnic Shelter   $127,392 6.5% Good 

Sapperton Park - Dressing Rms &Washrooms   $473,799 85.0% Very Poor 

Pier Park Concession Washroom, Elevator 
and timber structure   $2,422,998 1.0% Very Good 

Simcoe Park Washroom (In SD 40 bldg)   $62,192 6.0% Good 
Moody Park - Diamond #1 Storage and 
Scorekeeper Box   $131,822 20.0% Fair 

Moody Park: Little League Stadium & 
Fieldhouse   $124,869 40.5% Poor 

Queensborough - Old Schoolhouse Park - 
Shelter    $160,338 1.2% Very Good 

Queensborough Port Royal - Central Park 
Picnic Shelter and Washroom    $284,045 5.1% Good 

Page 122 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 63 

Service Area Building Name Unit Cost 
(per sq.ft.) 

Replacement 
Value Final FCI Condition 

Queensborough Port Royal garden shed and 
overhead trellis    $205,864 1.4% Very Good 

Parks 

Queen's Park - Boardroom / Gardner Lunch 
Room (Staffroom/ Gardener's Building)   $842,399 59.0% Poor 

Queensborough Outdoor Stage   $122,282 0.0% Very Good 

Terry Hughes Washroom (attached to school)   $71,504 80.6% Very Poor 

Wharf Building Heritage Asset   $956,824 60.0% Poor 

Police 
Department 

Police Service Building $530 $28,462,060 7.9% Good 

Fourth Street Parkade (air space in strata 
bldg) and elevator   $15,742,500 17.5% Fair 

Recreation 

Moody Park - Pool Building and Washroom   $3,450,931 11.5% Good 
Century House and Youth Centre (Pilot) $505 $12,570,460 18.7% Fair 

Queen's Park - Centennial Lodge, Queen’s 
Park Preschool, and Gallery    $2,734,374 30.1% Poor 

Hume Park - Pool & Dressing Room Bldg 
(Upper)   $1,340,174 45.7% Poor 

Moody Park – Arena (Ice Rink)   $11,725,541 21.1% Fair 
Queensborough Community Centre, Library 
and Daycare $505 $13,746,100 8.2% Good 

Queen's Park - Arena $345 $19,891,665 39.2% Poor 
Queens Park - Sportsplex $505 $6,438,750 0.0% Very Good 
TACC   $114,600,000 2.5% Very Good 

 
* A factor of 250% was added to the calculated replacement value for Irving House to accommodate for the fact that Irving 
House is a Heritage Asset and the replacement value should not be defined in the same manner as a non-heritage asset. The 
FAMP State of Infrastructure analysis in Section 2 uses the original replacement value for reporting purposes.  

Page 123 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 64 

Appendix B – Preliminary Risk Ratings 
 Service Area Building Name PoF CoF Highest CoF Reason Risk 

Category 
 Culture & 

Administrative 
Queen's Park - Bernie Legge 
Theatre 2 3 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Fraser River Discovery Centre 
(FRDC) 3 3 Availability/Reliability or 

Financial Moderate 

  River Walk Childcare 1 2 Availability/Reliability or 
Corporate Image Low 

  Massey Theatre and Arts 
Complex  4 4 Availability/Reliability Very 

High 
  City Hall 4 4 Availability/Reliability Very 

High 
  Irving House 4 2 Corporate Image Moderate 
  New West Museum & Archives 

Annex (Pilot) 3 3 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Anvil Centre 1 4 Availability/Reliability Moderate 
 

Electrical 
Engineering Operations: 
Electrical Operations Main 
Office and Storage 

4 4 Availability/Reliability Very 
High 

 Engineering Animal Shelter 1 2 Availability/Reliability Low 
  Cemetery Building & Tool Shed 5 1 - Moderate 
  Moody Park - Lawn Bowling 

Storage Shed 5 1 - Moderate 

 
 

Engineering Operations: 
Engineering Main Office 
(including lunchroom, fleet, 
stores); shared with electrical. 

4 5 Availability/Reliability Very 
High 

 
 

Engineering Operations: 
Engineering Storage Bays 
(south of the Main Office) 

4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Engineering Operations: 
Equipment and Tire Storage 4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Engineering Operations: Salt 
Shed 4 3 Availability/Reliability High 

 
 Engineering Operations: Yard 3 3 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

   Parks Administration Building 4 3 Availability/Reliability High 
  151 Spruce Street Building  5 2 Financial High 
 

 940 Quayside Elevator 
(Quayside Drive)  1 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

  Front Street Parkade (stand 
alone parkade) 2 3 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Anvil Parkade 1 3 Availability/Reliability Low 
 Fire & Rescue 

Services Glenbrook Firehall 1 3 5 Health and Safety High 

  West End Fire Hall 2 4 5 Health and Safety Very 
High 

  Queensborough Fire Hall 4 5 Health and Safety Very 
High 

Page 124 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 65 

 Service Area Building Name PoF CoF Highest CoF Reason Risk 
Category 

 Library Public Library 3 3 Availability/Reliability Moderate 
 Parks Moody Park - Lawn Bowling 

Clubhouse 4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Grimston Park - Washroom 
Building 3 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 
 

Hume Park - Washroom and 
Storage/ Caretakes/ 
Maintenance Building 

4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Hume Park – Concession and 
Spray Park Service Building 4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Lower Hume Park - Picnic 
Shelter 1 1 Availability/Reliability Low 

 
 Lower Hume Park - Washrooms 

and Storage 3 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Mercer Stadium Grandstand and 
Washroom 5 3 Availability/Reliability or 

Financial 
Very 
High 

  Mercer Storage Shed 
(BP007567) 1 1 Availability/Reliability Low 

  Moody Park - Washroom and 
Storage 2 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

  Quayside Park Washroom 3 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 
  Queen's Park - Bandshell 5 2 Availability/Reliability High 
  Queen's Park - Picnic Shelter #2 

- Checkerboard 1 1 Availability/Reliability Low 

  Queen's Park - Gazebo (rose 
garden) 1 1 Availability/Reliability Low 

  Queen's Park - Greenhouses 4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 
  Queens Park - Picnic Shelter #1 1 1 Availability/Reliability Low 
  Queens Park - Stadium 5 3 Availability/Reliability or 

Financial 
Very 
High 

  Queen's Park - Concession/ 1 2 Availability/Reliability or 
Financial Low 

  The Farm  2 2 Availability/Reliability Low 
 

 

Queens Park - Mechanics Yard - 
Main building (including 
Mechanic Shop, Offices, 
Equipment Bays and Paint 
Shop) 

5 2 Availability/Reliability High 

  Queens Park - Mechanics Yard - 
Carpenter’s building  5 2 Availability/Reliability High 

   Queensborough - Ryall Park 
Picnic Shelter 2 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

 
 Sapperton Park - Dressing Rms 

&Washrooms 5 2 Availability/Reliability High 

 
 

Pier Park Concession 
Washroom, Elevator and timber 
structure 

1 2 Availability/Reliability or 
Financial Low 

  Simcoe Park Washroom (In SD 
40 bldg) 2 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

Page 125 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 66 

 Service Area Building Name PoF CoF Highest CoF Reason Risk 
Category 

  Moody Park - Diamond #1 
Storage and Scorekeeper Box 3 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

  Moody Park: Little League 
Stadium & Fieldhouse 4 3 Availability/Reliability High 

 
 

Queensborough - Old 
Schoolhouse Park - Shelter 
(stand alone at Ewen and 
Derwent) 

1 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

 

 

Queensborough Port Royal - 
Central Park Picnic Shelter and 
Washroom (note: near res. 
Tower) 

2 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

 Queensborough Port Royal 
garden shed and overhead 
trellis 

1 1 Availability/Reliability Low 

 Queen's Park - Boardroom / 
Gardner Lunch Room 
(Staffroom/ Gardener's Building) 

4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 
Queensborough Outdoor Stage 1 3 Availability/Reliability Low 

 Terry Hughes Washroom 
(attached to school) 5 2 Availability/Reliability High 

 Wharf Building Heritage Asset 4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 
Police 

Department 

Police Service Building 2 5 Health and Safety High 
 Fourth Street Parkade (air space 

in strata bldg) and elevator 3 3 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 

Recreation 

Moody Park - Pool Building and 
Washroom 2 2 Availability/Reliability Low 

 Century House and Youth 
Centre (Pilot) 3 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 Queen's Park - Centennial 
Lodge, Queen’s Park Preschool, 
and Gallery  

4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 Hume Park - Pool & Dressing 
Room Bldg (Upper) 4 2 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 Moody Park – Arena (Ice Rink) 3 4 Availability/Reliability High 
 Queensborough Community 

Centre, Library and Daycare 2 4 Availability/Reliability High 

 Queen's Park - Arena 4 4 Availability/Reliability Very 
High 

 Queens Park - Sportsplex 1 4 Availability/Reliability Moderate 
 TACC 1 4 Availability/Reliability Moderate 

 

 

Page 126 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 67 

Appendix C – Uniformat Element Preliminary CoF Ratings 
Uniformat 

Level 1 Uniformat Level 3 CoF Main Impact 

A - 
Substructure 

A1010 - Foundations 5 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
A1030 - Slab on Grade 3 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
A2020 - Basement Walls 5 H&S (Minimum CoF) 

B - Shell 

B1010 - Floor Construction 3 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
B1020 - Roof Construction 5 Financial, H&S (Minimum CoF), Service Delivery 
B1030 - Structure 5 H&S (Minimum CoF), Service Delivery 
B2010 - Exterior Walls 2 Financial 
B2020 - Exterior Windows 2 Financial 
B2030 - Exterior Doors 2 Financial 
B3010 - Roof Coverings 3 Financial, Service Delivery 
B3020 - Roof Openings 3 Financial, Service Delivery 

C - Interiors 

C1010 - Internal Partitions 1   
C1020 - Interior Doors 2 Service Delivery 
C1030 - Fittings 1   
C2010 - Stair Construction 3 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
C2020 - Stair Finishes 1   
C3010 - Wall Finishes 1   
C3020 - Floor Finishes 1   
C3030 - Ceiling Finishes 1   

D - Services 

D1010 - Elevators 3 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
D1020 - Escalators & Moving Walkways 3 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
D1090 - Other conveying Systems 3 H&S 
D2010 - Plumbing Fixtures 1   
D2020 - Domestic Water Distribution Match facility Service Delivery 
D2030 - Sanitary Waste Match facility Service Delivery 
D2040 - Rain Water Drainage 1   
D2090 - Other Plumbing Systems 1   
D3010 - Energy Supply Match facility Service Delivery 
D3020 - Heating System Match facility Service Delivery 
D3030 - Cooling Generating Systems Match facility Service Delivery 
D3040 - Distribution System Match facility Service Delivery 
D3050 - Terminal Package System Match facility Service Delivery 
D3060 - Controls and Instrumentation Match facility Service Delivery 
D3090 - Other HVAC Systems & 
Equipment Match facility Service Delivery 

D4010 - Sprinklers 5 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
D4020 - Standpipes 5 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
D4030 - Fire Protection Specialties 5 H&S (Minimum CoF) 

Page 127 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 68 

Uniformat 
Level 1 Uniformat Level 3 CoF Main Impact 

D4090 - Other Fire Protection System 5 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
D5010 - Electrical Service and Distribution Match facility Service Delivery 
D5020 - Lighting & Branch Wiring 2 Service Delivery 
D5030 - Communication & Security 4 H&S, Service Delivery (Minimum CoF) 

D503001 Fire Alarm Systems 5 H&S, Service Delivery (Minimum CoF) 
D503002 Telecommunication Systems Match facility Service Delivery 
D503004 Public Address and Music 

Systems 2 Service Delivery 

D503008 Security Systems - Intrusion 
Alarm Systems 4 H&S (Minimum CoF) 

D503018 Access Control System 2 Service Delivery 
D503031 Video Surveillance System 3 H&S (Minimum CoF) 

D5090 - Other Electrical Systems 
(including generator) 5 H&S, Service Delivery (Minimum CoF) 

E - Equipment 
and 

Furnishings 

E1010 - Commercial Equipment 1   
E1020 - Institutional Equipment 2   
E1030 - Vehicular Equipment 2   
E1090 - Other Equipment 1   
E2010 - Fixed Furnishings 1   

F-Special 
Facilities 

F1010 - Special Structures Unique to structure   
F1040 - Special Facilities (Aquatic 
Facilities, Ice Rinks) Match facility   

G - Site 

G2010 - Roadways 2 Service Delivery 
G2020 - Parking Lots 2 Service Delivery 
G2030 - Pedestrian Paving 3 Financial; H&S (Minimum CoF) 
G2040 - Site Development 1   
G2050 - Landscaping 1   
G3010 - Water Supply Match facility   
G3020 - Sanitary Sewer Match facility   
G3030 - Storm Sewer 2 Service Delivery 
G3060 - Fuel Distribution Match facility   
G4010 - Electrical Distribution Match facility   
G4020 - Site Lighting 2 H&S (Minimum CoF) 
G4090 - Other Site Electrical Utilities 1   

 
  

Page 128 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 69 

Appendix D – Typical Component Service Lives 

Uniformat Level 1 Uniformat Level 3 Estimated Service Life (Years) 

A - Substructure  75 

B - Shell 

B1010 - Floor Construction 75 
B1020 - Roof Construction 75 
B1030 - Structure 75 
B2010 - Exterior Walls 10 to 75 
B2020 - Exterior Windows 30 to 40 
B2030 - Exterior Doors 15 to 35 
B3010 - Roof Coverings 15 to 40 
B3020 - Roof Openings 25 to 40 

C - Interiors 

C1010 - Internal Partitions 25 to 75 
C1020 - Interior Doors 20 to 40 
C1030 - Fittings 20 to 35 
C2010 - Stair Construction 40 to 75 
C2020 - Stair Finishes 15 to 20 
C3010 - Wall Finishes 10 to 50 
C3020 - Floor Finishes 10 to 50 
C3030 - Ceiling Finishes 15 to 40 

D - Services 

D1010 - Elevators 25 to 35 
D1020 - Escalators & Moving Walkways 30 
D1090 - Other conveying Systems 30 
D2010 - Plumbing Fixtures 15 to 35 
D2020 - Domestic Water Distribution 12 to 40 
D2030 - Sanitary Waste 25 to 50 
D2040 - Rain Water Drainage 50 
D2090 - Other Plumbing Systems 25 
D3010 - Energy Supply 40 
D3020 - Heating System 18 to 30 
D3030 - Cooling Generating Systems 10 to 30 
D3040 - Distribution System 20 to 50 
D3050 - Terminal Package System 10 to 30 
D3060 - Controls and Instrumentation 15 to 40 
D3090 - Other HVAC Systems & Equipment 5 
D4010 - Sprinklers 40 
D4020 - Standpipes 40 
D4030 - Fire Protection Specialties 10 
D4090 - Other Fire Protection System 20 
D5010 - Electrical Service and Distribution 20 to 40 
D5020 - Lighting & Branch Wiring 20 to 50 

Page 129 of 130



 

City of New Westminster| Facilities Asset Management Plan (2024) | 70 

Uniformat Level 1 Uniformat Level 3 Estimated Service Life (Years) 

D5030 - Communication & Security 15 to 25 

D5090 - Other Electrical Systems (including generator) 20 to 40 

E - Equipment and 
Furnishings 

E1010 - Commercial Equipment 15 to 30 
E1020 - Institutional Equipment 25 
E1030 - Vehicular Equipment 20 
E1090 - Other Equipment 20 
E2010 - Fixed Furnishings 25 to 30 

F-Special Facilities 
F1010 - Special Structures 30 
F1040 - Special Facilities (Aquatic Facilities, Ice Rinks, 
Special Equipment) 15 to 75 

G - Site 

G2010 - Roadways 25 to 30 
G2020 - Parking Lots 25 to 30 
G2030 - Pedestrian Paving 20 to 40 
G2040 - Site Development 15 to 50 
G2050 - Landscaping 20 to 50 
G3010 - Water Supply 50 
G3020 - Sanitary Sewer 50 
G3030 - Storm Sewer 50 
G3060 - Fuel Distribution 30 to 35 
G4010 - Electrical Distribution 50 
G4020 - Site Lighting 25 to 30 
G4090 - Other Site Electrical Utilities 20 

 

Page 130 of 130



   

   

OA140                                                   Active Deadly Threat                                                OA140 
    

1 

Active Deadly Threat 
 

 
 

OA140                                Effective: May 2024                                    OA140 
 
 

 

RISK ASSESSMENT: High  
 

POLICY 
 
1. The New Westminster Police Department (NWPD) will establish procedures to define 

the nature of police response to an Active Deadly Threat (ADT) in accordance with 
Code 1 Protocol common to Lower Mainland policing operations.  
 

2. An ADT is any event where one or more individuals are actively killing, inflicting 
serious injury upon, or causing serious imminent danger to people, generally in a 
confined and / or populated area, with the likelihood of mass causalities in one or 
more areas. 

 
3. In the event of an ADT incident, the possibility of additional simultaneous ADT events, 

or a secondary deadly threat should be considered. 
 

4. An ADT event can include, but is not limited to: 
 

a) an active shooter and / or active attacker; 
b) reports of multiple casualties; 
c) multiple successive pedestrian strikes by the same vehicle; and 
d) an explosion in a public space 

 
5. In response to an ADT, a Police Initiated Public Safety Alert (PIPSA) should be 

considered to notify the public of an Active Deadly Threat (ADT) that meets 
established criteria. 

 
(See also: OB40 – Police Initiated Public Safety Alerts) 

 

REASONS FOR POLICY 
 
6. An ADT policy has been implemented to: 



   

   

OA140                                                   Active Deadly Threat                                                OA140 
    

2 

 
a) Suppress and / or mitigate the threat, and casualty management; 
b) prevent uncontrolled flooding of resources to the scene;   
c) pre-stage police resources from neighbouring jurisdictions in order to staff support roles 

to the primary response (including clearing of large areas, casualty extraction, security, 
and general duty back-fill); and 

d) ensure that there are sufficient resources to deal with any secondary event(s) 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
“Ambulance Extraction Point (AEP)” is the location where causalities requiring critical 
care will be transported from the incident site to medical personnel before being 
transported to hospital. The AEP will remain within the “Cold Zone”. 
 
“Critical Incident Commander (CIC)” is the individual responsible for the overall authority 
and responsibility for all incident activities, including the development of strategies and 
tactics, the ordering and release of resources, and is responsible for the management of 
all operations at the incident site.  
 
“Code 1 Protocol” is the term used to define and initiate the ADT response protocol, 
which outlines a series of immediate actions to be carried out by police. Ambulance, fire, 
and E-COMM employees at the outset of an ADT even. 
 
“Hot Zone” means the area within an ADT event where an Active Deadly Threat(s) is 
present and requires immediate intervention by police members. 
 
 “Warm Zone” means the zone within the area of operations where there is a potential 
danger or threat, but it is not direct or immediate. Temporary casualty collection points 
may be located within the warm zone 
 
 “Cold Zone” means the zone within the area of operations where there is not a significant 
danger or threat. 
 
“Immediate Rapid Deployment” is a tactical concept of deploying armed police 
responders directly to an ADT without delay. The primary goal is to stop additional killing 
and violence by the perpetrator(s). 
 
 “Mass Casualty Incident” means and violence driven incident that results in large 
numbers of casualties, beyond the capacity of typical medical resources available. 
 
“Inner Perimeter” means the area containing the threat (“Hot Zone”). 
 



   

   

OA140                                                   Active Deadly Threat                                                OA140 
    

3 

“Outer Perimeter” means the area at which movement of the public, police, and other 
first responders is to be controlled. 
 

 



 

E-Comm May Update for Police and Local Government Partners 1 

E-COMM MAY UPDATE FOR POLICE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT PARTNERS 
 

We are writing to share with you our monthly update on key activities at E-Comm to strengthen and 
improve our services on behalf of our police and local government partners, and the public we serve. 
 
Service Levels to April 30 – Best year to date, and first to exceed targets in every category, since 2016 

• Best police emergency call-taking service levels since 2016 – Police emergency service levels 
were 93% year-to-date in the Lower Mainland, the strongest result since 2016, and 91% on the 
Island (target: 88% of calls answered within 10 seconds). Police emergency call volumes 
decreased by 11% in the Lower Mainland from the same period last year, and 17% on the Island. 

 

• Police non-emergency (NER) call-taking service levels exceed target for first time since 2016 – 
Police NER service levels to April 30 were 87% in the Lower Mainland, the first year to date to 
exceed target since 2016, and 81% on Vancouver Island (target: 80% of calls answered within 3 
minutes). The NER abandoned call rate declined to 13% in the Lower Mainland from 24% last 
year, with an average speed to answer of 72 seconds, and held flat on the Island at 17%. Lower 
NER call volumes and stronger staffing for the dedicated NER team were contributing factors.     

 

• A caution on service levels: Service levels are typically higher at the start of the year, as a result of 
lower call volumes and higher staffing, then decline as warmer weather approaches, and will 
likely remain under pressure until our transformation plan improvements are fully implemented. 
 

Operations and Technology updates 

• New Genesys NER contact centre platform to be launched May 8 – Our new contact centre 
platform for Lower Mainland NER police agencies is set to launch May 8. We are compiling a 
communications plan for partner agencies regarding Genesys. The timing of the Genesys launch 
coincided with the end of our Amelia digital agent pilot on the Vancouver Police Department 
NER line, which will now also transition to Genesys.  
 

• Transition of North Vancouver RCMP NER calls to E-Comm – On May 22, E-Comm will begin 
taking non-emergency calls on behalf of the North Vancouver RCMP. While it was not our plan 
or preference to assume responsibility for North Vancouver’s services, including NER calls, 
having dispatch, emergency and NER call-taking all housed at E-Comm will ensure a more 
streamlined service. With higher staffing levels, the dedicated NER team during core hours, and 
the upcoming launch of Genesys, we believe we are in a good position to assume this additional 
work given North Vancouver RCMP’s relatively low call volumes. 

 

• Review of technology outage underway – In response to the March 16 technology outage,  
E-Comm is participating in a full incident debrief and review by PwC, with preliminary findings 
expected in May. A separate independent health assessment of our data centre equipment 
identified no impacts on hardware as a result of high temperatures in the data centre. 

 

• Emergency Service Dispatchers and 9-1-1 Awareness Week (April 14-20) – We are grateful to our 
many police agency partners who recognized our employees throughout 9-1-1 Week.  

 

• Governance Review – Our board has received the independent consultant’s report, and has 
discussed implications and next steps. We are now developing a communications plan for 
rollout of the recommendations, for review at our June board meeting and for information for 
our shareholders at our Annual General Meeting in June. 



 

E-Comm May Update for Police and Local Government Partners 2 

 

 
 



 
April 29, 2024 
 
 
Via e-mail: boardandcommittees@ecomm911.ca   
 
 
To the E-Comm Legal and Governance Department,  
 
Pursuant to Section 4.2.1.4 of the E-Comm Members’ Agreement, Police Boards or 
municipalities holding Class A or Class B shares for Police services, other than Vancouver 
and Delta, are entitled to designate one mutually agreed upon individual for election to the 
Board of Directors of E-Comm. 
 
In 2022, an alphabetical rotation of the position between the ‘Class A’ municipalities to the 
E-Comm Board of Directors was agreed upon, with a stipulation that each term within the 
rotation be limited to two-years. The rotation is as follows:  
 

a) Abbotsford Police Department 
b) Metro Vancouver Transit Police 
c) New Westminster Police Department 
d) Port Moody Police Department 
e) West Vancouver Police Department; 

 
At the New Westminster Police Board meeting held on Tuesday, April 16, 2024, the Board 
passed the following motion:  
 
MOVED AND SECONDED 
 

THAT The New Westminster Police Board nominate Mary Trentadue of the New 
Westminster Police Board to represent the ‘Class A’ Syndicate for the E-Comm 
Board of Directors 2024-2025 term 

 
Yours truly, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Daisy Dyer 
Police Board Secretary 
New Westminster Police Board 

mailto:boardandcommittees@ecomm911.ca


 
c/o 1127 Fort Street, Victoria BC  V8V 3K9  Tel: 250-216-1205 

bcapbs@gmail.com  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
April 22, 2024 
 
 
 
Dear Colleagues,  
 
Thank you to all the Police Board Members and friends of BCAPB who attended our annual AGM and 
conference on April 11and 12, 2024 in Vancouver, BC.  I hope you enjoyed it and found it worthwhile.   
 
My term as president has now concluded. I appreciate all the support received during my time as 
President. It is now my pleasure to introduce you to BCAPB's new Executive team, voted at our executive 
meeting following our AGM on Friday, April 12, 2024:  
 

 • Lara Victoria, President;  
 • Micayla Hayes, Vice President;  
 • Mandy Padda, Secretary; and  
 • Jim Cambridge, Treasurer.  

 
I hope you will continue to extend your support to them in their efforts to fulfill BCAPB's objectives.  
 
We have had a busy time as our Association is increasingly involved in a wide range of issues affecting 
policing and police governance in BC.  I appreciate the interest and support we have received from our 
members as well as the many stakeholders and government officials whom we have had the pleasure to 
work with.  
 
  
Kind regards, 
 
 
 
Patricia Barnes,  
Past-President, BCAPB 

 
  

mailto:bcapbs@gmail.com


 

1 
 

April 15, 2024 

 
 
To: E-Comm Shareholders and Police Agency Partners  
Via E-mail  
 
 
 
RE: Transition of North Vancouver RCMP non-emergency calls to E-Comm    
 
Dear Shareholders and Police Partners:  
 
This is an update on the transition of operational communication services from North Vancouver RCMP 
to E-Comm and to advise that starting on May 22, 2024, E-Comm will begin taking non-emergency calls 
on behalf of the North Vancouver RCMP.  
 
Background 
E-Comm agreed to assume emergency call-taking and dispatch services in late 2023 at the request of the 
City and District of North Vancouver, the RCMP and the Provincial Government. 
 
In December 2023, E-Comm quickly stood up a 24/7 dispatch channel on an urgent basis on February 21 
took over emergency call-taking services. These services have been working effectively and E-Comm is 
now in the final planning stages of standing up a shared North Vancouver/Burnaby RCMP Info channel at 
the end of April.   
 
Non-Emergency Call-Taking  
While not initially in the scope of the transition plan, E-Comm has agreed to assume North Vancouver 
RCMP’s non-emergency call-taking services starting on May 22, 2024. The North Vancouver RCMP 
detachment is unable to sustain these services in-house.  
 
The timing of this transition was carefully considered, accounting for both summer volumes and the 
launch of Genesys, our new modernized, non-emergency contact centre on May 8. Having dispatch, 
emergency and non-emergency call-taking all housed at E-Comm will ensure a streamlined service, 
utilizing all our current systems and harmonized standardized operating procedures.  
 
Impact on Service Levels  
We have assessed the potential impact on non-emergency service levels and several factors point to it 
being minimal.  
 

• North Vancouver is generally a lower volume jurisdiction. 

• Our new approach, including higher staffing, to handling non-emergency calls in the Lower 
Mainland with a dedicated team is showing significant improvement in performance. Even 
accounting for traditionally stronger service levels in Q1, we met or exceeded non-emergency 
service levels for the first time in Q1 2024 since 2016. 



 

2 
 

• We also anticipate that the new contact centre, Genesys, should not only help answer and 
process calls faster, it will give callers more information about their anticipated wait time and 
offer call backs. We believe these capabilities will enhance caller experience and result in a 
lower proportion of calls being abandoned. 

 
I want to emphasize that, while this was not work that E-Comm sought out, our staff have consistently 
risen to the occasion to ensure the smoothest possible transition, while maintaining excellent, 
professional service on behalf of all the agencies we serve.  
 
I am confident the upcoming transition of non-emergency services will be no exception.  
 
As always, please do reach out if you have any questions.  
 

Thank you, 

 
 
Stephen Thatcher, Vice President, Operations 
604-505-7740 
Stephen.Thatcher@ecomm911.ca 
 

 

Cc:  Oliver Grüter-Andrew, President & CEO 

 

 
 
 

mailto:Stephen.Thatcher@ecomm911.ca


 
 
 

BC ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPAL CHIEFS OF POLICE 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

BRITISH COLUMBIA ASSOCIATION OF  
MUNICIPAL CHIEFS OF POLICE 

c/o 755 16th Street      West Vancouver, BC     V7V 0B8     604-925-7300 
 
April 15, 2024 
 
BC Association of Police Boards 
BC First Nations Justice Council 
BC Police Association 
BC Prosecution Service 
Chief Constables of Municipal Police Departments 
Chief Officer, Metro Vancouver Transit Police Service 
Chief Officer, Stl’atl’imx Tribal Police 
Deputy Commissioner, Commanding Officer, RCMP “E” Division 
E-Comm 
Independent Investigations Office 
Justice Institute of British Columbia 
Metro Vancouver 
Office of the Police Complaint Commissioner 
Translink 
Union of British Columbia Municipalities 
Union of BC Indian Chiefs 
 
Via Email 
 
Dear Colleagues and Partners: 
 
Re: BC Association of Municipal Chiefs of Police Discussion Paper on Regionalization 
 
The British Columbia Association of Municipal Chiefs of Police (BCAMCP) is drafting a discussion paper on 
the regionalization of police services in British Columbia. As part of the engagement process, you (or your 
organization) have been identified as an important stakeholder who can provide valuable contributions to 
the Discussion Paper. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

BC ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPAL CHIEFS OF POLICE 
 

 

Background: 
 
In April of 2022, the Special Committee on Reforming the Police Act released its report 
(https://www.leg.bc.ca/content/CommitteeDocuments/42nd-parliament/3rd-session/rpa/SC-RPA-
Report_42-3_2022-04-28.pdf) titled “Transforming Policing and Community Safety in British Columbia” 
(the Report). 
 
The Report recommends transitioning to a new BC provincial police service that is governed by the new 
Community Safety and Policing Act. As part of several other comprehensive recommendations, this could 
involve amalgamating police services on a regional basis where there are opportunities to address 
fragmentation, ensure equitable access to policing and public safety, and improve efficiency and 
effectiveness. 
 
The BCAMCP has formed a Project Team that is made up of executive police leaders from different 
municipal police agencies. This Project Team has partnered with a Research Team that is made up of 
experienced academics and researchers. Together, the Project Team and the Research Team are seeking 
input from you in the development of a Discussion Paper on regionalization. 
 
The purpose of the Discussion Paper is to explore regionalization in the current context and use updated 
information for a resource document that the Province (as represented by the Policing and Security 
Branch, Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General) can refer to as further work is advanced related to 
the Report’s recommendations on amalgamating and combining police services.  
 
The Discussion Paper is not a position paper. It will not take a position on whether the Province should 
proceed with regionalization, but will present all considerations, which will be formed from evidence-
based findings. 
 
If you or your organization would like to participate in this engagement process, please contact Dr. Joshua 
Murphy at Joshua.murphy1@kpu.ca prior to May 15, 2024. Participation in this research will take the 
form of an interview or focus group with members of the Research Team. Interviews/focus groups will be 
approximately 45-90 minutes in length but can be longer or shorter depending upon your availability. 
Interviews may take place in person or virtually via MS Teams or Zoom, subject to your availability and 
logistics. Finally, participation in this project will be confidential, and participants will not be identified by 
name in the Discussion Paper.  
 
Further information on the Discussion Paper can be found on the BCAMCP website (www.bcamcp.ca). If 
you have any additional questions regarding the Discussion Paper, please email Jaclyn Addison 
(jaclynaddison@wvpd.ca), Executive Assistant to the BCAMCP. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
Tom Wolff von Gudenberg 
Deputy Chief Constable, West Vancouver Police 
President, BC Association of Municipal Chiefs of Police 
 
cc: British Columbia Association of Chiefs of Police 

https://www.leg.bc.ca/content/CommitteeDocuments/42nd-parliament/3rd-session/rpa/SC-RPA-Report_42-3_2022-04-28.pdf
https://www.leg.bc.ca/content/CommitteeDocuments/42nd-parliament/3rd-session/rpa/SC-RPA-Report_42-3_2022-04-28.pdf
mailto:Joshua.murphy1@kpu.ca
http://www.bcamcp.ca/
mailto:jaclynaddison@wvpd.ca


 
BC Associa�on of Police Boards, c/o 1127 Fort Street, Victoria, BC, V8V 3K9 

Tel:  250-216-1205 
Email:  bcapbs@gmail.com 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
May 13, 2024 
 
Deputy Chief Constable Tom Wolff von Gudenberg 
President, BC Associa�on of Municipal Chiefs of Police 
Via Email:  TomWolffVonGudenberg@wvpd.ca 
 
Dear Deputy Chief Constable Tom Wolff von Gudenberg, 
 
Thank you for your leter dated April 15, 2024, advising us on the development of a Discussion 
Paper that explores the regionaliza�on of police services in BC. We understand this is not a 
posi�on paper but could serve as a resource document that the Policing and Security Branch, 
Ministry of Public Safety and Solicitor General, as representa�ves of the Province, can refer to in 
future efforts related to recommenda�ons from the “Transforming Policing and Community 
Safety in Bri�sh Columbia” report. 
 
We recognize the value of this Discussion Paper as it impacts the future of policing in BC. BCAPB 
is grateful to be invited to par�cipate in the process leading to this Discussion Paper. As 
instructed in your leter we have contacted Dr. Joshua Murphy to advise him of our availability 
for a focus group (see atached). 
 
It may be worthwhile to note here that while the BCAPB comprises members represen�ng BC’s 
municipal police boards, invi�ng discussion from each of these police boards as well, may offer 
you further breadth and depth of discussion to inform your efforts, should you choose to 
consider it. 
 
Once again, thank you for invi�ng BCAPB to par�cipate in this valuable discussion. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
 
Lara Victoria 
President, BC Associa�on of Police Boards 
 
Encl. 
cc:  Chief Constable John Lo 



 
 
  
 
 
 
R E P O R T  
 
 
To: Mayor Johnstone and Members of the New 

Westminster Police Board 
Date: May 21, 2024 

    
From: Inspector Aman Gosal 

 
Item #:  

Subject: Restorative Justice – New Westminster Police Department 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the New Westminster Police Board receives this report for information.  
 

 
PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this report is to provide the Board with information about the past and current 
status of the New Westminster Police Department (NWPD) referrals to Restorative Justice. 
Additionally, this report aims to outline future strategies for advancing Restorative Justice referrals. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

Restorative Justice represents an innovative approach to addressing crime, diverging from the 
conventional court system. This method facilitates dialogue among offenders, victims, and other 
impacted parties to collectively address the offense. The primary objective is to reach mutually 
acceptable resolutions aimed at repairing the harm inflicted on the victim and the community. 
Studies have demonstrated that individuals engaged in Restorative Justice are notably less inclined 
to re-offend or cease offending altogether. Moreover, compared to the traditional criminal justice 
system, both victims and offenders report higher levels of satisfaction with this approach. 

Communities Embracing Restorative Justice Action (CERA) and NWPD 

Since 2004, Communities Embracing Restorative Justice Action (CERA) has served as the primary 
Restorative Justice service provider in New Westminster. During this period, NWPD has made 
approximately 64 referrals to CERA. However, in recent years, there has been a notable decline in 
the number of referrals, with the last one made in 2021. 



New Westminster Police Department            April 12, 2023  2 

 

Traditionally, the Restorative Justice coordinator for NWPD was situated within the Child and Youth 
Liaison Officer (CYLO) section, owing to their close relationship with the New Westminster School 
District. Referrals typically arose from discussions with patrol members seeking guidance on youth-
related cases. If a case met the criteria for the Restorative Justice process, the coordinator would 
liaise with CERA, providing them with the requisite information. 

In April 2021, the New Westminster Board of Education voted to discontinue the CYLO program in 
schools. Consequently, Restorative Justice referrals from NWPD ceased, given the absence of 
CYLOs in the New Westminster School Board Facilities. 

Funding for CERA 

In 2019, CERA submitted a formal request via the City of New Westminster’s Restorative Justice 
Committee for ongoing financial support from the NWPD for the fiscal year 2020 and beyond. 
Subsequently, NWPD conducted an assessment and presented its findings in a report to the Police 
Board.  The report highlighted that while Restorative Justice was valuable, the NWPD's funding may 
not lead to increased referrals to CERA. The report suggested increasing referrals through 
collaborations with other organizations like the New Westminster Schools. Additionally, it argued 
that police funding might compromise the independence of both the NWPD and CERA, as the 
decision to refer cases to CERA should remain objective and separate from financial considerations. 
Overall, the report advised against police funding of CERA, suggesting alternative strategies to 
increase referrals and maintain the independence of both organizations. 

The Police Board accepted the report and declined the request to fund CERA from the NWPD 
budget.   

Presently, the City of New Westminster is financing CERA through a multiyear grant totaling 
$15,000 annually, slated to continue until 2024. 

City of New Westminster Restorative Justice Committee 

The Restorative Justice Committee’s mandate is to promote and oversee the use of Restorative 
Justice practices in the city. Key responsibilities include advising the council on the activities of 
CERA, facilitating discussions on restorative action, and promoting its use as an alternative to 
traditional justice systems, particularly for non-violent and youth crimes. 

The committee consists of 11 members, including a council member, representatives from the 
community, CERA, the school district, the police service, victim assistance associations, the 
Indigenous community, and the New Westminster Indigenous Court. These members collaborate 
to ensure effective implementation and expansion of restorative justice practices in the city. 

In April 2023, the committee disbanded as the City’s initiative to transition its functions to another 
committee.   

Service Delivery Models Across Various Law Enforcement Agencies 

In examining service delivery models for Restorative Justice initiatives, the NWPD conducted a 
review of practices adopted by neighboring law enforcement agencies in the Lower Mainland. The 



New Westminster Police Department            April 12, 2023  3 

 

aim was to identify primary Restorative Justice providers and how the referral process occurred. 
The findings are summarized as follows: 

Abbotsford Police 

The Abbotsford Police utilize the services of Abbotsford Restorative Justice and Advocacy 
Association (ARJAA). The ARJAA shares a space in the Abbotsford Police Community Station. ARJAA 
is heavily involved in the school district but also receives referrals from the Police Department.  

Burnaby RCMP  

Within the Burnaby RCMP, Restorative Justice coordination is internally managed, with a 
designated Restorative Justice Coordinator embedded within the department. The program is 
executed in-house by trained auxiliary staff, ensuring a streamlined and integrated approach to 
service provision. 

Chilliwack RCMP 

Chilliwack RCMP utilizes the service of Chilliwack Restorative Justice and Youth Advocacy 
Association who share a space in the Chilliwack RCMP community policing offices.  

Coquitlam RCMP 

The Coquitlam RCMP utilize CERA as their main Restorative Justice provider. A CERA employee is 
integrated within the department to oversee the coordination of files suitable for the program. 

Delta Police 

The Delta Police Department has no formal relationship with any Restorative Justice service 
providers. 

Port Moody Police 

The Port Moody Police similarly engage with CERA as their designated Restorative Justice service 
provider. The Youth Officer is primary coordinator for the referrals.   

 
Primary Factors Contributing to the Absence of Restorative Justice Referrals 
 

1. School District Involvement 
 
The New Westminster Schools District Vice-Principal – Safe and Caring Schools, serves as 
the primary liaison and point of contact for the NWPD. Ongoing discussions revolve around 
pivotal subjects such as Violent Threat Risk Assessments (VTRAs) and Training and Protocols 
for Emergency Procedures. In the course of these discussions, the District Vice-Principal has 
advised that New Westminster Schools predominantly handle Restorative Justice matters 
internally, utilizing trained staff members. External agencies are only involved in exceptional 
cases. Furthermore, following the dissolution of the CYLO position, NWPD's engagement 



New Westminster Police Department            April 12, 2023  4 

 

with schools has decreased significantly. Reports forwarded to the police by schools 
typically do not align with the criteria for Restorative Justice. 
 

2. Dedicated Restorative Justice Coordinator  
 
NWPD recently engaged in discussions with the Executive Director of CERA, an organization 
catering to the Tri-Cities and New Westminster areas. Between 2020 and 2022, CERA 
handled an average of 40 to 60 cases annually, encompassing both adult and youth cases. 
The Executive Director highlighted that a significant portion of these referrals originated 
from Coquitlam RCMP, which benefits from the presence of a civilian employee dedicated 
to Restorative Justice coordination. Conversely, NWPD currently lacks such a coordinator 
responsible for reviewing files that would be suitable for Restorative Justice. 

 
3. Training and Education 

 
In the past, the designated Restorative Justice coordinator within CYLO assumed the 
responsibility of educating and guiding members regarding the selection of appropriate files 
for the program. However, following the discontinuation of the CYLO program, there has 
been a notable absence of formalized guidance and training for members in this regard. 
 

DISCUSSION 
 

The NWPD have begun to explore avenues for enhancing Restorative Justice delivery within NWPD, 
despite the absence of a dedicated coordinator. 

The NWPD engaged in discussions with New Westminster Supervisory Crown Counsel and with 
New Westminster Youth Probation, both of whom expressed wholehearted support for advancing 
Restorative Justice initiatives. However, for this to materialize, the youth offender must be 
charged, and a recommendation for Restorative Justice has to be made by NWPD. Crown Counsel 
and the Youth Probation indicated their willingness to collaborate with one or multiple Restorative 
Justice service delivery agencies, such as CERA. 

Presently, NWPD are refining the logistics of the Restorative Justice process and determining who 
will oversee referrals. Once finalized, the Youth Probation Officer will advise and assist with training 
sessions, which will be coordinated by a dedicated NWPD member, for patrol members on the 
Restorative Justice process. 

Regarding adult referrals for Restorative Justice, we are exploring the option of direct referrals to 
CERA. The Executive Director of CERA has been engaged and has offered to provide training to the 
members. However, logistical details and coordination responsibilities are yet to be finalized.  

 
OPTIONS 
 
Option #1 – That the Board accepts the report for information. 



New Westminster Police Department            April 12, 2023  5 

 

 
Option #2 – That the Board provides staff with alternate direction. 
 
Staff recommends option 1.  
 
This report has been prepared by: 
 

 
 

 
Inspector Aman Gosal 

 

 



 

 

 

           
April 26, 2024 
 
Patrick Johnstone 
New Westminster Police Board 
 
Dear Patrick: 
 
RE: 2024 CAPG CONFERENCE – “Where Governance Meets Public Safety: Transforming Policing in 
Canada” 

 
We are excited to update you about the 2024 Annual Conference of the Canadian Association of Police 
Governance (CAPG). The conference begins on Thursday, August 8, with a one-day First Nations Police 
Governance Council (FNPGC) and a number of keynote speakers. The FNPGC program will include 
thought-provoking sessions looking at Indigenous policing through a variety of informative lenses. It will 
also feature hands-on sessions where delegates can develop useful tools for their own First Nations 
governance authorities.  
 
From Friday, August 9, through Sunday, August 11, the CAPG Conference will explore the theme ‘Where 
Governance Meets Public Safety: Transforming Policing in Canada’. The opening keynote address will be 
presented by the Hon. Dr. Wanda Thomas Bernard, Senator. (Senate of Canada) 
 
The CAPG Conference will explore the various topics/challenges facing policing in Canada today, 
including: 
 

● Recruitment and retention strategies for police services 
● Working with different levels of government to address the unhoused   
● The role of a changing police culture in Canada  
● Emergency preparedness and evacuation  
● Police board/commission communication strategies for building public trust  
● Assessing the right programs and products for front-line mental health  
● How evidence-based policing can help boards/commissions with strategic planning 
● What police services boards/commissions need to know about discipline 

  
The conference committee has strived to create balance in each program, providing delegates with 
useful tools, the opportunity for rich dialogue, and knowledge that can be applied in their own police 
governance roles. The also emphasize cultural and social opportunities to network and explore what 
Halifax has to offer. 
 
Events such as this one are obviously expensive to run, which is why we are writing to you today as a 



 

 

member of your police service board/commission to ask for your support of this premier 
conference. Your contribution helps keep the registration fees for our delegates at a sustainable level 
that even the smallest of police boards and commissions are able to afford.   
 
There are a variety of sponsorship opportunities available that can be tailored specifically to you, 
maximizing your visibility and recognition as a supporter of this important event. Sponsorship of the 
CAPG Conference isn’t simply about funding. It is about emphasizing to your peers that you are a 
champion of excellence in municipal police governance in Canada, and that you believe in the values of 
integrity, transparency, and accountability. It is a valuable opportunity to raise your organization’s 
profile through branding and recognition of your commitment to civilian governance and social 
responsibility. 
  
We are sincerely grateful for your contribution, participation, and commitment to making the 
conference experience unique and rewarding for everyone who attends. Please visit the CAPG 
Conference website at http://capgconference.ca/ to download the sponsorship application and find out 
more about the opportunities available.  
 
We look forward to hearing back from you. In the meantime, if you have any questions, please do not 
hesitate to contact us. 

 
Please feel free to contact me, at 416.435.4455 or via email at sreid@capg.ca to discuss how you can take 
advantage of this unique and very limited opportunity.   

 
 
Yours truly, 
 

 
 
Stephen Reid 
Executive Director 
 

 

http://capb.us7.list-manage.com/track/click?u=c3ef33ebd3381b93a29f78020&id=d48bdbd3ac&e=f44d3ac098

	Facility Asset Management Plan (FAMP) – Police Building - ATTACHMENT.pdf
	Agenda
	a. ON TABLE FAMP Workshop Presentation - 2024-130.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	b. Facilities Asset Management Plan (FAMP) 2024 - 2024-86.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	b. Att 1 - Facilities Asset Management Plan 2024 - City of New Westminster (2).pdf
	Back to Agenda



	Button1: 


